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ITEM 1. Significant Parties

Thomas Barber, Director
Bus: 306 Route 3

So. China, ME 04358
Res: Route #3

Palermo, ME 04354

John Beaupre, Director
Bus: RR 1, Box 2140

Carrabassett Valley, ME 04947
Res: RR 1, Box 2176D

Carrabassett Valley, ME 04947

Wayne Crandall, Director

Bus: 10 School Street
Rockland, ME 04841

Res: Box 531, Mountain Rd.
Rockland, ME 04841

Paul Trusiani, Director

Bus: 585 Congress Street
Portland, ME 04101

Res: 25 Longwood Terrace
Portland, ME 04102

Vernon Seile, Director

Bus: RFD #1, Box 3115
Stonington, ME 04681

Res: Same as above

Michael E. Westort, President and
Chief Executive Officer
Bus: 1000 Brunswick Avenue
Gardiner, ME 04345-1000
Res: 65 Caron Street
Portland, ME 04103

PART I - NOTIFICATION

Barry A. McCormick, Director
Bus: 8 School Street

Unity, Maine 04988
Res: 115 Fisher Road

Unity, Maine 04988

David N. Sleeper, Director

Bus: 99 Lyndon Street
Caribou, ME 04736

Res: 4 Townview Road
Caribou, ME 04736

Frederick Crowe, Director

Bus:  P.O.Box 727
Princeton, ME 04668

Res:  Big Lake Road
Princeton, ME 04668

Charles O’Brien, Director

Bus: 554 Main Street
Jackman, ME 04945

Res: 35 Mill Road
Jackman, ME 04945

Craig Burgess, Director

Bus: 101 Centre Street
Bath, Maine 04530

Res: 87 Whiskeag Road
Bath, Maine 04530



Counsel to the issuer: David J. Champoux, Pierce Atwood, One Monument Square, Portland, Maine
04101

ITEM 2. Application of Rule 262

None of the persons named in Item 1 is subject to any of the disqualification provisions set forth in
Rule 262.

ITEM 3. Affiliate Sales

Not applicable.

ITEM 4. Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered

The securities are to be offered by the issuer itself, and not through underwriters, dealers or salesmen,
in the states of Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire and Vermont. The securities will be offered to
the issuer’s existing members, as well as to any new members of the issuer joining after the date

hereof.

The securities will be offered by the Company’s President, Michael E. Westort, and its Chief
Financial Officer, Ronald Cloutier.

ITEM 5. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year

(a) The Company has issued the following unregistered securities since March 28, 2003:
Class A Shares Class B Shares
"Excess" Capital (Offering price (Offering price
Purchaser Deposits $2,527 per share) $2,500 per share)

BEARSON ENT. LLC -
COLLINS BUSINESS HOLDINGS LLC -
FARM TO MARKET dba MAINE HARVEST -
FRISBEE'S SUPERMARKET INC. -
GOODHUE ENTERPRISES INC. -
JOHN & PENNI FLOSTER -
JOSEPH LEMA & SON -
MOOSEHEAD COUNTRY STORE -
ASGHAR M. KHAN -
BRANDON POMELOW .
DAVID & LIA SKELTON -
DAVID W. GUTTER -
GABBIANELLI ENTERPRISES -
HOWLAND FAMILY GROCERY -
KEZAR FALLS MARKET INC. -
LONG ISLAND STORE -
LOUISE BARNES -
MARY ANN'S MARKET -
NOBLEBORO VILLAGE STORE INC. -
OLD TOWNE MARKET INC. -
PARRIS & CATHERINE VARNEY -
WAYNO'S MARKET & DELI -

—_— e e e e
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WILLIAMS DEVELOPMENT -

RICHARD OR DIANE DUNHAM 6

A.A. MARINO INC. 17
WSC 53
wsC 100
TIMOTHY H HOLMES OR GABRIELLE B HOL 102
MAINE MARKET CORP 106
COASTAL RETAIL CORP. 107

SLEEPER NELSONF. 13



Purchaser

WHEATON & McLLAUGHLIN

RH FOSTER ENERGY LLC
SLEEPER JOSEPH M. JR

ASHLAND FOOD MART INC.
FALL'S RETAIL INC.

RAKE INC.

SWAN LAKE GROCERY INC
RONA OUELLETTE

KEVIN R. DUNHAM

JESSIE AND NANCY MICHAUD
BARTLETTS MARKET INC.
GILBERT & RUTH PARENT
CAMELLIA WILSON

WELLS FOOD MART EXT. BUY
MERVIN OR CHRISTENE KERR
JAMES & JEANNINE SPILLER
WALTER CZERWINSKI OR JANICE CZERWIN
M. BOWEN & F. LUCAS

EARL OR LORRAINE BAKER
JAMES W. WEST

GARY AND SHARON FOWLIE
MALCOLM & BARBARA TRAFTON
R.W. MATHEWS & SONS INC.
MEREDITH RANDLETT - SAVINGS
ROBERT BARRETT

WILLIAM MACDONALD

SOUTH STREET MARKET INC.
FAIRFIELD BUDDIES INC.

RON'S MARKET INC,

PENELOPE BECKLER

GLIDDENS BETHEL FOODS INC.
GLEASON & CLAIRE GRAY
LYMBURNER FRANCIS

CHAD & KARIN MCLEAN

EUGENE AND GINA MCKENNEY
FRANCIS J MORIN LIVING TRUST
GATES DIVERSIFIED INC.
TOMBEAU INC.

ARTHUR AND ODELCIA SILVIA
MAURICE & VIRGINIA BERGERON
TRIANGLE A.G. STORE INC.
SHIRLEY VARNEY

JAMES AND PAT HENRY JR.
NOBLEBORO VILLAGE STORE INC.
ROBERT J. & LESLIE GRENIER
MEC ENTERPRISES INC.

MIKE'S COUNTRY STORE INC.
ROBERT AND LESLIE GRENIER
ROBERT J. AND LYNN A. PULKKA
THOMAS JAY ALLARD

THE ISLAND MARKET CORPORATION
TOMBEAU INC.

PORT CLYDE MARKETING COMPANY
KEN AND CAROL BALLARD
ASHLAND FOOD MART INC
READFIELD FAMILY MARKET INC.
DAVE & DONNA SALISBURY
SUSAN M. MORGAN

GARY EUGENE RIDEOUT

JEAN L. AND STEVEN H. BAKER
PERRY'S FARMERS UNION INC.
VANESSA BRUCE

JOSEPH P. IRISH

VICTORIA M. & JAMES J. STASZEWSK]
V & R VARIETY INC.

MAXINE STEWART

NORTHWOOD COUNTRY MARKET INC.
JAMES ] AND ROLANDE CHASSE
STEPHEN OR MARTHA FENNO
PHILIP S. BUCK

ROBERT L. LIBBY

"Excess" Capital
Deposits

116
129
145
149
195
266
273
354
386
474
528
546
585
617
648
651
652
692
707
722
726
766
799
807
843
1,016
1,095
1,103
1,130
1,154
1,189
1,212
1,251
1,373
1,390
1,404
1,420
1,460
1,481
1,499
1,533
1,557
1,594
1,627
1,653
1,770
1,796
2,195
2,197
2,217
2,255
2,258
2,331
2,347
2,368
2,385
2,448
2,486
2,538
2,635
2,678
2,719
2,827
2,829
2,835
3,066
3,097
3,211
3,375
3,739
3,748

Class A Shares
(Offering price
$2,527 per share)

Class B Shares
(Offering price
$2,500 per share)



Purchaser

GOWELL ENTERPRISES INC.
RUSSELL & CONNIE SOUCY
BRUCE & KAREN MATHEWS
DENNIS B. & PATRICIA M. ROBERTSON
GERARD BOURGET

RONALD ROBINSON SR.

FOUR SEASONS TRADING POST INC.
J & MA CORP.

P. DUNBAR & EST, OF A. DUNBAR
OYSTER RIVER MANAGEMENT
DAY'S STORE INC.

NASON'S GENERAL STORE INC.,
DONALD AND MARY WORCESTER
TILTON'S MARKET INC.

THE GREEN LINE SUPERETTES INC.
PAUL'S FOOD CENTERS INC.

MSF INC.

RONALD &/OR SHARON BENJAMIN
HERB & SHARON FITHIAN
OULLETTE & SON INC.

Joseph Sleeper 11

Mark Sleeper

David Sleeper

DICK'S MARKET INC.

ROGER'S MARKET INC.

HAROLD L. KEAY & SON
GOSSELIN'S SUPERETTE INC.
HOLMES MARKET INC.

BATES INVESTMENTS INC.
BELFAST VARIETY INC.

B J'S MARKET

GOTT STORE INC.

YOUR COUNTRY STORE INC.

B & R ENTERPRISES

B & R ENTERPRISES

ALAN AMES AND ROBERT CROSBY
GALUSHA'S INC.

R & D THRIFTWAY

NUF INC.

JOSEPH SLEEPER INC.

JOHN R. JOSEPH & SONS INC.
BARRY & VERA MCCORMICK
JOHN T. DAYHOOF IIL

THOMAS R. & RITA B. BARBER
REGIS AND ANITA ROY

JERRY'S FOOD STORE INC.
PIERCE'S COUNTRY STORE INC.
CANAAN SUPERETTE

THOMAS R. BARBER

JAMES AND MARGARET WALLACE
GES INC

VERNON C. SEILE

UNITED SUPERMARKET INC
NORTH WHITEFIELD SUPERETTE INC.
D.L. FOTTER & SONS INC.
VILLAGE FOOD MARKET INC.
BELFAST VARIETY INC.

JAMES W. WEST

WHEATON & MCLAUGHLIN INC.
CHRISTY'S COUNTRY STORE INC.
HUSSEYS GENERAL STORE INC.
ROBERT N. BANNISTER

DONALD OR HELEN GOSSOM
DOWNEAST RETAIL CORP.
VERNON C. SEILE

WISCASSET YELLOWFRONT GROC. INC.

C.E. REILLY AND SONS
COUNTY YANKEE

RONALD & MARIAN BAGLEY
COASTAL RETAIL CORP.
TOTAL

"Excess" Capital
Deposits

3,805
3,935
3,996
4,284
4,639
4,711
4,724
4,790
4,799
4,821
4,905
4913
4,989
5,087
5,299
5,466
5,846
6,443
6,454
6,932
7,000
7,000
7,146
7,531
7,562
7,635
7,644
7,885
7,975
8,093
8,134
8,269
8,287
8,571
8,652
8,667
8,809
9,483
9,600
9,874
9,887
10,092
10,157
10,171
10,326
11,044
11,069
11,144
11,282
11,368
11,507
11,584
12,274
12,312
12,669
12,853
13,188
14,329
15,438
15,596
16,108
17,562
22,287
22,822
23,454
28,417
46,775
72,225
95,496
212,144
$1,169,107

Class A Shares
(Offering price
$2,527 per share)

8 shares

Class B Shares
(Offering price
$2,500 per share)

17 shares



Class A Shares Class B Shares

"Excess" Capital (Offering price (Offering price
Purchaser Deposits $2,527 per share) $2,500 per share)
Value of Securities $1,169,107 $20,216 $42,500
TOTAL Value of All Securities $1,231,823
(b) Not applicable
(c) The Company issued the above shares in reliance on an exemption from registration

pursuant to 17 C.F.R. §§230.251 et seq. (Regulation A). The Company is offering
rescission to all persons who hold securities sold by the Company between March 28,
2003 and September 16, 2003.

ITEM 6. Other Present or Proposed Offerings

None.

ITEM 7. Marketing Arrangements

None.

ITEM 8. Relationship with Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement

None.

ITEM 9. Use of a Solicitation of Interest Document

None.



OFFERING CIRCULAR

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC.

(Exact name of Company as set forth in Articles of Incorporation)

Type of securities offered: Variable Rate Subordinated Debt Securities (Excess), paying interest at a
rate equal to the average of six (6) month Treasury Securities as reported in
the Wall Street Journal, plus 3.5%

Maximum number of securities offered: $5,000,000 in the aggregate (including an offer of rescission to holders of
securities with an aggregate value of $1,231,823)

Minimum number of securities offered: None

Price per security: None. Securities are open-ended deposit instruments.

Total proceeds: If maximum sold: $3,768,177 If minimum sold: $0

(For use of proceeds and offering expenses, see Question Nos. 9 and 10)

Is a commissioned selling agent selling the securities in this offering? [] Yes [X] No

If yes, what percent is commission of price to public? %.

Is there other compensation to selling agent(s)? [ ] Yes [X] No

Is there a finder's fee or similar payment to any person? [ ] Yes [X] No (See Question No. 22)

Is there an escrow of proceeds until minimum is obtained? [ ] Yes [X] No (See Question No. 26)

Is this offering limited to members of a special group, such as employees of the Company or individuals? [X] Yes [
] No (See Question No. 25)

Is transfer of the securities restricted? [X] Yes [ ] No (See Question No. 25)

This offering shall end no later than June 30, 2006; provided, however, that the rescission offer forming a part of this
offering will be conducted only during a 30 day period beginning on the date that this Offering Circular is qualified.

INVESTMENT IN SMALL BUSINESSES INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK, AND INVESTORS
SHOULD NOT INVEST ANY FUNDS IN THIS OFFERING UNLESS THEY CAN AFFORD TO LOSE
THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT. SEE QUESTION NO. 2 FOR THE RISK FACTORS THAT
MANAGEMENT BELIEVES PRESENT THE MOST SUBSTANTIAL RISKS TO AN INVESTOR IN
THIS OFFERING.

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN
EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS
AND RISKS INVOLVED. THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED OR APPROVED
BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY.
FURTHERMORE, THESE AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY THE
ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL
OFFENSE.

THE U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS UPON THE MERITS OF
ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE
ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR SELLING LITERATURE.
THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED UNDER AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION; HOWEVER,
THE COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THESE
SECURITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION.

{W0253011.6}



NOTICE TO NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS:

NEITHER THE FACT THAT A REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN APPLICATION FOR
A LICENSE HAS BEEN FILED WITH THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE NOR THE FACT
THAT A SECURITY IS EFFECTIVELY REGISTERED OR A PERSON IS LICENSED IN THE
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE CONSTITUTES A FINDING BY THE SECRETARY OF
STATE THAT ANY DOCUMENT FILED UNDER RSA 421-B IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND
NOT MISLEADING. NEITHER ANY SUCH FACT NOR THE FACT THAT AN EXEMPTION
OR EXCEPTION IS AVAILABLE FOR A SECURITY OR A TRANSACTION MEANS THAT
THE SECRETARY OF STATE HAS PASSED IN ANY WAY UPON THE MERITS OR
QUALIFICATIONS OF, OR RECOMMENDED OR GIVEN APPROVAL TO, ANY PERSON,
SECURITY, OR TRANSACTION. IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE, OR CAUSE TO BE MADE,
TO ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR, CUSTOMER, OR CLIENT ANY REPRESENTATION
INCONSISTENT WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH.

This Company:
[] Has never conducted operations.
[] Is in the development stage.
[] Is currently conducting operations.

(X] Has shown a profit in the last fiscal year.
[] Other (Specify):
(Check at least one, as appropriate)

This offering has been registered for offer and sale in the following states:

State State File No. Effective Date
Maine 2-1254 September 10, 2003
New Hampshire (does not assign file numbers) September 23, 2003
Vermont 51298-23 August 18, 2003

Massachusetts 03037573 September 15, 2003
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THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR CONTAINS ALL OF THE REPRESENTATIONS BY
THE COMPANY CONCERNING THIS OFFERING, AND NO PERSON SHALL MAKE
DIFFERENT OR BROADER STATEMENTS THAN THOSE CONTAINED HEREIN.
INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO RELY UPON ANY INFORMATION NOT
EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR.

This Offering Circular, together with Financial Statements and other Attachments,
consists of a total of 195 pages.
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THE COMPANY

1. Exact corporate name: Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc.

State and date of incorporation: Maine, March 10, 1953

Street address of principal office: 1000 Brunswick Avenue, Gardiner, Maine 04345

Company Telephone Number:  (207) 582-6500

Fiscal year: Ends on the last Friday of March

Person(s) to contact at Company with respect to offering: Michael E. Westort, President, Chief
Executive Officer

Telephone Number (if different from above): (__)

RISK FACTORS

List in the order of importance the factors which the Company considers to be the most

substantial risks to an investor in this offering in view of all facts and circumstances or which
otherwise make the offering one of high risk or speculative (i.e., those factors which constitute
the greatest threat that the investment will be lost in whole or in part, or not provide an
adequate return).

M

@)

{W0253011.6}

Nontransferable Securities. The securities offered hereby (the “Securities”) are not
certificated and are not transferable from one holder to another. See “Description of
Securities”.

Subordination. The Securities will generally be subordinated in right of payment to
other indebtedness of the Company, including without limitation bank loans, whether
now existing or arising in the future. As of March 26, 2004, the Company had
outstanding approximately $5.1 million of obligations which ranked senior to the
Securities. Under the current financing, for so long as the Company is not in
compliance with the terms of any senior indebtedness, the Company generally will not
be entitled to make interest or principal payments to the holders of the Securities. In
the event of the bankruptcy or insolvency of the Company, holders of senior
indebtedness would generally be entitled to full payment before any payments may be
made to holders of the Securities, and holders of the Securities may therefore receive
only partial payment or no payment of amounts due on such Securities. If the
Company’s bank refuses to allow the Company to make payments on the Securities, or
if the Company becomes bankrupt or insolvent, the Securities, despite their terms,
would not be payable on demand and would not be applied for the purchase of
additional goods from the Company. Management is considering seeking an additional
$5,000,000 in bank debt to finance expansion of the Company’s warehouse in
Gardiner, Maine. There can be no assurances that the terms and covenants of any new
credit agreement will be as favorable as current financing, and such an increase in
senior indebtedness (from approximately $5.1 million to approximately $10.1 million)



€)
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will increase the risk that the Company will not be permitted to pay interest or principal
on the Securities.

Possible Integration of Offering. The Securities are being issued in reliance upon an
exemption from the registration requirement imposed by § 5 of the Securities Act of
1933 (the “‘33 Act”) pursuant to 17 C.F.R. §§230.251 et seq. (“Regulation A”).
Regulation A requires that the sum of all consideration to be received for the securities
offered thereunder not exceed $5 million in the aggregate, minus any previous sales in
any offering that is integrated with the current offering. Offerings which occur within
six months of the start of a particular offering under Regulation A are more likely to be
integrated with that Regulation A offering. If the offering of the Securities were to be
integrated with a previous offering made in reliance on Regulation A by the Company,
this could lead to the Regulation A exemption being unavailable and purchasers of the
Securities pursuant to this offering having a right to rescind such purchase upon
demand. On September 16, 2003, the Company made its last sale under a previous
offering in reliance on Regulation A; as of the same date, all persons who were eligible
to purchase such securities were informed by the Company that no further securities
sales would be made. The Company assumed that the previous offering terminated on
that date. Other than having the Form 1/A for such previous offering continue to be
qualified and on file at the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) until March
24, 2004, the Company has taken no actions which could be construed as an offer to
sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, securities as defined under the *33 Act since
September 16, 2003. However, an argument could be made that (i) the previous
offering in reliance on Regulation A continued until March 24, 2004, and (ii) that the
previous offering should be integrated with the current offering.

However, because the Securities are subject to repayment by the Company upon
demand by the holder thereof, the Company does not believe that the risk of integration
and its consequences pose any significant incremental risk to the Company.

Variable Interest Rate. The Securities bear interest at a rate equal to the average rate of
six (6) month Treasury Bill Securities as reported in the Wall Street Journal (in the
“Money Rates” section) on April 1% and October 1* of each year, or the next business
day following those dates, plus 3.50%. See “Description of Securities”.

Substantial Leverage; Ability to Service Indebtedness. The Company had total
indebtedness of $16,837,277 as of March 26, 2004, and $17,114,841 as of March 28,
2003, and stockholders equity of $2,768,863 as of March 26, 2004 and $2,680,895 as of
March 28, 2003. The Company is considering an expansion of its Gardiner, Maine
warehouse facility in the Fall of 2004, which management anticipates will be funded by
an additional bank credit of approximately $5,000,000. The Company may also incur
additional indebtedness in the future, pursuant to the Securities being offered hereby or
otherwise, subject in all cases to limitations imposed by its bank indebtedness. The
Company’s ability to make scheduled principal payments of, to pay interest on or to
refinance its indebtedness (including the Securities), depend on its future performance
and financial results, which, to a certain extent, are subject to general economic,
financial, competitive and other factors beyond its control. The Company’s historical
financial results have been, and its future financial results are anticipated to be, subject
to substantial fluctuations. There can be no assurance that sufficient funds will be

2
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available to enable the Company to service its indebtedness, including that arising
under the Securities, to make necessary capital expenditures, to have sufficient
availability of working capital, or to comply with the terms of its current or future
senior indebtedness. The degree to which the Company is or may become leveraged
could have important consequences to the holders of the Securities, including, but not
limited to, the following:

@) The Company’s ability to obtain additional financing in the future could be
limited;

(i) Substantially all of the Company’s borrowings are at variable rates of interest,
which could result in higher interest expense in the event of increases in
interest rates;

(iii)  The Company may be more vulnerable to downturns in its business or in the
general economy and may be restricted from exploiting business opportunities;
and

(iv)  The Company’s existing bank indebtedness contains financial and restrictive
covenants that limit the ability of the Company to, among other things, borrow
additional funds, dispose of assets, or repay subordinated debt. Failure by the
Company to comply with such covenants could result in an event of default
which, if not cured or waived, could have a material adverse effect on the
Company. See “Description of Securities” and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Certain Relevant Factors”.

Competition.  The wholesale grocery supply industry is highly competitive.
Competition is based on price, quality and customer service. Although the Company
believes it has a strong market presence in its chosen markets and in the geographical
regions in which it operates, and that it provides goods at competitive prices together
with more extensive “value added” services than most of its competitors, competitive
pressures may increase as competitors attempt to gain more market share by lowering
prices and/or enhancing levels of customer service. Competition in the markets served
by the Company (and those it intends to enter) comes from companies of various sizes,
some of which are larger and have substantially greater financial and other resources
than the Company and may therefore be better situated to withstand adverse economic
or market conditions than can the Company. In addition, the Company’s customers
face rigorous competition from larger, better financed grocery chains and convenience
stores. Larger competitors can better withstand adverse economic or market conditions
than can many of the Company’s customers, and may have additional competitive
advantages attributable to greater buying power and the ability to offer broader ranges
of products. In addition, such competitors may be geographically more diversified than
the Company’s customers and can therefore better withstand adverse regional or local
economic conditions. Negative effects on the Company’s customers from competition
in the retail grocery market would adversely affect the Company’s financial condition
and operating results, and such effects could be material. See “Business and
Properties”.

Key Customers. The Company has several large customers, many of whom are subject
to cyclicality in their businesses and have in the past varied, and may in the future vary,
their levels of business with the Company significantly from period to period. The loss
or business failure of one or more of such customers, or a weak or declining market in

3



(8)

©)

(10)

(11)

{Wo0253011.6}

which such customers reduce orders or become unable to pay amounts due to the
Company, could have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Dependence on Sources of Supply; Dependence on Central Warehousing Facility. The
Company’s operations depend upon obtaining on a timely basis adequate supplies of
quality goods with which it supplies its own customers in turn, and upon the continuous
use of its central warehousing facility in Gardiner, Maine. From time to time, suppliers
may extend delivery times, limit supply to the Company or increase prices due to
capacity constraints or other factors. Any interruption in the Company’s ability to use
the Gardiner facility, as could occur in connection with an expansion of that facility, as
is currently under consideration, could adversely affect the Company’s results of
operations; the Company currently believes that this is unlikely to occur. Results of
operations could also be adversely affected if the Company were unable to obtain
adequate supplies of quality goods in a timely manner or if there were significant
increases in the costs of its goods, although historically the Company has been able to
pass along such costs to its customers and believes that it is unlikely that the Company
would uniquely experience such cost increases.

Regional Economic Conditions. The Company’s business is generated entirely from
customers located and doing business in the Northern New England states. The regional
economy may experience significant economic downturns in which the Company may
show stagnation or decline in revenues, as occurred in the late 1980s and early 1990s.
Accordingly, the Company’s financial condition, particularly in light of its leveraged
condition, could be adversely affected by a worsening in the regional economy.

Possible Environmental Liabilities and Compliance Costs. The Company learned in
1997 that soil and groundwater petroleum contamination occurred at property owned
by its wholly-owned subsidiary, A. G. Development Corp., in Corinth, Maine, due to
leakage of underground storage tanks prior to their removal in 1986. The property was
sold to a third party unrelated to the Company in May 1999, but the Company and A.
G. Development Corp. remain legally responsible for the costs of remediation of the
site and for any fines or third party claims raised in connection therewith. The
Company established its eligibility to receive indemnification from the state of Maine
for costs associated with this clean-up and third party claims, up to a maximum of §1
million; of this indemnification, approximately $550,000 remains available. On April
12, 2004, the Company received a letter from the Maine Department of Environmental
Protection stating that the site had been satisfactorily cleaned up, and that no further
remediation would be required “at this time”. Although the Company currently
believes that no fines will be assessed and that it is eligible for indemnification
sufficient to cover any additional costs for remediation and third party claims, there can
be no assurance that fines will not be imposed on the Company, or that the Company
will not be required to make unindemnified payments for additional environmental
remediation or third party claims. See “Litigation” below for more information.

Outcome of Rescission Offer. The Company is offering to all current holders of the
Company’s Class A shares, Class B shares and Variable Rate Subordinated Debt
Securities (Excess) purchased in the period between March 28, 2003 and September 16,
2003 a rescission right, entitling them to elect, during the period ending thirty (30) days
after the qualification of this Offering Statement, to rescind any such purchases. The
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maximum liability of the Company to shareholders pursuant to this rescission offer is
$1,213,823, plus interest. Management does not anticipate that any substantial
rescissions will be effected, due to the Company’s present financial condition and the
fact that the securities covered by this offer are already subject to payment on demand
by their terms. However, there can be no assurance that a substantial amount of these
Securities will not be tendered for repurchase under the rescission offer. A high level
of tender by securities holders could cause the Company to experience liquidity
shortfalls, the consequences of which would be material and adverse to the Company
and purchasers of the Securities.

Furthermore, although some states explicitly provide that a rescission offer to securities
purchasers who may possess claims against the issuer will prevent such purchasers
from filing a claim under state securities laws, the effect of a rescission offer on
liability to a shareholder under the Securities Act of 1933 and other Federal law is
uncertain. As such, there can be no assurance that the recipient of a rescission offer
might not later be able to pursue action against the Company for violation of Federal
securities laws.

Seasonality. The wholesale grocery supply business is highly seasonal and, in Maine,
is dependent in part on tourism. The Company realizes, on average, approximately
36% of its annual revenues during the period from Memorial Day through Labor Day.
The Company typically experiences operating losses for the period from November
through March. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to finance its
capital requirements from external or internal sources during this period. The
substantial degree of seasonality of the Company’s revenues increases the impact of
adverse events on operating results, including events negatively impacting tourism in
the State of Maine.

Risks Associated with Growth. The Company presently intends to expand its activities
in the States of New Hampshire, Massachusetts and Vermont. See ‘“Business and
Properties.” Such growth could place a significant strain on the Company’s
management, employees and operations. Such growth is likely to increase the
operating complexity of the Company and the level of responsibility for new and
existing management. Unexpected difficulties during expansion, the failure to attract
and retain qualified employees, or the Company’s inability to respond effectively to
recent growth, could have a material adverse effect on the Company. The Company
needs to undertake physical expansions and capital improvements in order to effectuate
its expansion plans, particularly with regard to the warehousing and distribution of
perishable goods. The Company currently is considering whether to embark on a
43,000+ square foot perishable goods addition to its warehouse in Gardiner, Maine, in

the Fall of 2004.

Dependence on Key Personnel. The Company’s success depends in part upon the
continuity of the Company’s management team, taken as a whole, and the continued
contributions of key management, sales and marketing personnel, certain of whom
would be difficult to replace. The loss of the services of certain of these executives
could have an adverse effect on the Company. There can be no assurance that the
services of such personnel will continue to be available.
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Use of Proceeds for Working Capital; Management Discretion. The proceeds of the
offering are intended to be used for the Company’s working capital needs. This broad
category confers upon management of the Company substantial discretion with respect
to the specific applications of such funds, as to which investors in the Securities will
have very limited influence.

Two Year Offering. The offering of Securities described in this Offering Circular will
be made over a period ending no later than June 30, 2006. Although the Company
intends to amend this Offering Circular to reflect material developments if, as and when
they occur, the Company’s business, financial condition and operating results will be
subject to change during such period.

Absence of Minimum Offering Amount. Because the offering is not subject to or
conditioned upon any minimum level of proceeds, there can be no assurance as to the
adequacy of the proceeds of the offering to address the needs identified in Question
No. 9, “Use of Proceeds.” In 2004, the Company had negative cashflow from the sales
of Excess in the amount of $810,368 due to the cessation of sales pending the
effectiveness of this Offering Circular, unlike the positive funding of $417,325 from the
sales of Excess in 2003. Historically, the Company has relied on a net positive funding
from sales of Excess, and without these funds, the Company would have to look to
other sources, such as bank lending, for funds to repay its debt and support operations.

Note: In addition to the above risks, businesses are often subject to risks not foreseen or fully
appreciated by management. In reviewing this Offering Circular potential investors should keep in mind
other possible risks that could be important.

BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES

3. With respect to the business of the Company and its properties:
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Describe in detail what business the Company does and proposes to do, including what
products or goods are or will be produced or services that are or will be rendered.

Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc. (“AG” or the “Company”) is
principally engaged in the business of purchasing, warehousing, selling and
delivering to its member-stockholders and certain other customers all
groceries and other products generally sold by retail grocers. AG has been in
continuous operation since 1953. Its membership and customer base is
comprised entirely of independent retail grocers—those not part of a
supermarket chain (such as Shaw’s or Hannaford’s). Presently, the vast
majority of AG’s customers are located in the State of Maine. In recent
years, AG has begun to establish relationships with customers located in
New Hampshire, Vermont and Massachusetts, and management presently
intends to expand the Company’s activities in those states.

The Company purchases, warehouses, sells and delivers to its
member-shareholders, on a cooperative basis, a wide array of products sold
by retail grocers, from national and regional brands (such as Proctor &
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Gamble, Nabisco, Hormel, Kraft, General Mills, Jordan and Oakhurst) as
well as private label products sold under the Shurfine label, including meats,
deli products, seafood, bakery items, produce, frozen foods, dairy products,
canned goods and dry groceries. AG’s regular product offerings are
comprised of over 16,000 SKUs (stock keeping units, or individual
products), and it also executes special orders on request. These products are
delivered to and warehoused at AG’s 220,000 square foot facility located in
Gardiner, Maine, and from there are delivered by AG to its customers’ store
locations. The Company’s pricing of its products generally reflects its cost
of goods, plus its gross margin and a warehouse/delivery charge. Billing
terms are generally net 7 days after delivery. Payments are ordinarily
collected by AG’s drivers upon the delivery of the customer’s next order,
although some multi-store accounts with centralized accounting mail in their
payments following delivery.

AG also provides several value-added services to its
member-shareholders / customers that complement its product offerings. AG
personnel regularly visit customers’ stores and provide analyses of
customers’ operations and offer suggestions for revenue enhancement and
cost controls, including merchandising and promotional assistance. AG also
offers assistance in design and expansion planning for customers. The
Company administers for customers’ benefit numerous marketing programs,
including pass-through special pricings, deals and promotions, and
manufacturers’ advertising rebate programs. AG also offers its customers
assistance in preparing, targeting, distributing and implementing newspaper,
direct mail and other advertising. @ The Company also assists its
member-shareholders in setting up automated systems, including point of
sale and direct store delivery systems, to enable more timely and accurate
internal data gathering and product ordering. AG offers assistance to its
member-shareholders in implementing accounting and bookkeeping systems,
generating financial statements and other reports, and obtaining financing for
store improvements and expansions. AG charges on an hourly and cost-plus
basis for certain of such services, including advertising and accounting.
Revenues from advertising services, for example, totaled approximately
$811,000 in the fiscal year ended March 26, 2004, or approximately 0.6% of
total revenues for such period. The Company also performs market research
and analysis to identify locations where existing or potential
member-shareholders might establish retail locations, with or without
assistance from A.G. Development Corp.

Through AG’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Allied Insurance Agency of
Maine, Inc., member-shareholders (and others) can obtain business and
personal insurance coverages, including property insurance, liability
insurance, automobile insurance, bonding for commercial businesses,
workers’ compensation insurance, life insurance and health insurance. AG’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, A.G. Development Corp., leases retail locations
and store equipment and sub-leases those locations and equipment to
qualified  independent  store  operators who  become AG
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member-shareholders; at the current time, no such sub-leases are
outstanding.

Describe how these products or services are to be produced or rendered and how and
when the Company intends to carry out its activities. If the Company plans to offer a
new product(s), state the present stage of development, including whether or not a
working prototype(s) is in existence. Indicate if completion of development of the
product would require a material amount of the resources of the Company, and the
estimated amount. If the Company is or is expected to be dependent upon one or a
limited number of suppliers for essential raw materials, energy or other items,
describe. Describe any major existing supply contracts.

The Company acquires the products it resells to its
member-shareholders from over 2,500 manufacturers, vendors and brokers.
These products are shipped to the Company’s warehouse. In most cases,
discounts ranging from 2 - 2 3/4% of invoice are available for prompt payment;
the Company has historically obtained such discounts, and intends to continue
to do so. Management believes that, due to the diversity of its supplier base
and the availability of alternative sources of supply, none of these individual
arrangements is of such substantial importance to the Company that the loss
thereof would materially and adversely affect the Company’s operations.

The Company warehouses goods received from its vendors at its
220,000 square foot facility located in Gardiner, Maine, which AG owns and
operates. Management is currently considering a 43,000 square foot expansion
of the perishable goods portion of the facility in light of increased demand in
the dairy, frozen, bakery, meat, deli and produce departments, resulting from
higher sales volumes and a change in retail product mix. Bids have been
received indicating a projected cost for such expansion of approximately $5
million. Other than the need to expand the perishable goods portion of the
warehouse, management believes that this facility will otherwise be sufficient
to accommodate additional volume that may result from AG's expansion
activities for the foreseeable future. Construction of this facility is presently
being considered for the Fall of 2004, and management expects that any such
expansion would be financed entirely through bank lending. AG delivers
products to its member-shareholders by means of its 22 truck fleet and
approximately 81 employees involved in warehousing and shipping operations.
The value-added services provided by the Company to its
member-shareholders (see the third and fourth paragraphs of the response to
Question No. 3(a) for more information) are provided both on-site at the
customers’ premises and from the Company’s own offices by approximately 91
of its employees.

Describe the industry in which the Company is selling or expects to sell its products or
services and, where applicable, any recognized trends within that industry. Describe
that part of the industry and the geographic area in which the business competes or
will compete.
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Indicate whether competition is or is expected to be by price, service, or other basis.
Indicate (by attached table if appropriate) the current or anticipated prices or price
ranges for the Company's products or services, or the formula for determining prices,
and how these prices compare with those of competitors' products or services,
including a description of any variations in product or service features. Name the
principal competitors that the Company has or expects to have in its area of
competition. Indicate the relative size and financial and market strengths of the
Company's competitors in the area of competition in which the Company is or will be
operating. State why the Company believes that it can effectively compete with these
and other companies in its area of competition.

The Company competes in the wholesale market for sales of groceries
and other goods and related services to retail grocers. The Company presently
provides its goods and services principally to its member-shareholders located
in Maine, and also provides goods and services to a smaller number of
member-shareholders in New Hampshire, Massachusetts and Vermont. The
Company intends, over the next 12 months, to continue recruiting new
member-shareholders and expanding its activities in New Hampshire,
Massachusetts and Vermont. The trend in the retail grocery industry has been
toward consolidation and expansion by large supermarket chains, which
generate their own sources of supply of goods and services. The chains have
grown or expanded by acquiring independent retail grocers, or by driving
independent grocers out of business through competition. Retail grocers have
also faced increased competition from other store formats, such as mass
merchandisers and discount drug store chains, which, like the supermarket
chains, have their own sources of supply. This competition, while directly
affecting retail grocers, also indirectly (but significantly) affects the
wholesalers, such as AG, that supply them.

The number of wholesalers competing with the Company has declined
over the last 15 years, due to consolidations and decisions by wholesalers to
exit the marketplace.

Competition for the Company’s customer and membership base
(independent retail grocers) is based upon a combination of member discounts,
product quality, product variety and value-added services (see Question No.
3(a)) provided to customers. Management believes that the Company’s prices
are, in most cases, equal to those of its competitors, but that in some instances
Company prices are higher or lower than competitors. Pricing variations are
most often attributable to, and reflect, product quality variations, which in turn
reflect strategic choices made by the wholesaler as to its present and
prospective customers’ relative preferences with respect to these criteria. AG
does not believe that there are significant differences between the products and
services it offers and those offered by its competitors.

The Company’s principal competitors are Hannaford Bros. (the owner
of the Shop & Save supermarket chain, which is headquartered in southern
Maine), Pine State Trading (an Augusta, Maine-based convenience store
supplier and beer distributor), Associated Grocers of New England (a
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cooperative similar to AG based in Manchester, New Hampshire) and C&S
Wholesaler (a large wholesaler based in Vermont, servicing primarily
chain-store accounts). Currently, management believes that C&S has a strong
competitive presence in all four of these states; Hannaford Bros. and Pine State
are strong competitors in all but Massachusetts; while Associated Grocers of
New England plays a significant role only in New Hampshire. Some of these
competitors are substantially larger than AG. Larger size enables these
competitors to buy products in larger quantities and obtain better pricing on
some (but not all) products than is extended to AG and other smaller
wholesalers. However, management believes, based in part on comparisons of
competitors’ invoice prices to retailers, that the larger operators are, in many
cases, less cost-efficient than AG, thereby narrowing or eliminating this initial
pricing advantage. Management expects that the proposed expansion of the
Gardiner, Maine warehouse to handle greater quantities of perishable goods
more efficiently would improve the Company’s ability to compete by reducing
its cost of operations and allowing AG to offer an even larger variety and
quantity of perishable goods to its current and future member-shareholders.
Management also believes that AG can effectively compete in Maine due to
AG’s favorable reputation among customers for delivering more,
higher-quality value-added services to its member-shareholders than do its
principal competitors.

AG also offers advertising assistance, which management believes is
attractive to independent retailers across a wide spectrum of sizes and
strategies. AG has dedicated staff who work with retailers to design, produce
and implement a variety of advertising campaigns and promotions. These
campaigns are primarily centered on print advertising, including newspaper
advertising, custom designed menus, weekly circulars, “bag stuffers” and other
written materials.

Note: Because this Offering Circular focuses primarily on details concerning the Company rather than
the industry in which the Company operates or will operate, potential investors may wish to conduct
their own separate investigation of the Company's industry to obtain broader insight in assessing the
Company's prospects.

@
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Describe specifically the marketing strategies the Company is employing or will
employ in penetrating its market or in developing a new market. Set forth in response
to Question 4 below the timing and size of the results of this effort which will be
necessary in order for the Company to be profitable. Indicate how and by whom its
products or services are or will be marketed (such as by advertising, personal contact
by sales representatives, etc.), how its marketing structure operates or will operate and
the basis of its marketing approach, including any market studies. Name any
customers that account for, or based upon existing orders will account for, a major
portion (20% or more) of the Company's sales. Describe any major existing sales
contracts.

AG intends to employ a variety of methods in expanding its
membership and presence in New Hampshire, Vermont and Massachusetts,
including extensive personal contact by sales representatives with prospective
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members, emphasizing the Company’s price competitiveness, high-quality,
diverse product offerings and value-added services. In addition, the Company
intends to advertise through industry publications and to promote itself at
industry trade shows in each of the states in which the Company is active. AG
intends to continue to pursue these efforts in Maine as well, in order to
maintain and expand its membership in that market. The Company’s
marketing strategies have been developed on the basis of management’s past
experience working in this industry; no specific market studies have been
performed.

Based on recent changes in the New England market, management
believes that the Company can make substantial further inroads into the
northern Massachusetts independent retailer market. SuperValu, formerly a
major supplier in Massachusetts, has left the New England market altogether as
part of an asset swap with C&S Grocers. This transaction enabled C&S to
provide service to SuperValu’s previous customers in New England. C&S has
since closed three of the warehouses formerly used by SuperValu and has
consolidated this business in existing C&S facilities. Much of the SuperValu
business acquired by C&S differs from the C&S business model in that it relies
on deliveries which are less than full truck and requires more frequent
deliveries to customers. Many stores are now. being serviced from more distant
C&S warehouses, which could cause delivery problems. Management believes
that the departure of SuperValu from the New England market and the
difficulties that management believes C&S will have in serving the customers
formerly served by SuperValu create a significant strategic opportunity for the
Company, particularly in connection with expansion into new geographic
areas. In Massachusetts, the Company intends to offer products and services
virtually identical to those currently being offered in Maine, Vermont and New
Hampshire. Management believes that, geographically, further expansion by
AG into northern Massachusetts (particularly the areas bordering New
Hampshire and Vermont) complements its existing operations. AG intends to
focus its efforts in northern Massachusetts on those retailers who would utilize
AG’s customer services and to whom product deliveries would be most
logistically feasible.

The Company has no single customer that accounts for 6% or more of
its annual sales.

State the backlog of written firm orders for products and/or services as of a recent date
(within the last 90 days) and compare it with the backlog of a year ago from that date.

As of: March 26, 2004 $2,515,615

(a recent date—fiscal year end)

As of: March 28, 2003 $2,540,861

(one year earlier)

11
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Explain the reason for significant variations between the two figures, if any. Indicate
what types and amounts of orders are included in the backlog figures. State the size of
typical orders. If the Company's sales are seasonal or cyclical, explain.

Because the economies of the States of Maine, New Hampshire and Vermont
rely heavily on tourism, the Company’s operations (as well as those of many of its
customers) are seasonal in nature. The peak tourism in these states is generally from
Memorial Day weekend through Labor Day weekend, during which period AG’s
volume of sales increases as much as 15% over average weekly figures.

As of March 26, 2004, the Company’s average weekly sales per store are
approximately $7,623 versus an average of $7,284 in the prior year. This increase was
largely the result of lower prices for beef, pork, and dairy products, with the total
quantities of products delivered to existing accounts remaining approximately the same.

Due to the geographical concentration of the Company’s business, its sales
reflect to a substantial degree general and local economic conditions affecting northern
New England, and are, in that respect, cyclical.

State the number of the Company's present employees and the number of employees it
anticipates it will have within the next 12 months. Also, indicate the number by type of
employee (i.e., clerical, operations, administrative, etc.) the Company will use, whether
or not any of them are subject to collective bargaining agreements, and the expiration
date(s) of any collective bargaining agreement(s). If the Company's employees are on
strike, or have been in the past three years, or are threatening to strike, describe the
dispute. Indicate any supplemental benefits or incentive arrangements the Company
has or will have with its employees.

The Company currently has 184 full-time and part-time employees,
and does not anticipate any significant change in that number within the next
12 months. The Company’s employees break down along functional lines as

follows:
Management 11
Clerical 35
Administrative 45
Operations 55
Drivers 26

Warehouse operations and driver personnel are members of the International
Brotherhood of Teamsters. The Company and the unionized employees
negotiated a contract that expires on August 31, 2006.

The only significant supplemental benefit program which the
Company makes available to its employees is a profit sharing bonus program
extended to management, whereby the management team may be entitled to
receive a bonus equal to 10% of their base salary based on individual and
Company performance in that year. The Company has made six distributions
under this program: with respect to fiscal year 1996-97, an aggregate amount of
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$52,661, with respect to fiscal year 1997-98, an aggregate amount of $77,131,
and with respect to fiscal year 1998-99, an aggregate amount of $92,126, with
respect to fiscal year 1999-2000, no distribution was made, with respect to
fiscal year 2000-2001, an aggregate amount of $41,376 was paid, with respect
to fiscal year 2001-2002, an aggregate amount of $54,000 was distributed, and
with respect to fiscal year 2002-2003, an aggregate amount of $35,950 was
distributed, and with respect to fiscal year 2003-2004, an aggregate amount of
$51,838 was distributed.

Describe generally the principal properties (such as real estate, plant and equipment,
patents, etc.) that the Company owns, indicating also what properties it leases and a
summary of the terms under those leases, including the amount of payments, expiration
dates and the terms of any renewal options. Indicate what properties the Company
intends to acquire in the immediate future, the cost of such acquisitions and the sources
of financing it expects to use in obtaining these properties, whether by purchase, lease
or otherwise.

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, A.G. Development Corp.,
owns a 122.6-acre commercial/industrial park facility in Gardiner, Maine. The
park is mortgaged to secure indebtedness of the Company under an Urban
Development Action Grant obligation provided through the City of Gardiner,
Maine, which obligation had an aggregate outstanding balance of $569,302 as
of March 26, 2004. The book value of the land and improvements at the park
(excluding AG’s premises) as of March 26, 2004 was approximately $75,000,
with a market value, in management’s opinion, of approximately $75,000. AG
itself owns its facility, which is located within the A. G. Development Corp.
commercial/industrial park, and which is comprised of the Company’s
executive offices, as well as its 220,000 square foot warehousing and shipping
facilities. The facility includes modern frozen and refrigerated goods storage
equipment and automated product handling equipment, and is in good repair.
Management believes, however, that the efficiency of the Company’s
operations, and the quality and diversity of product that it can offer to its
customers, would be improved by an expansion of this facility’s ability to
handle perishable goods. This expansion, which would add an additional
43,000 square feet to the warehouse, is currently being considered by
management of the Company for the Fall of 2004. Such an expansion would
not affect the ability of the Company to continue its normal operations, but
would require the Company to incur approximately $5,000,000 in additional
bank debt. The expansion would allow the Company to better respond to
increased demand in the market for greater quantities and greater variety of
product in the dairy, frozen, bakery, meat, deli and produce departments.
Management believes that the property is sufficient to accommodate the
additional volume of non-perishable goods that may result from the Company’s
activities in the foreseeable future. This property has been mortgaged to secure
the Company’s bank indebtedness. See “Capitalization”. Management
believes that the current fair market value of this facility is approximately $10
million, based in part on an appraisal of the property performed in 1998 in
connection with the Master Loan and Security Agreement by and between the
Company and Fleet National Bank, dated May 12, 1998. The facility was
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originally constructed for a total cost (including subsequent improvements) of
approximately $5,800,000.

As part of the Company’s retail development strategy, A. G.
Development Corp. may purchase or enter into leases of retail grocery sites
with a view to subleasing them to qualified retailers who would then become
member-shareholders and purchase their inventory from the Company. A.G.
Development Corp. i1s not presently party to any such agreement, but the
Company has provided a guarantee for the payment of $5,000 per month in
lease payments by sub-tenant in a similar arrangement for a retail property
located in Skowhegan, Maine, until the year 2006.

In addition, the Company has leased, from a variety of sources,
computers and other office equipment, as well as vehicles and forklifts, for use
in its operations. The future minimum rental payments occurring under these
leases total approximately $2,662,000 as of March 26 2004; management
believes that the total of future minimum rental payments has not materially
changed as of the date hereof. Although the company may lease additional
tractor trailers to replace similar items that are no longer useable, management
does not anticipate the need for substantial new lease obligations in the near
future.

Indicate the extent to which the Company's operations depend or are expected to
depend upon patents, copyrights, trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary
information and the steps undertaken to secure and protect this intellectual property,

including any use of confidentiality agreements, covenants-not-to-compete and the like.

Summarize the principal terms and expiration dates of any significant license
agreements. Indicate the amounts expended by the Company for research and
development during the last fiscal year, the amount expected to be spent this year and
what percentage of revenues research and development expenditures were for the last
fiscal year.

There are no significant items of intellectual property in the
Company’s business, nor is it a party to any significant license agreements.
The Company does not expend any of its funds on research and development
activities, as the success of its business does not depend on such efforts.

If the Company’s business, products, or properties are subject to material regulation
(including environmental regulation) by federal, state, or local governmental agencies,
indicate the nature and extent of regulation and its effects or potential effects upon the
Company.

The Company is subject to customary health inspections by the United
States Department of Agriculture with respect to its handling and
storage practices for certain products.  Although it, like other
businesses, is also subject to occupational safety, environmental, land
use and other regulation, management does not believe that
compliance with such regulations involves material expense or
substantial burdens on the Company’s operations, other than as set
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forth in paragraph (10) under “Risk Factors”. The principal regulatory
agencies to which the Company is responsible are as follows: The
Maine Department of Environmental Protection, the Maine
Department of Labor, the Maine Liquor Commission, the Maine
Transportation Department, the U.S. Occupational Safety and Health
Administration, the U.S. Department of Labor, the U.S. Department of
Agriculture and U.S Department of Justice--Federal Drug and
Enforcement Agency.

The Company’s subsidiary, Allied Insurance Agency, is subject to
supervision by the Maine Bureau of Insurance. The insurance
products sold by Allied Insurance Agency are described in the
response to Question No. 3(a).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has, to management’s
knowledge, committed any material regulatory violations.

State the names of any subsidiaries of the Company, their business purposes and
ownership, and indicate which are included in the Financial Statements attached
hereto. If not included, or if included but not consolidated, please explain.

1. Allied Insurance Agency of Maine, Inc., 100% of stock owned by AG.
Engaged in the insurance agency business, principally providing
commercial and personal coverages to AG’s customers, their
employees and the general public. This entity was formed in 1973,
and accounted for less than 2% of AG’s consolidated revenues for
fiscal 2003-04. This corporation has never been found to be in
violation of Maine insurance regulations.

2. A.G. Development Corp., 100% of stock owned by the Company.
Engaged in leasing and subleasing real property and machinery and
equipment to the Company and its customers. This entity was formed
in 1973, and there was no activity in fiscal 2003-04.

The financial condition and operating results of Allied and A. G.
Development Corp. are included in the Company’s consolidated Financial
Statements attached hereto. The Company also owns, as of March 26, 2004,
2,942 shares of class C stock in Associated Wholesalers, Inc. (“"AWT”), a
Pennsylvania-based grocery and health and beauty care distribution
cooperative, and 194,613 shares of nonvoting common stock and 1 share of
voting stock in Westemn Family Holding Company (“Western Family”), the
parent organization of Western Family Foods, Inc., a grocery distribution
cooperative based in Oregon. These both represent minority interests in such
entities. AWI and Western Family are cooperatives that require stock
ownership as a precondition to the purchase of goods from them. The AWI
stock and the Western Family stock were acquired for $80,956 and $194,713,
respectively. AG used to purchase its health and beauty care products on a
cross dock/central billing basis from AWIL AG buys its private label (Shurfine)
products from Western Family.

15



(k) Summarize the material events in the development of the Company (including any
material mergers or acquisitions) during the past five years, or for whatever lesser
period the Company has been in existence. Discuss any pending or anticipated
mergers, acquisitions, spin-offs or recapitalizations. If the Company has recently
undergone a stock split, stock dividend or recapitalization in anticipation of this
offering, describe (and adjust historical per share figures elsewhere in this Offering
Circular accordingly).

The Company has not experienced any such events in the past five
years, and no such events or transactions are presently pending or anticipated.

4. (@) If the Company was not profitable during its last fiscal year, list below in
chronological order the events which in management's opinion must or should occur
or the milestones which in management's opinion the Company must or should reach
in order for the Company to become profitable, and indicate the expected manner of
occurrence or the expected method by which the Company will achieve the
milestones.

Not applicable.
OFFERING PRICE FACTORS

If the securities offered are common stock, or are exercisable for or convertible into common
stock, the following factors may be relevant to the price at which the securities are being
offered.

5. What were net, after-tax earnings for the last fiscal year? (If losses, show in parenthesis.)
Total $183,853.

0. If the Company had profits, show offering price as a multiple of earnings. Adjust to reflect for
any stock splits or recapitalizations, and use conversion or exercise price in lieu of offering
price, if applicable.

Not applicable — Securities are debt instruments.

7. (a) What is the net tangible book value of the Company? (If deficit, show in parenthesis.)
For this purpose, net tangible book value means total assets (exclusive of copyrights,
patents, goodwill, research and development costs and similar intangible items) minus
total liabilities.

$2,435,535 as of March 26, 2004 (net of deferred taxes ($324,700) and
deferred financing ($8,628)).

If the net tangible book value per share is substantially less than this offering (or exercise or
conversion) price per share, explain the reasons for the variation.

Not applicable.
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(b)

8. (@)

{W0253011.6}

State the dates on which the Company sold or otherwise issued securities during the
last 12 months, the amount of such securities sold, the number of persons to whom they
were sold, any relationship of such persons to the Company at the time of sale, the
price at which they were sold and, if not sold for cash, a concise description of the
consideration. (Exclude bank debt.)

During the one year period preceding the date of this Offering Circular, the
Company issued $1,169,107 in principal amount (gross) of its Variable Rate
Subordinated Notes (Excess) to approximately 175 purchasers, all of whom were
customers and shareholders of the Company. No such instruments were sold during
the period between September 16, 2003 and the date hereof. During the same period,
the Company sold 8 Class A shares to & customers of the Company, for total
consideration in the amount of $20,216, and 17 Class B shares to 16 customers of the
Company, for total consideration in the amount of $42,500. All sales were for cash.

For all sales occurring after September 16, 2003, the Company has revised the
terms of the Class A and Class B shares such that they will no longer be considered
securities within the definition of the *33 Act, by eliminating the rights of the holders of
such shares to receive dividends, whether ordinary or otherwise. (This change affects
all holders of Class A and Class B shares, whether purchased before or after
September 16, 2003.) Although the Class A and Class B shares are labeled as “stock”,
they actually represent membership interests in the Company, and purchase thereof is
generally required before a retailer may purchase from the Company. Purchasers of the
Class A and Class B shares do not purchase the shares to realize a financial return on
their investment therein, but to gain the commercial advantages of being able to
purchase from the Company. Payment of ordinary dividends is inconsistent with this
purpose, and, for *33 Act purposes, increases the likelihood that the Class A shares and
Class B shares are securities. As a result, the bylaws of the Company have been
amended to eliminate the dividend rights of the holders of Class A and Class B shares.

As described elsewhere in this Offering Circular, the Company will be offering
rescission to all purchasers of the above instruments during the period between
March 28, 2003 and September 16, 2003. The total value of all such instruments
subject to such rescission offer is $1,231,823. Of such rescission instruments,
$337,344 in original purchase price are held by seven (7) directors of the Company (or
persons owned, affiliated or operated by such three directors), and none are held by its
executive officers; the Company does not expect that any such directors or affiliated
persons will seek rescission in connection with any such rescission instruments.

What percentage of the outstanding shaves of the Company will the investors in this
offering have? (Assume exercise of outstanding options, warrants or rights and
conversion of convertible securities, if the respective exercise or conversion prices are
at or less than the offering price. Also assume exercise of any options, warrants or
rights and conversions of any convertible securities offered in this offering.)

Not applicable — Securities are debt instruments.
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9. (a)
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What post-offering value is management implicitly attributing to the entire Company by
establishing the price per security set forth on the cover page (or exercise or
conversion price if common stock is not offered)? (Total outstanding shares after
offering times offering price, or exercise or conversion price if common stock is not

offered.)
If maximum is sold: Not applicable — Securities are debt instruments.

(For above purposes, assume outstanding options are exercised in determining
"shares" if the exercise prices are at or less than the offering price. All convertible
securities, including outstanding convertible securities, shall be assumed converted
and any options, warrants or rights in this offering shall be assumed exercised.)

* These values assume that the Company's capital structure would be changed to
reflect any conversions of outstanding convertible securities and any use of outstanding
securities as payment in the exercise of outstanding options, warrants or rights
included in the calculation. The type and amount of convertible or other securities thus
eliminated would be: Not applicable.

These values also assume an increase in cash in the Company by the amount of any
cash payments that would be made upon cash exercise of options, warrants or rights
included in the calculations. The amount of such cash would be: Not applicable.

Note: After reviewing the above, potential investors should consider whether or not the
offering price (or exercise or conversion price, if applicable) for the securities is
appropriate at the present stage of the Company's development.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table sets forth the use of the proceeds from this offering:
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If Maximum

Sold

Amount %
Total Proceeds $3,768,177(1) 100%
Less: Offering Expenses
Commissions and Finders Fees $0
Legal & Accounting $10,000
Copying & Advertising $1,000
Other (Specify): $0
Net Proceeds from Offering $3,757,177
Use of Net Proceeds
Working capital $3,757,177(2) 100%
Total Use of Net Proceeds 3,757,17 100%

(1

@)

Total maximum cash proceeds to the Company in light of (i) prior sales and (ii) the rescission
offer. As described more fully elsewhere in this Offering Circular, during the 30-day period
commencing on the date of this Offering Circular, the Company is offering rescission to those
persons who purchased securities of the Company in the period between March 28, 2003 and
March 26, 2004 for a total of up to $1,231,823. As discussed in Section 2(11) above, the
Company does not anticipate that any significant amount of such securities will be tendered for
repurchase, because all such securities are demand instruments, and the rescission offer will not
materially affect the economic rights of the holders thereof. However, in the event that any
such securities are tendered for repurchase, the Company intends to utilize its existing cash
together with, to the extent necessary, proceeds of this offering to fund such repurchases.

None of the proceeds of the offering will be paid to officers or directors of the Company or their
affiliates or associates. Officers and directors of the Company will be extended rescission
offers for Securities in the aggregate amount of $337,344, as discussed in Section 7(b) above.

(b) If there is no minimum amount of proceeds that must be raised before the Company
may use the proceeds of the offering, describe the order of priority in which the
proceeds set forth above in the column "If Maximum Sold" will be used.

In the event and to the extent that any of the rescission offerees exercise their rights
(see note (1) to table in Question No. 9(a)), because any such transactions would occur
within the 30-day period beginning on the date of this Offering Circular, the Company
would first apply cash and available borrowings under its line of credit to effectuate
such rescissions, and, to the extent necessary, proceeds of the offering. However, as
discussed above and in Section 2(10) hereof, management does not anticipate that a
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substantial number of rescissions will occur. If that proves to be the case, management
intends to apply the proceeds of the offering to the following uses, in the following
order of priority:

1. Purchasing inventory for resale;

2. Repayment of line of credit and other indebtedness;

3. Funding of operating expenses (e.g., payroll, benefits, utilities, taxes);

4. Acquisition of machinery and equipment in the ordinary course of business.

Such uses may be subject to change, due to unanticipated fluctuations in the
Company’s operating revenues or expenses. Because (i) the Company funds its needs
from four sources—operating revenues, borrowings under its line of credit, required
capital deposits and share purchases by member-shareholders, and proceeds from sales
of Securities—and the proceeds of such efforts are essentially fungible, and (ii) the
offering is being conducted for a period ending no later than June 30, 2006, and
therefore the timing of receipt by the Company of proceeds pursuant to the offering is
uncertain, it is difficult to earmark with precision the ultimate application of these
proceeds. However, the Company received negative proceeds of $1,285,000 in 2004
and positive proceeds of $575,000 in 2003 from sales of Excess, Class A and Class B
Shares, and factor capital deposits (net of redemptions), while paying out annual
interest on its Excess and factor capital deposits of $345,000 and $415,000,
respectively; thus, to that extent, it has historically been dependent upon such proceeds
for the funding of its operations. See Question No. 2(17). A portion of the proceeds of
the offering might be used to fund the interest payments on securities sold in this
offering; again, as the funds of the Company are essentially fungible, it is difficult to
quantify such amount. However, if the full amount of the Excess had been outstanding
in Fiscal 2004, the Company would have paid an additional $169,568 in interest
thereupon, which figure is a fair approximation (assuming no substantial changes to the
interest rate payable) of the maximum amount of interest that might be paid, per annum,
from the proceeds of this offering.

Note: After reviewing the portion of the offering allocated to the payment of offering expenses,
and to the immediate payment to management and promoters of any fees, reimbursements, past
salaries or similar payments, a potential investor should consider whether the remaining
portion of his investment, which would be that part available for future development of the
Company's business and operations, would be adequate.

10. (a)

{w0253011.6)

If material amounts of funds from sources other than this offering are to be used in
conjunction with the proceeds from this offering, state the amounts and sources of such
other funds, and whether funds are firm or contingent. If contingent, explain.

Historically, the Company’s working capital requirements have been fulfilled
through funds generated from the Company’s operations (sales revenues) and
borrowings under the Company’s $6,000,000 revolving line of credit and a $2,000,000
revolving term loan with Fleet Bank (see Question Nos. 17(a)(7) and 19)), augmented
by proceeds from sales of its securities and required capital deposits to its
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member-shareholders. During the fiscal years ended in March 2003, March 2002,
March 2001, March 2000 and March 1999, respectively, the Company received
proceeds from such sales of Securities and required capital deposits/member share
purchases, net of redemptions and principal repayments, totaling $575,000, $598,000,
$65,000, $1,357,000, and $300,088, respectively. In contrast, during fiscal year 2004,
the Company had negative proceeds of $810,368 from sales and redemptions of Excess,
and $474,339 from sales and redemptions of required capital deposits and member
share purchases, due primarily to the necessity of suspending the sale of Class A shares,
Class B shares and Excess and the acceptance of capital deposits, to comply with
federal securities laws. In the absence of member resignations (with the concomitant
redemption of the required capital deposits and Excess) and principal repayments of
Securities substantially in excess of historical levels, or unforeseen events negatively
affecting the Company’s ability to borrow under its line of credit, management believes
that such sources will be adequate for the Company’s working capital needs. During the
fiscal year ended March 26, 2004, the Company had cash provided by operations of
$424 388, had cash used from investing activities of $573,767, increased indebtedness
by $1,495,522 and had $1,284,737 in negative proceeds from net sales of Securities and
required capital deposits/member share purchases, and paid dividends (prior to the
termination of dividend rights on Class A and Class B shares) of $48,223. This
resulted in increasing cash by $13,183. During the preceding fiscal year, higher
percentages of working capital were provided by net proceeds from sales of Securities
and required capital deposits/member share purchases.

If any material part of the proceeds is to be used to discharge indebtedness, describe
the terms of such indebtedness, including interest rates. If the indebtedness to be
discharged was incurred within the current or previous fiscal year, describe the use of
the proceeds of such indebtedness.

As reflected in Question No. 9(b), the Company may apply a portion of the
proceeds from the offering to discharge indebtedness. It is anticipated that such
repayments would involve principally:

€3] repayments of Securities upon demand by the holders due to the
holders’ seasonal cash needs, which have historically totaled $1.1-2.0 million per year.
(See Question No. 17 for discussion of interest rates and other terms of the Securities);

2) repayments of amounts outstanding under the Company’s line of credit
with Fleet Bank, which bear interest at Fleet Bank’s prime lending rate or a
LIBOR-based rate (at the Company’s option), as such rates may vary from time to time,
and are subject to the terms of the Master Loan and Security Agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”), dated as of May 12, 1998, as amended by the First Amendment to Master
Loan and Security Agreement dated October 26, 2000, and the Second Amendment to
Master Loan and Security Agreement dated October 24, 2002, between the Company
and Fleet National Bank, which is summarized below.

Under the Loan Agreement, the Company may borrow an amount equal to 85%
of its qualifying accounts receivable plus 55% of its qualifying inventory, subject to a
maximum of $6 million. Also, there is another $2,000,000 line of credit which (i) may
be applied to fund up to 80% of the purchase price of machinery and equipment, and
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(i1) the Company may re-lend to member stores, subject to requirements with respect to
the collateral that must be provided by such member stores. The maturity date of the
facilities is September 30, 2004. The Company’s obligations under the Loan
Agreement are secured by a lien on substantially all of the Company’s assets, and are
senior in right of payment to the Securities.

Other than with respect to term loans created under the sub-facilities, the
Company’s payment obligations under the Loan Agreement will consist of monthly
payments of interest, with principal subject to repayment at maturity on September 30,
2004 unless the Loan Agreement is renewed by Fleet prior thereto. The Company can
prepay principal at any time without penalty or premium, and (subject to compliance
with the borrowing formula described above and the absence of any default under the
Loan Agreement) can reborrow principal amounts previously paid.

The Loan Agreement contains customary default provisions, including
cross-defaults tied to other obligations of the Company, which entitle Fleet Bank to
demand immediate payment in full. The Loan Agreement also contains customary
affirmative and negative covenants relating to the Company’s business operations and
financial condition, including requirements that the Company’s (i) minimum debt
service coverage ratio be not less than 1.25, (i) minimum tangible net worth be more
than $2,662,192 plus 25% of current years after-tax earnings. The Company met all the
financial covenants for the year ended March 26, 2004 and the year ended March 28,
2003, and including in each quarter of Fiscal 2004. Please see the response to Question
17(c)(7) for a brief discussion of the tangible net worth requirements under the Loan
Agreement.

3 Repayments of amounts outstanding under the Indenture and Loan
Agreement between the Company and the City of Gardiner, Maine, dated as of May 7,
1985 (the “UDAG Loan Agreement”). Under the UDAG Loan Agreement, (i) funds
borrowed by the Company bear interest at a rate of eight percent (8%) per annum, and
(i) the Company is required to make quarterly payments of $23,200 until November
2005, and thereafter any balance remaining must be paid by January 2006. The
Company’s obligations under the UDAG Loan Agreement are secured by a second
mortgage and lien on substantially all of the Company’s land, buildings, fixtures and
equipment, pursuant to a Second Mortgage Note by and between the City of Gardiner
and the Company dated as of May 7, 1985, and a Second Security Agreement by and
between the City of Gardiner and the Company dated as of May 7, 1985 (the UDAG
Loan Agreement, the Second Mortgage Note and the Second Security Agreement
referred to herein collectively as the “UDAG Loan Documentation”) . The Company
can prepay interest or principal at any time without penalty or premium, with the prior
consent of the City of Gardiner.

The UDAG Loan Documentation contains customary default provisions,
including cross-defaults tied to other obligations of the Company, which entitle the City
to demand immediate payment in full.

If any material amount of the proceeds is to be used to acquire assets, other than in the
ordinary course of business, briefly describe and state the cost of the assets and other
material terms of the acquisitions. If the assets are to be acquired from officers,
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directors, employees or principal stockholders of the Company or their associates, give
the names of the persons from whom the assets are to be acquired and set forth the cost
to the Company, the method followed in determining the cost, and any profit to such
Dersons.

Not applicable.
If any amount of the proceeds is to be used to reimburse any officer, director, employee
or stockholder for services already rendered, assets previously transferred, or monies

loaned or advanced, or otherwise, explain:

Not applicable.

11 Indicate whether the Company is having or anticipates having within the next 12 months any
cash flow or liquidity problems and whether or not it is in default or in breach of any note,
loan, lease or other indebtedness or financing arrangement requiring the Company to make
payments. Indicate if a significant amount of the Company's trade payables have not been paid
within the stated trade term. State whether the Company is subject to any unsatisfied
Judgments, liens or settlement obligations and the amounts thereof. Indicate the Company's
plans to resolve any such problems.

{w0253011.8}

The Company is not presently experiencing cash flow or liquidity problems,
nor, based on currently available information, does management anticipate such
problems within the next 12 months. Although the Company has experienced lower
than expected levels of funding for Excess purchases by members and purchases of
Class A shares, Class B shares and required capital deposits due to delays associated
with the Company’s efforts to comply with the federal securities laws, the Company
has been able to make up such lost funding by increasing its borrowing under its line of
credit. One consequence of this has been reduced interest expense to the Company
during the last fiscal year.

As discussed elsewhere in this Offering Circular, a substantial portion of the
Company’s subordinated indebtedness is, by its terms, payable on demand (see
“Capitalization” and “Description of Securities”). In addition, under certain
circumstances, the Company’s ability to make additional borrowings under its bank
credit facility could be restricted, and the lender is entitled, in the event of a default by
the Company or the lender’s good faith determination that it is insecure with respect to
the prospect of repayment, to require the repayment of all amounts outstanding under
such facility. See Question No. 10(b). Management has received no indication that any
significant erosions of its cash position are likely to occur as a result of demands for
repayment of subordinated indebtedness, or that the Company’s bank lender has, or is
likely in the foreseeable future to have, any basis for restricting the Company’s
borrowings or requiring repayment of the amounts outstanding under the line of credit.

The Company’s bank credit facility with Fleet Bank will terminate on
September 30, 2004 and all amounts owed thereunder will become due and payable at
such time, unless the facility is renewed by Fleet prior to such date. Management
believes, based on preliminary discussions with Fleet, that the line of credit will be
extended if the Company so requests. Should the Company decide not to so renew, or

23



if Fleet should decline to renew the facilities, management believes that the Company
could obtain similar financing on similar rates and terms through another commercial
lender.

In addition to its obligations under the above financing agreements, the
Company is also required, when a customer terminates its relationship with the
Company or otherwise becomes ineligible to purchase from the Company, to repay
the “factor” capital deposits (the “Factor”) and the Excess. To the extent that a
customer significantly reduces its average weekly purchases from the Company, this
will also trigger an obligation on the part of the Company to repay any excess
amounts held as Factor beyond the required level, which is three (3) times the
customer’s average weekly purchases from the Company, up to a maximum of
$50,000. Repayment of Factor generally occurs within six weeks of the triggering
event or the last product delivery to such customer, whichever is later, while amounts
held as Excess are repaid to the customer immediately upon demand. At such time,
the Company also has the right, but not the obligation, to repurchase the Class A and
Class B shares owned by such customer. The Company has generally repurchased
such shares as a matter of course within six weeks of the termination of the
relationship with the customer. The Company has received no indications that
customers with significant Factor balances are likely to terminate or curtail their
relationships with the Company such that the cash position of the Company will be
adversely affected in a material way.

12. Indicate whether proceeds from this offering will satisfy the Company's cash requirements for
the next 12 months, and whether it will be necessary to raise additional funds. State the source

of additional funds, if known.

{w0253011.6}

Management presently estimates capital expenditures totaling $419,000 during
the next 12 months, with an additional expenditure of approximately $5 million being
required if the Company decides to go ahead with an expansion of the Company’s
Gardiner, Maine, warehouse facility. Funds for this project will be raised exclusively
through bank financing. With regard to all other capital expenditures, management
anticipates that, based on the Company’s historical operating revenues, borrowing
capacity under its line of credit, the proceeds from the sale of the securities described in
this Offering Circular will satisfy the Company’s cash requirements for the next 12
months. Management’s expectation is based on the Company’s experience in previous
fiscal years. Although in fiscal 2004, the Company had a net negative income of
approximately $810,400 as a result of redemptions by members of Excess deposits, this
loss was the direct result of the Company’s being compelled, pursuant to the Securities
Act of 1933, to suspend the sale of Excess capital deposits as of September 16, 2003
pending the qualification of this offering circular. In fiscal 2003, sales of Excess (net of
redemptions) realized proceeds of $417,325 (see Question No. 10(a)).

Net proceeds from the sale of Excess, if any, would likely be used to reduce the

Company’s bank indebtedness. Management would seek to cover any shortfalls by
increasing borrowings under the Company’s line of credit with Fleet Bank.
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CAPITALIZATION

13. Indicate the capitalization of the Company as of the most recent balance sheet date (adjusted to
reflect any subsequent stock splits, stock dividends, recapitalizations or refinancings) and as
adjusted to reflect the sale of the minimum and maximum amount of securities in this offering
and the use of the net proceeds therefrom:

Amount Outstanding
As of: As Adjusted
3/26/04 Maximum(1)
Debt:
Short-term debt (average
interest rate 3.10%) $4,530,000 $4,530,000
Long-term debt (average
interest rate 8.00%) 569,302 569,302
Required Capital deposits (average
interest rate 4.5%) (“Factor”)(2) 4,089,136 4,089,136
Variable rate subordinated debt securities
(Excess) (average interest rate 4.5%) 2,625,404 6,393,581
Total debt $11,813,842 $15,582,019
Membership Interests:
Class B Nonvoting Preferred Stock - par or stated
value (by class of preferred in order of preferences)
Preferred stock - $2,500 stated value 965,000 965,000
Preferred stock subscribed - $2,500
stated value 225,000 225,000
Class A Voting Common Stock--par
value $1,500 per share 357,000 357,000
Additional paid in capital 227,459 227,459
Retained earnings 1,219.404 1,219,404
2,993,863 2,993,863
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Less: Preferred stock subscribed 225.000 225,000

Total members’ equity 2,768,863 2.768.863
Total Capitalization $14,582,705 $18,350,882

D The “As Adjusted Maximum” disclosure assumes that all securities subject to rescission will be
recorded and does not anticipate additional debt which may be required if the company
proceeds with its proposed facilities expansion.

@ Factor and Excess are allocated according to the required level of Factor for the customer in
question. Each customer must maintain a level of Factor equal to three times their weekly
purchases in the previous year, up to a maximum of $50,000.

Number of preferred shares
authorized to be outstanding:

Number of Par Value
Class of Preferred Shares Authorized Per Share
1,600 Class B Non-
Voting Preferred Stock 1,600 $2,500 (par value)

Number of common shares authorized: 800 shares. Par or stated value per share, if any: $1,500

Number of common shares reserved to meet conversion requirements or for the issuance upon exercise
of options, warrants or rights: 0 shares.

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

14, The securities being offered hereby are:

[1] Common Stock

[] Preferred or Preference Stock

X] Notes or Debentures (one class: Variable Rate Subordinated Debt Securities
(Excess))

[1] Units of two or more types of securities, composed of:

[] Other:

Explain:

The purchase price for the Variable Rate Subordinated Debt Securities (Excess) may
be paid in cash or, at the option of the purchaser, through the addition of a 1% surcharge on
each invoice from the Company to the holder for goods purchased. The interest rate and
payment provisions, the maturity and the subordination provisions relating to the Variable
Rate Subordinated Notes are set forth in Question No. 17(a) below. Upon liquidation of the
Company, the Variable Rate Subordinated Debt Securities (Excess) would be subject to
repayment in full after the payment in full of all of the Company’s outstanding senior
indebtedness (including but not limited to its bank indebtedness) and before any distribution
may be made in respect of the Class A shares and the Class B shares. All Excess capital
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deposits (plus accrued but unpaid interest thereon) are subject to payment in full upon

demand by the holder.
15. These securities have.
Yes No
(] (X1 Cumulative voting rights
[] X] Other special voting rights
L] [X] Preemptive rights to purchase in new issues of shares
[] [X] Preference as to dividends or interest
X1 1] Preference upon liquidation
[] [X] Other special rights or preferences

Explain: See Question Nos. 14 and 17 concerning the liquidation preferences of the Securities.
16. Are the securities convertible? [] Yes [X] No

17. (a) If securities are notes or other types of debt securities:
(1) What is the interest rate? %
If interest rate is variable or multiple rates, describe.

The Securities bear interest at rates established by the Company’s board of directors
from time to time. The Securities may only be purchased by persons who have purchased the
required level of Class A shares (ownership of one share of Class A stock is required, at a
current cost of $2,527) and Class B shares in the Company (ownership of two shares of Class B
stock is required, at a current cost of $2,500 each) and that have made the required capital
deposit (“Factor”) with the Company (equal to three times the holder’s average weekly
purchases of goods from the Company up to a maximum of $50,000), to serve as security for
purchases by such member. Interest on the Excess is paid at a rate equal to the average rate paid
on six (6) month “Treasury Bill” securities as reported in The Wall Street Journal (in the
“Money Rates” section) on April 1% and October 1* of each year, or the next business day
following those dates, plus 3.50%. The rate shall be determined semi-annually and shall apply
with respect to the preceding semi-annual period. Interest on the Excess is payable
semi-annually in arrears on June 15 and December 15.

(2) What is the maturity date? [

If serial maturity dates, describe:
The Excess is payable upon demand by the holder, plus accrued interest thereon.
3) Is there a mandatory sinking fund? [ ] Yes [X] No Describe:

(4) Is there a trust indenture? [] Yes [X] No
Name, address and telephone number of Trustee

) Are the securities callable or subject to redemption?
[X]Yes [ ] No Describe, including redemption prices:
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The Securities are subject to repurchase by the Company in the event that the holder
resigns or becomes ineligible. A holder may become ineligible by ceasing to be engaged in the
retail sale of food items, or if such member is determined, by a vote of at least two-thirds of the
members of the Company’s board of directors, to have conducted such member’s retail food
business in a manner “inimical to the purpose and policies of the Company,” such as by not
fulfilling its payment obligations to the Company for deliveries of product. Any such
repurchase shall include payment of all accrued but unpaid interest on the Securities in

question.

(©)

(7)

{W0253011.6}

Are the securities collateralized by real or personal property?
[]1Yes [X] No Describe:

If these securities are subordinated in right of payment of interest or principal,
explain the terms of such subordination.

The Securities are subordinated to the prior payment in full of the
Company’s indebtedness to Fleet Bank under its line of credit and to the
Company’s indebtedness to the City of Gardiner, Maine under the UDAG
Loan Documentation.

Under the Fleet Bank line of credit, $4,530,000 was outstanding as of
March 26, 2004, and the Company had additional borrowing capability under
the line of credit of $1,470,000. The Company is entitled to make payments of
principal and interest on the Securities as and when required (but not merely
permitted) under the terms of the Securities, so long as at the time of such
payment (or as a consequence of such payment) the Company is not in default
under any of the terms of the line of credit. Such permitted payments would
include regular scheduled payments of interest on the Securities, as well as
repayments of principal on demand. Events of default under the line of credit
include, but are not limited to, (i) the failure by the Company to pay principal
or interest under the line of credit or any other indebtedness of the Company
when due, (i) the commencement of certain bankruptey or similar proceedings
by or against the Company, (iii) if the Company’s minimum debt service
coverage ratio falls below 1.25:1 (such ratio was 1.99:1 as of March 26, 2004),
(iv) if the Company’s minimum tangible net worth drops below $2,662,192
plus 25% of the Company’s after-tax earnings (requirement equaled
$2,708,155.25 as of March 26, 2004, when tangible net worth as calculated
under the terms of the loan agreement was $2,802,285), or (v) the Company
fails to observe certain other operational and reporting covenants. With regard
to the tangible net worth covenant, the Company has met the requirements as
of March 28, 2003 (requirement equaled $2,628,000, when tangible net worth
as calculated under the terms of the loan agreement was $2,662,192), and as of
March 29, 2002 (requirement equaled $1,979,000, when tangible net worth as
calculated under the terms of the loan agreement was $2,204,810).
Management does not presently expect that the net worth of the Company will
fall below the level required by this covenant, and do not expect to be in
default under the line of credit in the foreseeable future. See Question Nos.

9(b), 10(b).
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Under the Urban Development Action Grant loan from the City of
Gardiner, $569,302 was outstanding as of March 26, 2004. Pursuant to the
Company’s obligations under the UDAG Loan Documentation, the Company
is required to make quarterly payments of $23,200 until November 2005, and
thereafter any balance remaining must be paid on or before January 2006. The
Company’s obligations under the UDAG Loan Documentation are secured by a
lien on substantially all of the Company’s land, buildings, fixtures and
equipment. The Company can prepay interest or principal at any time without
penalty or premium, with the consent of the City of Gardiner. Under the
UDAG Loan Documentation, there is no restriction on the ability of the
Company to make payments of principal and interest on the Securities as set
forth herein.

How much currently outstanding indebtedness of the Company is senior to the
securities in right of payment of interest or principal?  $5,099,302 (as of
March 26, 2004).

How much indebtedness shares in right of payment on an equivalent (pari
passu) basis? $13,333,679 (as of March 26, 2004).

How much indebtedness is junior (subordinated) to the securities? $0.

(b) If notes or other types of debt securities are being offered and the Company had
earnings during its last fiscal year, show the ratio of earnings to fixed charges on an
actual and pro forma basis for that fiscal year. "Earnings" means pretax income from
continuing operations plus fixed charges and capitalized interest. "Fixed charges"
means interest (including capitalized interest), amortization of debt discount, premium
and expense, preferred stock dividend requirements of majority owned subsidiary, and
such portion of rental expense as can be demonstrated to be representative of the
interest factor in the particular case. The pro forma ratio of earnings to fixed charges
should include incremental interest expense as a result of the offering of the notes or
other debt securities.

Last Fiscal Year
(as_of March 26, 2004) Pro Forma
Actual
"Earnings" = $973,506 $1,143,074
"Fixed Charges" = 662,753 832,321
Ratio = 1.46 1.37

The following is the detail used for the above calculations:

“Earnings” 3/26/04 Pro Forma
Net Earnings Before Taxes 310,753 310,753
Interest on Capital Deposits

(Factor) 184,626 184,626
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Interest on Variable Rate
Subordinated Debt Securities

(Excess) 159,945 329,513
Interest — Other(1) 318,182 318,182
Interest — Capitalized 0 0
Total Earnings: 973,506 1,143,074
“Fixed Charges”

Interest on Factor 184,626 184,626
Interest on Securities 159,945 329,513
Interest — Other 318,182 318,182
Total Fixed Charges: 662,753 832,321

(D Includes $181,182 of interest expense incurred on borrowings other than members’ accounts

plus $137,000 estimated to represent such portion of rental expense as representative of the
interest factor.

Withdrawals from required capital deposits and Securities redemptions are not included in the fixed
charges calculations. Withdrawals from Excess and required capital deposits were $2,807,686 and
$2,333,019 in fiscal years 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Note: Care should be exercised in interpreting the significance of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges
as a measure of the "coverage" of debt service, as the existence of earnings does not necessarily mean
that the Company's liquidity at any given time will permit payment of debt service requirements to be
timely made. See Question Nos. 11 and 12. See also the Financial Statements and especially the
Statement of Cash Flows.

18. If securities are Preference or Preferred stock: Not applicable.

Are unpaid dividends cumulative? [] Yes [ ] No

Are securities callable? [ ] Yes [ ] No Explain:
Note: Attach to this Offering Circular copies or a summary of the charter, bylaw or contractual
provision or document that gives rise to the rights of holders of Preferred or Preference Stock, notes or

other securities being offered.

19. If securities are capital stock of any type, indicate restrictions on dividends under loan or other
financing arrangements or otherwise:

Not applicable.

20. Current amount of assets available for payment of dividends (if deficit must be first made up,
show deficit in parenthesis): Not applicable.
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21.

22,

23.

24.

25.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The selling agents (that is, the persons selling the securities as agent for the Company for a
commission or other compensation) in this offering are: Nome. No brokers, dealers or selling
agents will be utilized in connection with sales of the Securities.

Describe any compensation to selling agents or finders, including cash, securities, contracts or
other consideration, in addition to the cash commission set forth as a percent of the offering
price on the cover page of this Disclosure Document. Also indicate whether the Company will
indemnify the selling agents or finders against liabilities under the securities laws. ("Finders"
are persons who for compensation act as intermediaries in obtaining selling agents or
otherwise making introductions in furtherance of this offering.)

No sales commissions will be paid in connection with sales of the Securities. The total
expenses associated with the offering are estimated at $11,000.

Describe any material relationships between any of the selling agents or finders and the
Company or its management.

Not applicable.

Note: After reviewing the amount of compensation fo the selling agents or finders for selling
the securities, and the nature of any relationship between the selling agents or finders and the
Company, a potential investor should assess the extent to which it may be inappropriate to rely
upon any recommendation by the selling agents or finders to buy the securities.

If this offering is not being made through selling agents, the names of persons at the Company
through which this offering is being made.

Name: Michael E. Westort, President
Ronald Cloutier, Chief Financial Officer

Address: P.O. Box 1000
Gardiner, ME 04345

Telephone No.: (207) 582-6500

Michael E. Westort and Ronald Cloutier’s activities in connection with this offering shall be
limited to (i) the preparation and delivery of written communications to potential purchasers of
Excess, (ii) responding to inquiries made by potential purchasers, with the content of such
responses limited to information contained in the Offering Circular and related documents, and
(ii1) performing other ministerial and clerical work associated with effecting any transaction.

If this offering is limited to a special group, such as employees of the Company, or is limited to
a certain number of individuals (as required to qualify under Subchapter S of the Internal
Revenue Code) or is subject to any other limitations, describe the limitations and any
restrictions on resale that apply:
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The offering is limited to existing holders of shares/membership interests in the
Company and to other persons and entities engaged in the food business who (i) are
located in Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire or Vermont, (i) wish to purchase
goods from the Company and are approved by management of the Company, and (iii)
have completed their purchase of the required Class A shares, Class B shares and have
made the required capital deposits with the Company as set forth in the Articles and
Bylaws of the Company.

In addition, a rescission offer will be extended hereunder to persons holding
securities of the Company purchased between March 28, 2003 and September 16, 2003.
Only persons and entities who currently hold securities purchased during such time
period will be eligible to accept the offer of rescission. Rescission offerees will be
provided with this Offering Circular and an election form, both of which will be mailed
to offerees upon the qualification of this Offering Circular by the SEC. To elect to
exercise the right of rescission, the offeree would need to complete the election form
and return it to the Company’s President, Michael E. Westort, at the address set forth in
the election form. To be an effective election, the election form must be returmed to the
Company no later than 30 days after receipt of the offer by the offeree.

The Securities are not transferable.

Will the certificates bear a legend notifying holders of such restrictions? [ ] Yes [ ]No

Not applicable, as Securities are not certificated.

26. (a) Name, address and telephone number of independent bank or savings and loan
association or other similar depository institution acting as escrow agent if proceeds
are escrowed until minimum proceeds are raised:

Not applicable.
(b) Date at which funds will be returned by escrow agent if minimum proceeds are not
raised:
Will interest on proceeds during escrow period be paid to investors?
[1Yes [] No
Not applicable.
27. Explain the nature of any resale restrictions on presently outstanding shares, and when those

restrictions will terminate, if this can be determined:

See Question No. 25. Such restrictions will not terminate.

Note: Equity investors should be aware that unless the Company is able to complete a further
public offering or the Company is able to be sold for cash or merged with a public company
that their investment in the Company may be illiquid indefinitely.
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DIVIDENDS, DISTRIBUTIONS AND REDEMPTIONS

28. If the Company has within the last five years paid dividends, made distributions upon its stock
or redeemed any securities, explain how much and when:

{W0253011.6}

Dividends of $140 per share of Class A Common Stock and $140 per share of
Class B Preferred Stock (totaling $94,920) were paid on June 10, 1999 to holders of
record on March 26, 1999, a payout rate of 5.6% (based on the weighted average
current sales price of the Class A Common Stock and Class B Preferred Stock of
$2,509).

Dividends of $30 per share of Class A Common Stock and $50 per share of
Class B Preferred Stock (totaling $29,420) were paid on June 14, 2000 to holders of
record on March 31, 2000, a payout rate of 1.76% (based on the weighted average
current sales price of the Class A Common Stock and Class B Preferred Stock of
$2,509).

Dividends of $75 per share of Class A Common Stock and $75 per share of
Class B Preferred Stock (totaling $50,625) were paid on June 20, 2001 to holders of
record on March 30, 2001, a payout rate of 3.0% (based on the weighted average
current sales price of the Class A Common Stock and Class B Preferred Stock of
$2,509).

Dividends of $75 per share of Class A Common Stock and $75 per share of
Class B Preferred Stock (totaling $49,875) were paid on June 19, 2002 to holders of
record on March 29, 2002, a payout rate of 3.0% (based on the weighted average
current sales price of the Class A Common Stock and Class B Preferred Stock of
$2,509).

Dividends of $75 per share of Class A Common Stock and $75 per share of
Class B Preferred Stock (totaling $48,225) were paid on June 21, 2003 to holders of
record on March 28, 2003, a payout rate of 3.0% (based on the weighted average
current sales price of the Class A Common Stock and Class B Preferred Stock of
$2,509).

No other dividends have been paid during the past five years. Management
and the Board of Directors have agreed that no further ordinary dividends shall be paid
on the Class A and Class B shares, and the Bylaws of the Company have been amended
to prohibit the payment of any dividends to holders of the Class A and Class B shares.

In connection with resignations by holders (including those arising in
connection with sale or winding down of the holders’ retail grocery businesses), the
Company has redeemed 298 shares of Class A Common Stock and 410 shares of Class
B Preferred Stock for a total of $1,725,531 during the past five years. Also, the
Company regularly repays portions of the principal amount of its outstanding Securities
and required capital deposits upon demand by the holders thereof. During the course of
each year, although the Company issues substantial amounts of new Securities and
accepts new required capital deposits (e.g., $1,635,611 in the year ended March 26,
2004 and $2,967,058, in the year ended March 28, 2003), such issuances are usually
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substantially offset by such repayments (e.g., $2,807,686 in the year ended March 26,
2004, and $2,333,019 in the year ended March 28, 2003).
OFFICERS AND KEY PERSONNEL OF THE COMPANY
29. Chief Executive Officer:

Name: Michael Westort Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
Age: 58

Office Street Address: 1000 Brunswick Avenue
Gardiner, Maine 04345

Telephone No.: (207) 582-6500

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication
of job responsibilities.

Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc.
Chief Executive Officer 10/9/00 to present
Chief Operating Officer 9/23/99 to 10/9/00
Chief Financial Officer: 6/1/98 to 9/23/99
SuperValu
Regional Director of Analysis: 6/96 to 5/98
Regional Director of Accounting: 12/95 to 5/96
Divisional Vice President Finance: 5/85 to 12/95
Education (degrees, schools, and dates):
University of Maine (B.S. in Accounting, 1969)
Also a Director of the Company? [X] Yes [] No
Indicate amount of time to be spent on Company matters if less than full time:
Not applicable.
30. Chief Operating Officer: None
31 Chief Financial Officer:

Name: Ronald Cloutier Title: Chief Financial Officer
Age: 52

Office Street Address: 1000 Brunswick Avenue
Gardiner, Maine 04345

Telephone No.: (207) 582-6500
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32.

33.

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication
of job responsibilities.

Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc.
Chief Financial Officer 12/18/00 to present
Controller 1/1/00 to 12/18/00
C&S Wholesale Grocers
Manager of Accounting: 9/1/96 to 12/31/99
SuperValu
Chief Financial Officer (Andover, MA & Keene, NH regions): 3/78 to 9/96
Education (degrees, schools, and dates):

Plymouth State College (MBA Management, 1996)
Husson College (B.S. in Accounting, 1973)

Also a Director of the Company? [] Yes [X] No
Indicate amount of time to be spent on Company matters if less than full time:
Not applicable.

Other Key Personnel: None.

Name: Title:
Age:

Office Street Address:

Telephone No.:

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication
of job responsibilities.

Education (degrees, schools, and date:
Also a Director of the Company? [] Yes [] No
Indicate amount of time to be spent on Company matters if less than full time:

Not applicable.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Number of Directors: 13. If Directors are not elected annually, or are elected under a voting
trust or other arrangement, explain:
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The directors serve for staggered terms of 3 years, whereby at each annual
meeting approximately one-third of the board is subject to re-election for a 3-year term.

34. Information concerning outside or other Directors (i.e. those not described above):

(A)

(B)

©)
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Name: Thomas R. Barber Age: 61

Office Street Address: RR 1, Box 4250
South China, ME 04358

Telephone No.: (207) 993-2596

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an
indication of job responsibilities.

Owner and Operator of Tobey’s General Store (since 1992) and The Market
(retail grocery store) (since 1995), both located in China, Maine.

Education (degrees, schools, and dates):
High School (1969), various trade seminars
Name: John Beaupre Age: 42

Office Street Address: RR 1 Box 2140
Route 16
Carrabassett Valley, ME 04947

Telephone: (207) 237-2248

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an
indication of job responsibilities.

Owner/proprietor of three smaller grocery stores in Western Maine: Ayotte’s
Country, Route 16, Carrabassett Valley, Maine since 1989; owner/proprietor of
Mountainside Grocers (built from ground up), Route 16, Carrabassett Valley,
Maine since 1995; owner/proprietor of Sugarloaf Groceries, Carrabasset
Valley, Maine since 2003.

Education (degrees, schools, and dates):

Waterville High School (graduated 1979)
Waterville, Maine

University of Maine at Orono (graduated 1984)
Major — Business Administration and Marketing

Name: Charles O’Brien Age: 57
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(D)

(E)

{w0253011.6}

Office Street Address: 554 Main Street
Jackman, ME 04945

Telephone No.: (207) 668-5451

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an
indication of job responsibilities.

Owner/proprietor Mountain Country Supermarket, 554 Main Street, Jackman,
Maine since 1984. Prior to that Vice-President Moose River Lumber
Company, Jackman, Maine for 3 years; Town Manager of Jackman, Maine for

3 years, and Selectman for Jackman, Maine for 3 years. Various other
municipal, school and utility district positions in Town of Jackman, Maine

from 1975-1999.

Education (degrees, schools, and dates):

Framingham South High School, Framingham, MA (1965)
Political Science, University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee (B.A. 1971)

Name: Wayne R. Crandall Age: 62

Office Street Address: 10 School Street
Rockland, ME 04841

Telephone No.: (207) 594-4421

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an
indication of job responsibilities.

Presiding partner (attorney), Crandall, Hanscom, Pease & Collins, P.A.,
Rockland, Maine (law firm) (since 1968).

Education (degrees, schools, and dates):
University of Maine (B.A. 1963, ].D. 1968).
Name: Vernon Seile Age: 55

Office Street Address: RFD #1, Box 3115
Stonington, ME 04681

Telephone No.: (207) 367-2681

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an
indication of job responsibilities.
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(F)

(&)

(H)
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Owner/operator of Burnt Cove Market, V&S Variety and the Galley (retail
grocery stores) since 1971.

Education (degrees, schools, and dates).
University of Maine (B.S. in Accounting, 1971)
Name: David N. Sleeper Age: 36

Office Street Address: 99 Lyndon Street
Caribou, ME 04736

Telephone No.: (207) 498-8181

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an
indication of job responsibilities.

Manager, Joseph Sleeper & Sons, Inc. (retail convenience store, Caribou,
Maine), since 1989.

Education (degrees, schools, and dates).
New Hampshire College (B.S. in Business Administration, 1989).
Name: Frederick Crowe Age: 48

Office Street Address: P.O. Box 727
Princeton, ME 04668

Telephone No.: (207) 796-2147

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an
indication of job responsibilities.

Currently part-owner of six full-service grocery stores in Maine. Have worked
in various levels of responsibility in the grocery store industry since 1979.

Education (degrees, schools, and dates):

Woodland High School, Baileyville, Maine (graduated 1975).
U.S. Navy, 1975-1979, honorably discharged

Name: Barry A. McCormick Age: 51
Office Street Address: McCormick’s Thriftway

& School Street
Unity, ME 04988
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Home Address: 115 Fisher Road
Unity, ME 04999

Telephone Nos.: (207) 948-2731

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an
indication of job responsibilities.

Owner/operator of McCormick’s Thriftway (retail grocery store, Unity, Maine)
since 1997. Owner/operator of Brooks IGA (retail grocery store, Brooks,
Maine) since 1989.

Education (degrees, schools, and dates):

Graduate Mount View High School 1971, Thorndike, Maine.
One year Atlantic Management — Retail Specialist Course.

@ Name: Craig R. Burgess Age: 45

Office Street Address: 101 Centre Street
Bath, Maine 04530

Home Address: 87 Whiskeag Rd
Bath, Me 04530

Telephone Nos.: (207) 443-9554

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an
indication of job responsibilities.

Owner & Operator of Burgess Computer Inc, Bath, Maine. Computer &
Telephone Technology Solutions company with 23 staff. Owner & Operator
of Anchor Tax & Accounting Inc.. Accounting & Bookkeeping firm
providing tax preparation, bookkeeping and payroll services. Board Member
& Treasurer of Catholic Charities of Maine. A statewide charity with over
400 employees and a gross annual budget of over $19M.Board Member and
Founding Chairperson of Coastal Counties Workforce Development Board.
Following Federal Workforce Investment Act Legislation(WIA), this
organization oversees the development of the workforce in Maine's 6 coastal
counties encompassing 6 Career Centers.

Education (degrees, schools, and dates):

BS, Electrical Engineering, University of Maine

) Name: Arthur C. Markos Age: 54
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35. (a)
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Office Street Address: Gardiner Savings Bank
P.O. Box 190
Gardiner, ME 04345

Home Address: 46 Mattson Heights
Gardiner, ME 04345

Telephone Nos.: (207) 582-5550

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an
indication of job responsibilities.

President of Gardiner Savings Bank Institution, Gardiner, Maine since 1983.
Controller, Gardiner Savings Bank Institution, Gardiner, Maine from 1981-
1983,

FEducation (degrees, schools, and dates):
1975 B.S. — University of Maine at Augusta, Augusta, Maine

Name: Paul Trusiani Age: 71

Office Street Address: 58 Congress Street
Portland, ME 04101

Home Address: 25 Longwood Terrace
Portland, ME 04102

Telephone Nos.: (207) 772-3704

Names of employers, titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an
indication of job responsibilities.

Owner/operator Paul’s Food Centers, Inc. (Retail grocery/market, Portland,
Maine) since 1975.

Education (degrees, schools, and dates):

University of Southern Maine (B.S. 1955, M.B.A. 1967)
Have any of the Officers or Directors ever worked for or managed a company
(including a separate subsidiary or division of a larger enterprise) in the same business
as the Company? [X] Yes [ ] No
Explain:

Prior to joining AG, Mr. Westort was employed by SuperValu, a competitor of AG,
from 1985 to May 1998. Prior to joining AG, Mr. Cloutier was employed by
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36.

SuperValu, a competitor of AG, from 1978-1996 and by C&S Wholesale Grocers, a
competitor of AG, from 1996-1999.

(b) If any of the Officers, Directors or other key personnel have ever worked for or
managed a company in the same business or industry as the Company or in a related
business or industry, describe what precautions, if any, (including the obtaining of
releases or consents from prior employers) have been taken to preclude claims by prior
employers for conversion or theft of trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary
information.

No such precautions have been taken. Management believes that, due
to the passage of time since the employment of Mr. Westort and Mr. Cloutier
by such other firms and the relatively low level of importance of trade secrets
in the wholesale grocery supply business, such steps are not necessary.

(c) If the Company has never conducted operations or is otherwise in the development
stage, indicate whether any of the Officers or Directors has ever managed any other
company in the start-up or development stage and describe the circumstances,
including relevant dates.

Not applicable.

(d) If any of the Company's key personnel are not employees but are consultants or other
independent contractors, state the details of their engagement by the Company.

Not applicable.

(e) If the Company has key man life insurance policies on any of its Officers, Directors or
key personnel, explain, including the names of the persons insured, the amount of
insurance, whether the insurance proceeds are payable to the Company and whether
there are arrangements that require the proceeds to be used to redeem securities or
pay benefits to the estate of the insured person or to a surviving spouse.

The Company maintains a $100,000 key man life insurance policy on
its Chief Executive Officer. The Company is the beneficiary under the policy.

If a petition under the Bankruptcy Act or any State insolvency law was filed by or against the
Company or its Officers, Directors or other key personnel, or a receiver, fiscal agent or similar
officer was appointed by a court for the business or property of any such persons, or any
partnership in which any of such persons was general partner at or within the past five years,
or any corporation or business association of which any such person was an executive officer at
or within the past five years, set forth below the name of such persons, and the nature and date
of such actions.

None.
Note:  After reviewing the information concerning the background of the Company's Officers,

Directors and other key personnel, potential investors should consider whether or not
these persons have adequate background and experience to develop and operate this
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37.

38.

39.

Company and to make it successful. In this regard, the experience and ability of
management are often considered the most significant factors in the success of a
business.

PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

Principal owners of the Company (those who beneficially own directly or indirectly 10% or
more of the common and preferred stock presently outstanding) starting with the largest
common stockholder. Include separately all common stock issuable upon conversion of
convertible securities (identifying them by asterisk) and show average price per share as if
conversion has occurred. Indicate by footnote if the price paid was for a consideration other
than cash and the nature of any such consideration.

Members of Associated Grocers must purchase membership interests designated as
Class A Common Stock (one share required) and Class B Preferred Stock (two shares required)
in order to get the benefit of membership in Associated Grocers. No holder owns more that
one share of Class A Common Stock or two shares of Class B Preferred Stock.
Number of shares beneficially owned by Officers and Directors as a group:
Before offering:
Seven (7) shares of Class A Common Stock (plus 14 shares of Class B Preferred Stock)
(3.36% of total outstanding)

After offering: no change.

(Assume all options exercised and all convertible securities converted.)

MANAGEMENT RELATIONSHIPS, TRANSACTIONS AND REMUNERATION

(@) If any of the Officers, Directors, key personnel or principal stockholders are related by
blood or marriage, please describe.

None of the Officers, Directors, key personnel or principal stockholders are
related by blood or marriage.

(b) If the Company has made loans to or is doing business with any of its Officers,
Directors, key personnel or 10% stockholders, or any of their relatives (or any entity
controlled directly or indirectly by any of such persons) within the last two years, or
proposes to do so within the future, explain. (This includes sales or lease of goods,
property or services to or from the Company, employment or stock purchase contracts,
etc.) State the principal terms of any significant loans, agreements, leases, financing or
other arrangements.
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The Company extends loans to qualified customers in order to
provide assistance for the acquisition, expansion or improvement of retail
grocery premises, which practice management believes is a valuable
marketing and customer retention tool. The Company believes that such
transactions are on terms no less favorable to the Company than would be
obtained by unaffiliated third party lenders.

Pursuant to the program described in the preceding paragraph, the
following corporations affiliated with Mr. Crowe have outstanding loans with
an aggregate balance of $389,455 as of May 21, 2004, which bear an interest
rates of prime plus 1% per annum and are scheduled to be repaid on or before
October 8, 2008: Wheaton & McLaughlin, Inc.; Falls Retail, Inc.; Downeast
Retail Corp.; Rake, Inc.; Coastal Retail, Inc.; and KARP, Inc.

Pursuant to the program described in the preceding paragraph,
Mr. McCormick has an outstanding loan with a balance of $48,629 as of
May 21, 2004, which bears an interest rate of prime plus 1% per annum and is
scheduled to be repaid on or before May 15, 2007.

Pursuant to the program described in the preceding paragraph, Mr.
Beaupre has an outstanding loan with a balance of $16,940 as of May 21, 2004,
which bears an interest rate of prime plus 1% per annum and is scheduled to be
repaid on or before February 6, 2007.

The Company has, and will maintain, at least two directors who are
not (and have not been, for at least two years) employees or officers of the
Company or its affiliates, and who do not have any material business
relationship with the Company or its affiliates. Any such loans to, or
transactions with, officers, directors or employees of the Company or its
affiliates have been (and shall be) approved by a majority of the Company’s
independent directors who have no interest in such transactions, who have had
(and will have), at the Company’s expense, access to Company counsel in
connection with such transactions.

In addition, the Company regularly sells products to directors who
(directly or through entities owned by them) are engaged in the retail
grocery business. Such transactions are on the same terms as those
extended to the Company’s shareholder/members generally.

If any of the Company's Officers, Directors, key personnel or 10% stockholders has
guaranteed or co-signed any of the Company's bank debt or other obligations,
including any indebtedness to be retired from the proceeds of this offering, explain and
state the amounts involved.

None.

List all remuneration by the Company to Officers, Directors and key personnel for the
last fiscal year:
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Cash Other

Chief Executive Officer $142,454 $0
Chief Financial Officer 93,570
Key Personnel: Michael LeBlanc 76,288 $0

Total:

$312,312 $0

Directors as a group
(number of persons: 14) $64,000 $0

(b)

()
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If remuneration is expected to change or has been unpaid in prior years, explain.

Remuneration has not been unpaid in prior years and is not expected to
change next year.

If any employment agreements exist or are contemplated, describe:

On February 18, 2003, the Company entered into an Employment
Agreement with Mr. Westort, which, as renewed, expires on March 30, 2006.
Pursuant to that agreement Mr. Westort is entitled to receive an annual ‘Base
Salary’ of $133,25C and ‘Annual Bonus’ of five percent of net income. There is
a ‘Change of Control’ provision in the agreement that entitles Mr. Westort to
receive additional compensation upon the occurrence of certain events
evidencing a change in control of the Company; such additional compensation
would equal the positive difference, if any, between (i) the sum of Mr. Westort’s
Base Salary, Annual Bonus and the value of the benefits payable to Mr. Westort
in connection with his employment over the eighteen months following the
change in control, and (ii) the sum of the annual compensation received by Mr.
Westort and the value of the benefits received by Mr. Westort from his employer
(whether a successor to the Corporation or a third party) during the eighteen
months following such change in control. In the event of his death the estate of
Mr. Westort is entitled to receive eighteen months of ‘Base Salary’ as defined in
the agreement.

Number of shares subject to issuance under presently outstanding stock purchase
agreements, stock options, warrants or rights: Not applicable. (0% of total shares to
be outstanding after the completion of the offering if all securities sold, assuming
exercise of options and conversion of convertible securities). Indicate which have been
approved by shareholder/members. State the expiration dates, exercise prices and

other basic terms for these securities:

Not applicable.

Number of common shares subject to issuance under existing stock purchase or option
plans but not yet covered by outstanding purchase agreements, options or warrants:

Not applicable.
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42.

43.

(c) Describe the extent to which future stock purchase agreements, stock options, warrants
or rights must be approved by shareholder/members.

If the business is highly dependent on the services of certain key personnel, describe any
arrangements to assure that these persons will remain with the Company and not compete
upon any termination.

No such arrangements are in place.

Note: After reviewing the above, potential investors should consider whether or not the
compensation fo management and other key personnel directly or indirectly, is
reasonable in view of the present stage of the Company's development.

LITIGATION

Describe any past, pending or threatened litigation or administrative action which has had or
may have a material effect upon the Company's business, financial condition, or operations,
including any litigation or action involving the Company's Officers, Directors or other key
personnel. State the names of the principal parties, the nature and current status of the matters,
and amounts involved. Give an evaluation by management or counsel, to the extent feasible, of
the merits of the proceedings or litigation and the potential impact on the Company's business,
financial condition, or operations.

The Company learned in 1997 that soil and groundwater petroleum contamination
occurred at property owned by its wholly-owned subsidiary, A. G. Development Corp., in
Corinth, Maine, due to leakage of underground storage tanks prior to their removal in 1986.
The Company expended over $65,000 on testing and remediation with respect to this
contamination between such time and May 1999, when the property was sold to a third party
unrelated to the Company.

A. G. Development Corp. received reimbursement from the Maine Department of
Environmental Protection (“Maine DEP”) pursuant to Maine law for certain of these expenses
totaling approximately $61,000. Through the Maine state Groundwater Fund, expenses for the
cleanup of the contaminated site in the amount of $450,522.61 were paid. The Groundwater
Fund will also cover any future expenses, up to an aggregate.

On April 12, 2004, the Maine DEP notified the Company that the site had been cleaned
up in a manner satisfactory to Maine DEP’s remediation guidelines, and although no release
was granted as to future liability, Maine DEP stated that based upon current site conditions, the
Maine DEP did not plan to require any further remedial action.

Under Maine law, claims for damages by third parties would need to be filed within
two years of discovery of injury due to the contamination, unless such third party can show just
cause for the delay in filing such claim. No third party claims have been filed, other than one in
the amount of $34,900, and the Company does not know of any potential third party claims
which have not yet been filed. Maine DEP has also considered assessing fines against the
Company for allegedly not reporting the contamination of the site in 1986 upon the removal of
the underground storage tanks. The Company believes that proper notification of the
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contamination was provided in a timely manner, and that fines would be inappropriate. The
Maine DEP has taken no action regarding fines, nor communicated with the Company
regarding any potential fines, since 1999, and the Company believes that any fines, if assessed,
would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or operations.

In addition, management learned in September 2003 that the Company might have
engaged in substantial sales of its securities without registration under federal securities laws or
an available exemption from such requirements. In an effort to remedy any claims for such
possible violations, pursuant to this Form 1-A, the Company is offering to holders of such
securities purchased between March 28, 2003 and September 16, 2003 the right to rescind any
such transactions. The effect of a rescission offer on the potential liability of the Company
under federal law is uncertain, however, and it is possible that rescission offerees might retain
the ability to file suit at a later date. Under Federal law, any such claim would need to be filed
within one year of the date of the alleged violation. No litigation or administrative actions have
been commenced or threatened with respect to this matter; however, there can be no assurance
that such actions will not be taken against the Company in the future until such statute of
limitations has run.

In addition, the Securities are being issued in reliance upon an exemption from the
registration requirement imposed by § S of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “‘33 Act”) pursuant
to 17 C.FR. §§ 230.251 et seq. (“Regulation A”). Regulation A requires that the sum of all
consideration to be received for the securities offered thereunder not exceed $5 million in the
aggregate, minus any previous sales in any offering integrated with the current offering.
Offerings which occur within six months of the start of a particular offering under Regulation A
are more likely to be integrated with that Regulation A offering. If the offering of the Securities
were to be integrated with a previous offering made in reliance on Regulation A by the
Company, this could lead to purchasers of the Securities having a right to rescind such purchase
upon demand, and might lead to adverse action by the SEC or other Federal regulatory
agencies. On September 16, 2003, the Company made its last sale under a previous offering in
reliance on Regulation A; as of the same date, all persons who were eligible to purchase such
securities were informed by the Company that no further securities sales would be made. The
Company assumed that the previous offering terminated on that date. Other than having the
Form 1/A for such previous offering continue to be qualified and on file at the SEC until March
24, 2004, the Company has taken no actions which could be construed as an offer to sell, or a
solicitation of an offer to buy, securities as defined under the 33 Act since that date. However,
an argument could be made that (i) the previous offering in reliance on Regulation A continued
until March 24, 2004, and (ii) that the previous offering should be integrated with the current
offering.

Because the Securities are subject to repayment by the Company upon demand by the
holder thereof, the Company does not believe that the risk of integration and its consequences
pose any significant incremental risk to the Company. However, should the current offering be
integrated with the previous offering, the Company might be found to have engaged in the sale
of securities without registration under the federal securities laws, which might lead to the
assessment of fines or other penalties against the Company. To the knowledge of the Company,
neither the SEC nor any other regulatory agency has taken any action against the Company with
respect to this matter; however, there can be no assurance that such actions will not be taken
against the Company in the future.
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FEDERAL TAX ASPECTS

44. If the Company is an S corporation under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and it is
anticipated that any significant tax benefits will be available to investors in this offering, indicate the
nature and amount of such anticipated tax benefits and the material risks of their disallowance. Also,
state the name, address and telephone number of any tax advisor that has passed upon these tax
benefits. Attach any opinion or any description of the tax consequences of an investment in the
securities by the tax advisor.

Not applicable—the Company is not an S corporation.

Note: Potential investors are encouraged to have their own personal tax consultant contact
the tax advisor to review details of the tax benefits and the extent that the benefits would be
available and advantageous to the particular investor.

MISCELLANEOUS FACTORS

45. Describe any other material factors, either adverse or favorable, that will or could affect
the Company or its business (for example, discuss any defaults under major contracts, any
breach of bylaw provisions, etc.) or which are necessary to make any other information in
this Offering Circular not misleading or incomplete.

The Company does not believe that such factors exist.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. Provide the financial statements required by Part F/S of this Offering Circular section of
Form I-A.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF CERTAIN RELEVANT FACTORS

47. If the Company's financial statements show losses from operations, explain the causes
underlying these losses and what steps the Company has taken or is taking to address these
causes.

Not applicable—the Company showed a profit during the 2003-04 fiscal
year.

48. Describe any trends in the Company's historical operating results. Indicate any changes
now occurring in the underlying economics of the industry or the Company's business
which, in the opinion of management, will have a significant impact (either favorable or
adverse) upon the Company's results of operations within the next 12 months, and give a
rough estimate of the probable extent of the impact, if possible.
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Despite the retail grocery industry’s trend toward consolidation, whereby
the independent grocer has been perceived to be a weaker player, in Maine, New
Hampshire and Vermont as well as parts of Massachusetts, the Company has been
able to maintain its membership base, as the sales volume that is available from the
largely smaller and/or rural customers served by the Company is not substantial
enough to be attractive and economically feasible for the large supermarket chains.
Management believes that, due to the relative lack of concentrated population
centers in Maine, New Hampshire, Vermont and portions of Northemn
Massachusetts, the supermarket chains are not focused on growth in
underdeveloped areas in the region. Consequently, the marketplace for the
independent retailer, the Company’s pricing customer, in northern New England
continues, in management’s opinion, to be viable. Continued improvements in
regional economic conditions appear favorable for independent retail grocers and,
therefore, would seem to favor the growth and expansion of the Company’s
business.

The changes in the regional market for wholesale grocery products created
by SuperValu’s withdrawal from the New England market and transfer of its
business to C&S Grocers of Brattleboro, Vermont as part of an asset swap in the
Fall of 2003 has created growth opportunities for the Company. After this
transaction, C&S Grocers closed three warehouses formerly operated by SuperValu
and is servicing its customers from warehouses located in Vermont and New York.
C&S’s core business is not similar to the business it acquired as part of the swap,
and management believes that C&S has not traditionally provided the level of
value-added services that the former SuperValu customers expect from their
supplier. Management believes that these factors allowed the Company to
successfully attract four retail grocery outlets away from C&S in Fiscal 2004,
which accounts are expected to generate approximately $3,000,000 in sales per
year. Although such evaluations are necessarily subjective and subject to change,
management believes that the Company will attract additional C&S customers,
generating at least a similar level of revenue, in Fiscal 2005. These factors favor
the Company’s efforts to find new members and new customers for its products. In
addition, as part of its efforts to recruit new members and new customers, the
Company has developed a list of attractive locations for new retail food stores
based on the observations and opinions of management. The Company intends to
subsidize the performance of third party market analyses on such locations, and if
favorable to the establishment of a new retail food outlet, the Company intends to
work with potential retailers to develop the property (at the retailers’ expense), on
the condition that such retailer commits to becoming a member and customer of the
Company.

Despite these efforts, however, management believes that the acquisition of
new accounts and higher levels of purchases by existing clients in coming years
will largely, though not entirely, be offset by (i) lower overall prices for the
products sold by the Company, particularly for certain commodities such as milk
and cigarettes, and (ii) continued loss of retail accounts due to competition and
attrition.
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Fiscal Year Ended March 26, 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended
March 28, 2003. For the fiscal year ended March 26, 2004, Company sales were
.90% less than the prior year ended March 28, 2003. The Company had a net
income in fiscal 2004 of $183,853 as compared to $127,307 in fiscal 2003.

Sales for the year ended March 26, 2004 of $130,811,985 represent a
decrease of $1,183,811 from prior year. The decrease can be attributed to a number
of factors. For all of fiscal 2004 Phillip Morris provided discounts of up to 23% of
cost on key items (including cigarettes), which discounts, in turn, were passed along
to our customers. The loss of three retail accounts during the year also had a
negative impact on total sales, although the accounts, in the aggregate, had
accounted for less than .5% of sales in previous years. These factors more than
offset any increases from new account sales or expansions, although they were
partially offset by higher prices for beef and pork products, meaning that the total
dollar value of sales increased on similar volume of goods sold. Commodity prices
in the beef and pork markets have risen in the first months of fiscal 2004, and
management expects that prices will either continue to rise or stabilize at current
levels, while prices for milk and cigarettes have remained largely flat.

Gross profit increased to 6.89% of sales in 2004 from 6.75% in 2003. The
total amount of gross profit dollars increased despite the decrease in sales. Profits
in most product categories of Dairy and Meat improved in 2004 as a result of higher
prices in the cheese and beef commodity markets.

Other operating income, consisting of service charges, commission income,
advertising, central billing and backhaul income for fiscal 2004 was $235,821, or
4,24% lower, than prior year. For the year ended March 26, 2004, these items
amounted to 4.07% of sales versus 4.21% for the year ended March 28, 2003. The
dollar decrease in service fees and central billing was a result of this sales decrease.

Total operating expenses of $13,540,016 for the year ended March 26,
2004 were 10.35% of sales, as compared to 10.28% in fiscal 2003. Labor expense
decreased in 2004 to 2.20% of total sales, down from 2.25% for the prior year, as a
direct result of increased labor efficiency. Under the union contract, increases in
labor expense will be limited by a cap on increases in costs for wages and benefits
of 4% per year in each year of the five year contract. Administrative expenses of
6.48% for the current year represent a .06% increase over fiscal 2003, a percentage
increase due to the reduction in sales as well as certain one-time costs relating to a
required securities filings and strategic consulting services. In addition, $47,000
was recognized from a reduction in the allowance for doubtful accounts for 2003.

Interest expense in fiscal 2004 saw a reduction of total expenses due to the
relatively low borrowing rate on the Company’s line of credit and the suspension of
the Company’s sales of Excess capital deposits paying a relatively higher rate of
interest, pending registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
average rate the Company paid on its line of credit with Fleet Bank was 3.10%, as
compared to prior year of 5.54%. The average rate paid on the Excess and on
required capital deposits by members decreased from fiscal 2003°s 4.875% to
4.50% in fiscal 2004, The total interest paid on short term borrowing for fiscal 2004
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was $181,182 versus $236,986 in the prior year. The interest paid to members for
Excess and required capital deposits was $344,571 in 2004 as compared to
$414,990 in 2003.

Pre-tax income amounted to $310,753 in fiscal 2004, as compared to
$238,937 in fiscal 2003. The major contributors to the increase in fiscal 2004 were
the ability of the company to secure some increases in prices charged to its
members for some goods and the lower than expected interest expense for the year.

Fiscal Year Ended March 28, 2003 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended
March 29, 2002. For the fiscal year ended March 28, 2003, Company sales were
3.88% less than the prior year ended March 29, 2002. The Company had a net
income in fiscal 2003 of $127,307 as compared to $240,629 in fiscal 2002.

Sales for the year ended March 28, 2003 of $132,124,796 represent a
decrease of $5,332,365 from prior year. The decrease can be attributed to a number
of factors. Price declines in the beef, pork and milk commodity markets were
reflected in lower wholesale prices, meaning that the total dollar value of sales
decreased on similar volume of goods sold. Similarly, for the last six months of the
fiscal year Phillip Morris provided discounts of up to 23% of cost on key items,
which discounts, in turn, were passed along to our customers. The loss of two retail
accounts during the year also had a negative impact on sales, although the accounts,
in the aggregate, had accounted for less than 1% of sales in previous years. These
factors more than offset any increases from new account sales or expansions.
Commodity prices in the beef and pork markets have risen in the first months of
fiscal 2004, and management expects that prices will either continue to rise or
stabilize at current levels, while prices for milk and cigarettes have remained
largely flat.

Gross profit increased to 6.84% of sales in 2003 from 6.58% in 2002. The
total amount of Gross Profit was unchanged due to the decrease in sales. Profits in
most product categories improved in 2003 as a result of higher allowance retention
through improved buying practices.

Other Operating Income, consisting of service charges, commission
income, advertising, central billing and rental income for fiscal 2003 was $160,194,
or .23% higher, than prior year. For the year ended March 28, 2003, these items
amounted to 4.10% of sales versus 3.87% for the year ended March 29, 2002. The
increase is due to management efforts to increase all sources of income as the
opportunities arise.

Total operating expenses of $13,586,316 for the year ended March 28,
2003 were 10.28% of sales, as compared to 9.75% in fiscal 2002. Labor expense
increased in 2003 to 2.25% of total sales, up from 2.04% for the prior year, as a
direct result of increased labor inefficiency due to low morale among warehouse
and delivery personnel during prolonged negotiations for a new five year union
contract, which was signed in September, 2002. Under the new union contract,
increases in labor expense will be limited by a cap on increases in costs for wages
and benefits of 4% per year in each year of the five year contract. Administrative
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expenses of 6.40% for the current year represent a .30% increase over fiscal 2002, a
percentage increase due to the reduction in sales as well as due to a twenty percent
increase in the cost of insurance. Management also reduced the number of
administrative positions in fiscal 2003 to control expenses. In addition, $47,000
was recognized from a reduction in the allowance for doubtful accounts for 2003.

Interest expense had remained stable for the years of 1997 to 2001 at
$885,935, $894,592, $895,327, $883,713, and $907,992, respectively, while the
portion paid to holders of the variable rate subordinated debt securities (as
contrasted to other lenders) has increased in each of the last four years. In fiscal
2002 the total interest expensed was $672,651. This dramatic decrease with regard
to previous years was due to lower interest rates paid on company obligations, as
evidenced by the prime interest rate dropping from a high of 9.50% at the beginning
of fiscal 2000 to a low of 4.75% at year end. This frend of decreasing interest rates
continued in 2003 and the year ended with an interest expense of $651,976. The
average rate paid on the Variable Rate Subordinated Debt Securities decreased
from 5.38% to 4.875% in fiscal 2003.

Pre-tax income amounted to $238,937 in fiscal 2003, as compared to
$360,291 in fiscal 2002. The major contributors to the decrease in fiscal 2003 were
the 3.88% decrease in the cash value of sales and the increase in labor expenses
described above.

Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended
March 30, 2001. For the fiscal year ended March 29, 2002, Company sales were
greater than the prior year ended March 30, 2001 by 4.47%. Net income was
$240,629 in fiscal 2002 as compared to $126,856 in fiscal 2001.

Sales for the year ended March 29, 2002 of $137,457,161 represented an
increase of $5,877,776 over prior year. The increase of 4.47% was the result of the
addition of several large retail accounts, an increase in same - store sales and
expansion into other marketing territories.

Sales- related income items of gross profit, service charge, advertising and
central billing for fiscal 2002 were up by $294,624, an increase of 2.09% over the
prior fiscal year. For the year ended March 29, 2002, these items amounted to
10.45% of sales versus 10.67% for the year ended March 30, 2001. The decrease in
percent was due to a shift in the sales mix; increased cigarette sales (which are not
compensated on fee) reduced the service fee revenue as a percentage of sales by 23
basis points.

Total operating expenses of $13,391,828 for the year ended March 29,
2002 were 9.75% of sales, as compared to 9.83% in fiscal 2001. In Fiscal 2002
labor expenses as a percentage of total sales dropped to 2.04%, versus 2.17% in
Fiscal 2001, as a result of a full year of increased efficiency in the warehouse
management system. Administrative expenses rose over the prior year from 6.18%
to 6.29%. Besides normal wage increases, the cost of insurance benefits for
employees increased 20%, and bad debt expenses were higher than prior year by
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$100,000 due to the reduction of the bad debt reserve in fiscal 2001 by that same
amount.

Interest expense had remained stable for the previous five years at
$907,992, $883,713, $895,327, $894,592 and $885,935 for the years 2001, 2000,
1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively, while the portion paid to holders of the
Securities and holders of required capital deposits (Factor) (as contrasted to other
lenders) increased in each of the previous four years. In fiscal 2002 the total interest
expensed was $672,651. This dramatic decrease with regard to previous years was
due to lower interest rates on company obligations, as evidenced by the prime
interest rate dropping from a high of 9.50% in fiscal 2000 to a low of 4.75% in
fiscal 2002. The average rate paid on the Securities and required capital deposits
(Factor) decreased from 7.25% to 5.38% in fiscal 2002,

Pre-tax income amounted to $360,291 in fiscal 2002, compared to
$275,838 in fiscal 2001. The major contributors to this increase in fiscal 2002 were
the 4.47% increase in sales, the increased warehouse productivity from the
warehouse management system, and the interest savings related to the decrease in
the prime rate.

Fiscal Year Ended March 30, 2001 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended
March 31, 2000. For the fiscal year ended March 30, 2001, Company sales were
less than those for the prior year ended March 31, 2000 by 21.37%. Net income
was $126,856 in fiscal 2001 as compared to a loss of (§183,930) in fiscal 2000.

Sales for the year of $131,579,385 represented a decrease of $35,761,831
from the prior year. During the last month of Fiscal 2000 the Company lost its
biggest customer (Irving Oil), which equated to 18% of revenue or nearly
$30,100,000 of sales. Also, the Company had a 53 week year during fiscal 2000 in
which another $3,200,000 of sales had inflated fiscal 2000 versus fiscal 2001.

Sales related income items of gross profit, service charge, advertising and
central billing for fiscal 2001 were $2,533,114 or 15.27% less than the prior year.
For the year ended March 30, 2001, these items amounted to 10.68% of sales
versus 9.91% for the year ended March 31, 2000. Although the lost Irving sales
meant less gross profit dollars, the Company’s actual gross profit percentage
increased due to the fact that most of the Irving business was non-service fee
related. (The decrease in sales made the Company unable to take advantage of
volume discounts and allowances, as reflected in a current gross profit margin of
6.62% of sales as compared to 6.76% in the prior year. However, service fee
charges went from 2.28% in fiscal 2000 to 2.86% in the current year.)

Total operating expenses of $12,943,650 for the year ended March 30,
2001 were 9.83% of sales, as compared to 9.59% in fiscal 2000. From fiscal 1996
through fiscal 2001, the Company had operating expenses ranging from a high of
9.83% of sales to a low of 9.07% of sales. Direct labor expense has increased
steadily over the period from 1.90% of total sales in 1996 to 2.17% in 2001 as a
result of contractual increases to union employees and the implementation of a
warchouse management system in fiscal 2000 that far exceeded budgeted direct
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labor costs due to additional training needs. Administrative and retail costs rose
over the previous last years but at a lower rate than revenues. In 1996,
administrative and retail costs were 6.22% of sales; in 1999, they were 5.90% of
sales. But in fiscal 2000 those costs, although less in dollars because of layoffs
resulting from the loss of the Irving account, represented a higher percentage of
Company sales due to a 21% drop in sales.

The decrease in interest income to $28,678 in fiscal 2001 from $43,100 in
2000 was due to a reduction in Notes Receivable due from Members.

There was a gain of $29,417 on the sale of property in 2001 as compared to
a loss of $96,181 in 2000. The Company recognized a one-time charge for the sale
of two former retail sites in 2000.

Interest expense remained stable for the previous five years at $907,992,
$883,713, $895,327, $894,592 and $885,935 for the years 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998,
and 1997, respectively, while the portion paid to members (as contrasted to other
lenders) increased in each of the previous four years. Short-term borrowing
decreased in fiscal 2001 due to the loss of our largest customer (which carried a

substantial accounts receivable balance) and an increase in capital deposits of
$34,981.

Pre-tax income amounted to $275,838 in fiscal 2001 compared to a loss of
(8348,476) in fiscal 2000. The major contributors to this loss in fiscal 2000 were
Y2K conversion and the new warehouse management system.

49. If the Company sells a product or products and has had significant sales during its last
fiscal year, state the existing gross margin (net sales less cost of such sales as presented in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles) as a percentage of sales for the
last fiscal year: 6.89%.

What is the anticipated gross margin for next year of operations? Approximately 6.89%.

If this is expected to change, explain. Also, if reasonably current gross margin figures are
available for the industry, indicate these figures and the source or sources from which they
are obtained.

The most recent Distributor Productivity and Financial Report prepared by
Food Distributors International (2002) showed an average gross margin in 2001 for
wholesalers with net sales of under $600 million and 9.6%; the average gross
margin of all North American Wholesale Grocers Association members in 2001
was 10%.

50. Foreign sales as a percent of total sales for last fiscal year: 0%. Domestic government
sales as a percent of total domestic sales for last fiscal year: 0%.
Explain the nature of these sales, including any anticipated changes:
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Not applicable.
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PART F/S
Attach: 1. Balance sheet as of end of last two fiscal years (audited).

2. Statements of income, cash flows and stockholders’ equity for each of the last 2
fiscal years.
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BAKER NEWMAN & NOYES

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003 and the related consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Association’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of March 26, 2004 and
March 28, 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/Sa/l.n.-.yé—wc—v\. ﬁ)/t"‘)*‘

Portland, Maine Limited Liability Company
May 7, 2004

ONE HUNDRED MIDOLE STREET. P.O. Box 507, PorTLanND, Maine 04112 » TELE;HONE 207-879-2100 . TeLerax 207-774-1793 .« WWW.BNNCPA.COM



Current assets:

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $184,661 in 2004 and $150,000 in 2003)

Notes receivable — members, current portion

Inventories

Inventories — supplies
Prepaid expenses
Income taxes refundable

Deferred taxes

Total current assets

_Property, plant and equipment:
Land and land improvements

Buildings

Automotive equipment
Office furniture and equipment
Warehouse equipment and information systems

Less accumulated depreciation

Construction in progress

Other assets:

Notes receivable — members (less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $11,000 in 2004)

Investments in grocery cooperatives

Deferred finance costs, net

Other assets

Total assets

2004 2003
$ 174326 $ 161,143
5,135,188 4,718,203
279,287 257,216
6,726,072 7,151,527
106,713 109,288
376,781 362,607
- 39,680
324,700 286,000
13,123,067 13,085,664
157,369 157,369
5,824,870 5,824,870
1,233,889 1,088,626
2,307,443 2,209,265
5.402,212 5.358.707
14,925,783 14,638,837
9,689,068 8.952.112
5,236,715 5,686,725
97.538 95,146
5,334,253 5,781,871
830,974 635,168
279,218 279,218
8,628 13,815
30,000 -
1,148,820 928,201
$_19,606,140 $_19,795.736




LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

004 2003
Current liabilities:
Bank overdraft $ 484,469 § 471,368
Notes payable 4,530,000 3,000,000
Current portion of long-term debt 48,704 47,579
Accounts payable 3,035,280 3,487,501
Accrued expenses 1,048,201 1,073,306
Income tax payable 34,185 -
Total current liabilities 9,180,839 8,079,754
Other habilities:
Long-term debt — net of current portion 520,598 569,302
Deferred taxes 421,300 333,000
Total other liabilities 941,898 902,302
Capital deposits 6,714,540 8,132,785
Total liabilities 16,837,277 17,114,841
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock — noncumulative; $2,500 stated value,

authorized — 1,600 shares, issued — 386 shares (399 in 2003) 965,000 997,500
Preferred stock subscribed, and unissued 225,000 220,000
Common stock — $1,500 stated value, authorized —

800 shares, issued — 238 shares (244 in 2003) 357,000 366,000
Paid-in capital 227,459 233,621
Retained earnings 1,219,404 1,083,774

: : 2,993,863 2,900,895

Less: subscriptions receivable — preferred stock 225,000 220,000

2,768,863 2,680,895
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ' $_19,606,140 $_19,795,736

See accompanying notes.



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Sales

Cost of sales
Less vendors’ discounts

Net cost of sales
Gross profit

Other operating income:
Service charges
Commission income
Advertising
Central billing/drop ship
Backhaul income

Operating expenses:
Labor — warehouse, handling and delivery
Trucks and trailers
Warehouse
Depreciation
Administrative

Operating income

Gther income (expense):
Interest on savings and notes receivable
(Loss) on sale of property and equipment

Interest on members’ accounts
Interest — other

Income before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Net income

Other comprehensive income:
Gain on derivative cash flow hedge

Comprehensive income
Basic and diluted earnings per common share

See accompanying notes.

2004 % of Sales
$ 130,811,985 100.00%
123,002,068 94.03
1,198,121 .92
121,803,947 93.11
9,008,038 6.89
3,435,383 2.63
250,113 .19
811,373 .62
694,856 53
128,380 .10
5,320,105 4.07
2,878,900 2.20
1,097,553 84
311,676 .24
773,508 .59
8,478,379 6.48
13,540,016 10.35
788,127 .61
48,379 .04
(344,571) (.26)
(181,182) (.14)
(477.374) (.36)
310,753 .25
(126,900) (.10)
183,853 15%

5__ 183,853

$___ 63085

2003 % of Sales
$ 131,995,796 100.00%
124,313,015 94.18
1,221,514 .93
123,091,501 9325
8,904,295 6.75
3,607,434 2.73
228,755 17
748,379 .56
842,358 .63
129.000 12
5,555,926 421
2,976,898 2.25
1,093,281 .83
313,150 .24
751,220 56
8,451,767 6.40
13.586.316 10.28
873,905 .68
20,066 01
(3,058) -
(414,990) (31)
(236,986) {(.18)
(634.968) _(.48)
238,937 18
(111.630) (.08)
127,307 10%
42.000
$ 169,307
S___ 38632




ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Years Ended March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Accumulated

Other
Preferred Preferred Common Paid-in Compre- Retained
Stock Subscribed Stock Capital hensive Loss Earnings Total
Balances at March 29, 2002 $ 1,050,000 $ 175,000 $367,500 $232342  $(42,000) $ 1,008,649 $2,791,491
Add:
Shares issued:
Preferred stock 75,000 - - - - - 75,000
Common stock - - 43,500 29,783 - - 73,283
Subscriptions:
Preferred stock - 125,000 - - - - 125,000
Other comprehensive income - - - - 42,000 - 42,000
Net income - - - - - 127,307 127,307
Deduct:
Shares redeemed:
Preferred stock 127,500 - - - - - 127,500
Common stock - - 45,000 28,504 - 2,307 75,811
Subscription redeemed:
Preferred stock - 27,500 - - - - 27,500
Subscription collected:
Preferred stock - 52,500 - - - - 52,500
Dividends paid - - - - - 49.875 49.875
Balances at March 28, 2003 997,500 220,000 366,000 233,621 - 1,083,774 2,900,895
Add:
Shares issued:
Preferred stock 82,500 -~ - - — - 82,500
Common stock ~ ~ 30,000 20,540 - - 50,540
Subscriptions:
Preferred stock ~ 75,000 - - - ~ 75,000
Net income - - - - - 183,853 183,853
Deduct:
Shares redeemed:
Preferred stock 115,000 - - - - - 115,000
Common stock - - 39,000 26,702 - - 65,702
Subscriptions redeemed:
Preferred stock - 15,000 -~ -~ - - 15,000
Subscriptions collected:
Preferred stock - 55,000 - -~ - - 55,000
Dividends paid - - - ~ — 48,223 48.223
Balances at March 26, 2004 $_ 965,000 $.225,000 $357,000 $227459 § - $1.219404 $2,993.863

See accompanying notes.



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Gain on sale of investments
Deferred taxes
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Trade accounts receivable
Inventories
Inventories — supplies
Prepaid expenses
Income taxes refundable
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Income tax payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Disbursements on notes receivable members
Principal payments received on notes receivable members
Proceeds from sale of investments in grocery cooperatives
Purchase of investments in grocery cooperatives
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Other assets

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net borrowings (payments) under line-of-credit agreement
and bank overdraft

Principal payments on long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Redemption of preferred stock
Redemption of common stock
Deposits to capital deposits
Withdrawals from capital deposits
Dividends paid

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

2004 2003
183,853 127,307
773,508 751,220
5,187 5,187
- 3,058
- (2,585)
49,600 106,000
(598,155) 372,230
425455 201,385
2,575 34,982
(14,174) (23,926)
39,680 (39,680)
(452,221) (273,491)
(25,105) (205,410)
34,185 -
424,388 1,056,277
(526,911) (561,647)
309,034 200,123
- 3,085
- (16,985)
1,350 5,250
(327,240) (490,406)
(30.000) -
(573,767) (860,580)
1,543,101  (1,267,241)
(47,579) (45,131)
17,500 70,956
50,540 73,283
(115,000) (127,500)
(65,702) (75,811)
1,635,611 2,967,058
(2,807,686)  (2,333,019)
(48.223) (49,875)
162.562 (787.280)




ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

2004 2003
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents b 13,183  § (591,583)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 161,143 752,726
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $__ 174326 $__ 161,143
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year:
Interest $ 530,706 $ 691,650
Income taxes paid, net of refunds received 3,435 45,710

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing and financing activities:
Capital deposits were applied to trade accounts receivable and notes receivable — members as follows:

Accounts receivable $ 181,170 $ 209,059
Notes receivable - 47,158

- § 181,170 $__ 256,217

During 2004, $75,000 of preferred stock was subscribed. The amount subscribed in 2003 was $125,000.

Additional preferred stock was issued in 2004 upon conversion of $65,000 of capital deposits. $4,044 was issued in
2003.

During 2003, a capital lease with a value of $158,484 was terminated along with property and equipment of the same
value.

See accompanying notes.



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Operations

Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc. (the Association) is primarily in the business of buying, warehousing,
shipping and billing groceries and related products to member stores which, according to the
Association’s Bylaws, are also stockholders of the Association. The Bylaws allow the Association to
sell to nonmember stores, but only in such a way that a competitive advantage to the members is
preserved. The Association operates throughout Maine, New Hampshire, Massachusetts and Vermont.
The Association is not dependent on any individually significant customers or vendors.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fiscal Year

The Association conducts its business on a 52-53 week year. The years ended March 26, 2004 and
March 28, 2003 each contained 52 weeks.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Association and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Allied Insurance Agency of Maine, Inc. and A.G. Development Corp. All intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Allied Insurance Agency of Maine,
Inc. was formed to sell insurance to member-retailers, nonmembers and to the Association. A.G.
Development Corp. was created as a separate entity for the purpose of owning, buying, renting and
leasing retail grocery businesses, real estate, buildings, equipment, etc. A.G. Development Corp. had no
assets or liabilities at March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003, nor any substantial activity for the years then
ended.

Inventories

Inventories, which consist of groceries and related products, are valued at the lower of cost or market,
with cost determined on a first-in, first-out method.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line and
accelerated methods over the respective useful lives.



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Advertising

Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred and approximated $65,000 for 2004 and
2003.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

Revenue is recognized when the product is shipped. The customer has 24 hours to report a claim to
return product. The returns, which are not material, are netted against sales revenue. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is provided based on an analysis by management of the collectibility of outstanding
balances. Management considers the age of outstanding balances and the creditworthiness of customers
in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts.

The Association generates advertising revenue by providing retail stores and vendors with advertising
services. Such revenue is recognized when the advertising is placed with the media.

Vendor discounts, which represent a reduction in the Association’s purchase price, is recorded as a
reduction to cost of sales, when the product is purchased.

Deferred Finance Costs

Costs incurred in connection with obtaining debt are being amortized over the life of the respective loan
on a straight-line method.

Pension Plan

The Association has a deferred savings plan that covers substantially all the Association’s non-union
employees. The Association also contributes on behalf of its union employees to a union pension plan
pursuant to a collectively bargained agreement. The Association’s policy is to accrue pension costs as
incurred.

Income Taxes

- Income taxes are provided for based on financial statement income. Deferred income taxes arise from
temporary differences in the basis of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax purposes.
Deferred taxes are classified as current or noncurrent, depending on the classification of the assets and
liabilities to which they relate. Deferred taxes arising from temporary differences that are not related to
an asset or liability are classified as current or noncurrent, depending on the periods in which the
temporary differences are expected to reverse. Deferred assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects
of changes in the tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. The Association files a consolidated tax
return which includes the income or losses for its subsidiaries.



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Self-Insured Workers' Compensation

The Association participates in a self-insured worker’s compensation insurance plan through an industry
cooperative. Current funding levels by the Association and other partlclpants in the cooperative are
expected to be adequate to meet incurred claims.

Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) are computed based on the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding. The following is the reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of
the basic and diluted EPS computation for the years ended:

March 26, 2004 March 28, 2003
Income Shares Per-Share Income Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) _Amount (Numerator)(Denominator) Amount
Net income $ 183,853 - 3 - $ 127,307 - $ -
Preferred stock —
dividend 29.925 — - 31,500 - =
Basic and diluted EPS $.153.928 244 $630.85 $_95,807 8 $_386.32

The Association’s calculation for basic and diluted EPS is the same, as there are no options or
convertible securities outstanding.

Interest Rate Swap

During 2002, the Company used cash flow hedge accounting to account for an interest rate swap
agreement. As of March 29, 2002, the Company had a liability of $70,000 as a result of the interest rate
swap agreement. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement at March 29, 2002 of $70,000 less
related income tax effect of $28,000 had been recorded as a component of comprehensive income. The
interest rate swap agreement expired in September 2002. The Company recognized $42,000 of other
comprehensive income in 2003.

Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Association considers all highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Reclassification

Certain items in 2003 financial statements have been reclassified to enhance comparison to the 2004
financial statements.

10



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Cash

The Association maintains its cash accounts in three commercial banks. Accounts at each bank are
guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $100,000. At various times
throughout the year, the Association has cash on deposit in excess of the FDIC coverage. The
Association had $978,365 and $1,251,749 on deposit in excess of FDIC coverage at March 26, 2004 and
March 28, 2003, respectively. The bank balance is higher than book due to outstanding checks.

Notes Receivable — Members

The Association has notes receivable with some members. The majority of these notes are secured by
property and securities. Interest rates on the notes at March 26, 2004 range from 0% to 6%. (March 28,
2003 range from 0% to 6.25%).

The composition of notes receivable was as follows:

2004 2003
Notes receivable $1,110,261 $892,384
Less: current portion 279,287 257,216

$_830.974 $635.168

Investments In Grocery Cooperatives

The Association owned 2,942 Class C stock shares at March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003, in
Associated Wholesalers, Inc., a grocery and health and beauty care distribution cooperative based in
Pennsylvania. The Association owned 194,614 shares at March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003, of
nonvoting common stock in Western Family Holding Company, the parent organization to Western
Family Foods, Inc., a grocery distribution cooperative based in Oregon. These shares of Associated
Wholesalers, Inc. and Western Family Holding Company are non-trading securities and carried at cost
for financial statement purposes. Investments in grocery cooperatives are as follows:

2004 2003
Associated Wholesalers, Inc. $ 80,956 §$ 80,956
Western Family Holding Company 194,713 194,713
Other grocery cooperatives 3.549 3,549

$279.218 $279.218

11



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Notes Payable

The notes payable were as follows:

o
<
=
)
[an]
e}

Fleet Bank:
$6.,000,000 line of credit with interest rates at London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 175 basis points
for base borrowing (2.79% and 3.02% at March 26,
2004 and March 28, 2003) on $4,000,000 and 4% on the
excess maturing September 30, 2004, secured by all
corporate assets $4,530,000 $3,000,000

The Association also has a revolving term loan in the amount of $2,000,000 for the purpose of lending
to member stores. There was no outstanding balance as of March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003.

Restrictive Covenants

The loan agreement relating to the Fleet Bank revolving term loan contains various covenants pertaining
to maintenance of net worth with various financial ratios, capital expenditures, and other reporting
requirements. As of March 26, 2004, the Association was in compliance with these covenants.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt was as follows:

2004 2003
City of Gardiner, Maine:
Urban Development Action Grant — secured by land,

buildings, fixtures and equipment, interest rate 8%

payable in quarterly installments of $23,200

through November 2005 with a balloon payment

in 2006 $569,302 $614,297
Secured by a vehicle, interest rate 10% - 2,584

569,302 616,881
Less: current portion 48.704 47,579

$520598  $569,302

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

2005 $ 48,704
2006 520,598

12



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Leases

The Association leases automotive equipment, computer and office equipment under operating leases
with various terms. Rent expense approximated $944,000 for 2004 and $889,000 for 2003. The future
minimum rental payments required under operating leases are approximately as follows:

2005 $ 656,000
2006 578,000
2007 540,000
2008 408,000
2009 182,000
Thereafter 298.000

Total minimum future rentals $2.662,000

The automotive equipment leases contain requirements for possible additional mileage surcharges in -
addition to the amounts disclosed above. A portion of the lease payments for automotive equipment
include payments for repairs and maintenance.

In connection with a member store’s lease obligation on a retail building and equipment located in

Skowhegan, Maine, the Association guarantees rental payments to a third party for $65,000 per year
until 2006. The maximum exposure to the Association is $130,000.

Capital Deposits

In order to assure the Association of working capital and to provide security for credit extended to
stockholders, each stockholder is required to invest in “capital deposits” of the Association to the extent
of the member’s capital deposit factor. The capital deposit factor is based upon three times each store’s
average total weekly purchases from the preceding year, up to $50,000 per store. Every member store is
required to pay into its capital deposit account a minimum of 1% of its total purchases until such time
that the store’s capital deposit factor has been met.

For the years ended March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003, interest was paid at the rate of 4.5% on the
member’s capital deposit factor after attaining one week’s average weekly purchases, and at the average
prime rate less .75% for the years ended March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003, or the capital deposit
factor rate (whichever is higher) for amounts in excess of the member’s capital deposit factor
(certificates of capital deposits).

If a stockholder sells his/her stock or otherwise ceases to be eligible for membership in the Association,

his/her capital deposits become payable upon demand, with actual payment made approximately six
weeks from the date of demand due to administrative requirements.

13
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ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Capital Deposits (Continued)

Detail of capital deposits was as follows:

2004 003
Capital deposits ’ $6,714,540  $7,879,505
Certificates of capital deposits, one-year term,
rate of 4.5% in 2003 - 253,280
$6.714,540 $8,132,785
Stockholders’ Equity

A requirement of the Association is that the preferred and common stock of Associated Grocers of
Maine, Inc. owned by each member be pledged to the Association for security of that member’s
accounts receivable. The members are required to purchase one share of common stock (Class A) upon
joining the organization at a par value of $1,500 and an additional $1,027 of paid-in capital. Upon
termination of a membership, a stockholder shall not sell or otherwise dispose of his or her stock unless
such stockholder has, at least thirty days previous thereto, offered in writing to sell such stock to the
Association at a price equal to the current purchase price established by the Board of Directors, and
such offer has not been accepted by the Association within said period.

The Association authorized 1,600 shares of nonvoting, preferred (Class B) stock at a par value of $2,500
each with a noncumulative dividend preference not to exceed 12%. Any dividends on all stock may be
applied to the member’s capital deposit account.

Members are required to purchase two shares of the preferred stock. Members have the option of
purchasing the stock outright or may have funds transferred from their capital deposit accounts. If funds
are transferred from the capital deposit accounts, members are required to replenish their accounts up to
their factors by weekly payments equal to 1% of their purchases.

As of March 26, 2004, 90 shares of preferred stock were subscribed by member-stores in the amount of
$225,000 (88 shares in the amount of $220,000 at March 28, 2003).

Benefit Plans

The Association’s defined contribution plan for the union requires a per hour contribution for
employees in 2004 and 2003 (not to exceed 40 hours per week), respectively.

The Association has a deferred savings 401(k), plan, which covers eligible non-union employees. The
Association will match up to the first 3.5% of the employee compensation.

Total benefit plan expense for 2004 and 2003 was $322,283 and $326,961, respectively.

14



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

11. Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) was as follows:

2004 2003
Current  Deferred Total Current  Deferred Total
Federal $60,507 $39,700 $100,207 $ (143) $ 85,000 $ 84,857
State 16,793 9,900 26.693 5.773 21.000 26.773
$77,300 $49.600 $126,900 $5.630 $106,000 $111.630

The Association’s effective income tax rate is different than would be expected if the federal statutory
rate was applied to income from operations primarily because of expenses deductible for financial
reporting purposes that are not deductible for tax purposes.

A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory federal rate of 34% to income tax expense at the
Association’s effective rate is as follows:

2004 2003
Computed tax at the expected statutory rate $105,656 § 81,238
State taxes, net of federal benefits 17,028 17,670
Other 4.216 12,722

$126,900 $111,63

L

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amount of assets and liabilities and the amounts used for income tax purposes and are
attributable to the following:

2004 2003

Deferred tax asset:

Trade accounts receivable and notes receivable $ 82,100 $ 60,000

Inventories 93,000 89,000

Accrued compensated absences 149,600 134,000

Net operating loss carryforward - 3.000

Total gross deferred tax asset 324,700 286,000
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation (421,300) (333.000)

Net deferred tax liability $_(96,600) $_(47,000)

15
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ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Income Taxes (Continued)

The net deferred tax assets (liability) in the accompanying balance sheets consist of the following
components:

2004 2003
Deferred tax assets — current $ 324,700 $ 286,000
Deferred tax liability — noncurrent (421.300) (333,000)
Net deferred tax liability $_(96,600) $_(47,000)

Management of the Association believes it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset can be
realized through the Association’s ability to generate taxable income in the future. Therefore no
valuation allowance is necessary on March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003.

Related Party Transactions

Board of Directors

Directors’ fees and travel reimbursement paid to the Board of Directors amounted to approximately
$64,000 for the years ended March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003.

The Association has notes receivables with certain board members of $449,503 and $151,846, as of
March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003, respectively. (See note 3)

16



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. Segment Reporting

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

The Association has addressed the reporting requirements under Financial Accounting Standards
Statements (FASB) No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise, and related information and
has classified its operations into reportable segments that provide different products or services.
Separate management of each segment is required because each business unit is subject to different
marketing, distribution and service strategies. Reportable segments are as follows:

2004

External:
Sales
Service Charges
Commission income
Advertising

Central billing/drop ship

Backhaul income

~ Intersegment revenue

Interest expense

Depreciation and
amortization

Profit (loss)

Assets

Expenditures for
long-lived assets

2003

External:
Sales
Service Charges
Commission income
Advertising
Central billing
Backhaul income

Intersegment revenue

Interest expense

Depreciation and
amortization

Profit (loss)

Assets

Expenditures for
long-lived assets

AG.
1

$ 130,811,985

3,426,934
811,373
694,856
128,380
533,793
771,517
183,853

20,465,763

327,240

131,995,796
3,600,429

748,379
842,358
129,000
660,016
753,755
127,307
20,562,800

490,406
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Allied
2

$ —
16,489
299,528

57,455

1,991
109,363
1,057,555

15,045
273,605

52,890

2,652
75,793
949,309

Eliminations

(8,(;10)
(49,415)

(57,455)
(8,040)

(109,363)
(1,917,178)

(8,0:10)
(44,850)

(52,890)
(8,040)

(75,793)
(1,716,373)

Total

$ 130,811,985

3,435,383
250,113
811,373
694,856
128,380

525,753

773,508
183,853
19,606,140

327,240

131,995,796
3,607,434
228,755
748,379
842,358
129,000

651,976
756,407
127,307

19,795,736

490,406



13.

14.

15.

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 26, 2004 and March 28, 2003

Segment Reporting (Continued)

Reportable segment | consists of Associated Grocers of Maine, which primarily derives its revenue
from the wholesale distribution of groceries. Segment 2 consists of Allied Insurance Agency of Maine,
Inc., which derives its commussion revenues from sales of insurance to member stores and others. A.G.
Development had no activities or assets as of and for the years ended March 26, 2004 and March 28,
2003. The accounting policies applied by each of the segments are the same as those used by the
Association.

Concentrations

All of the Association’s truck drivers, warehousemen and helpers are covered by a union contract that
expires on August 31, 2006.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Association’s financial instruments, other than long-term debt, consist of cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and payables, all of which have fair values substantially equal to carrying values due to their
short-term nature. The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt also approximates its carrying value.

18
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BAKER NEWMAN & NOYES

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATING
AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Board of Directors
Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the basic
consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position, results of operations and cash
flows of the individual companies and 1s not a required part of the basic consolidated financial statements.
The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Lt Vg Bl e

Portland, Maine : Limited Liability Company
May 7, 2004

One Hitmern Minni e STRerT P.O. Box 507 PorTLANG. Maine 04112 » TeLdrfSone 207-B79-2100 - TELEFAX 207-T774-1793 + WWW.BNNCPA.COM



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

March 26, 2004 with Comparative Information for March 28, 2003

ASSETS
Consolidating Information
Allied
Associated Insurance
Grocers Agency Elimination
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents b 14,329 $ 159,997 3 -
Trade accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $184,661 in 2004 and $150,000 in 2003) 5,113,814 76,090 (54,716)
Accounts receivable — affiliate - 806,203 (806,203)
Notes receivable — members, current portion 279,287 - -
Inventories 6,726,072 - -
Inventories — supplies 106,713 - -
Prepaid expenses 373,030 3,751 -
- Income taxes refundable - - -
Deferred taxes 324,700 - -
Total current assets 12,937,945 1,046,041 (860,919)
Property, plant and equipment:
Land and land improvements 157,369 - -
Buildings 5,824,870 - -
Automotive equipment 1,233,889 - -
Office furniture and equipment 2,214,654 92,789 -
Warehouse equipment and information systems 5.402.212 - -
14,832,994 92,789 -
Less accumulated depreciation 9.607.793 81,275 -
5,225,201 11,514 -
Construction in progress 97.538 - -
5,322,739 11,514 -
Other assets:
Notes receivable 830,974 - -
Investment with grocery cooperatives 279,218 - -
Deferred finance costs, net 8,628 - -
Investment in subsidiaries ' 1,056,259 - (1,056,259)
Other assets 30.000 — -
2.205.079 - (1,056,259)

Total assets $.20,465,763 $1,057,555 $(1,917,178)

~



SCHEDULE 1

Consolidated

2004 2003
3 174,326 $ 161,143
5,135,188 4,718,203
279,287 257,216
6,726,072 7,151,527
106,713 109,288
376,781 362,607
- 39,680
324,700 286,000
13,123,067 13,085,664
157,369 157,369
5,824,870 5,824,870
1,233,889 1,088,626
2,307,443 2,209,265
5,402,212 5,358,707
14,925,783 14,638,837
9.689.068 8,952,112
5,236,715 5,686,725
97,538 95,146
5,334,253 5,781,871
820,974 635,168
279,218 279,218
8,628 13,815

30,000 -

1,148.820 928.201
$_19.606,140 $.19,795,736

”~ oy



ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

March 26, 2004 with Comparative Information for March 28, 2003

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Bank overdraft
Notes payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accounts payable — affiliate
Accrued expenses
Income tax payable

Total current liabilities

Other liabilities:
Long-term debt — net of current portion
Deferred taxes

Capital deposits
Total liabilities

Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock — noncumulative
Preferred stock subscribed
Common stock
Paid-in capital
Retained earnings

Less: subscriptions receivable — preferred stock

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Consolidating Information

Allied
Associated Insurance
Grocers Agency Elimination
$ 484,469 $ - $ -
4,530,000 - -
48,704 - _
3,090,245 1,296 (56,261)
804,658 - (804,658)
1,048,201 - —
34,185 - —
10,040,462 1,296 (860,919)
520,598 - -
421,300 - -
941,898 - -
6,714,540 — —
17,696,900 1,296 (860,919)
965,000 - _
225,000 - -
357,000 10,000 (10,000)
227,459 - -
1,219,404 1,046,259 (1,046.259)
2,993,863 1,056,259 (1,056,259)
225.000 - -
2.768.863 1,056,259 (1.056,259)
$.20.465763 $1,057.555 $(1,917,178)




SCHEDULE 1

(CONTINUED)
Consolidated

2004 2003
$ 484,469 $ 471,368
4,530,000 3,000,000
48,704 47,579
3,035,280 3,487,501
1,048,201 1,073,306

34,185 -
9,180,839 8,079,754
520,598 569,302
421.300 333,000
941,898 902,302
6.714.540 8.132.785
16,837,277 17,114,841
965,000 997,500
225,000 220,000
357,000 366,000
227,459 233,621
1,219.404 1,083.774
2,993 863 2,900,895
225.000 220,000
2.768.863 2.680.895
$.19,606,140 $.19.795.736




ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF INCOME
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended March 26, 2004 with Comparative Information
for the Year Ended March 28, 2003

Allied
Associated Insurance
Grocers Agency Elimination
Sales $ 130,811,985 $ - $ -
Cost of sales 123,002,068 - -
Less vendors’ discounts 1,198.12} - -
Net cost of sales 121,803,947 — -
Gross profit 9,008,038 - -
Other operating income:
Service charges 3,426,964 16,459 (8,040)
Commission income - 299,528 {49,415)
Advertising 811,373 - -
Central billing/drop ship 694,856 - -
Backhaul income 128,380 -~ -
5,061,573 315,987 (57,455)
Operating expenses:
Labor — warehouse, handling and delivery 2,878,900 - -
Trucks and trailers 1,097,553 -~ -
Warehouse 311,676 -~ -
Depreciation 771,517 1,991 -
Administrative 8323161 204,633 (49.415)
13,382.807 206.624 (49.415)
Operating income 686,804 109,363 (8,040)
Other income (expense):
Interest on savings and notes receivable 48,379 - -
Loss on sale of property and equipment - - -
Interest on members’ accounts (344,571) - ‘ -
Interest — other (189,222) - 8.040°
485.414) - __ 8,040
Income before income taxes and equity in income of subsidiaries 201,390 109,363 -
Income taxes (126.900) - -
Income before equity in income of subsidiaries 74,490 109,363 -
Equity in income of subsidiaries 109,363 - (109.363)
Net income 183,853 109,363 (109,363)
Other comprehensive income:
Gain on derivative cash flow hedge ~ - -
$___ 183,853 $.100,363 $.(109.363)

Consolidating Information




SCHEDULE 2

Consolidated

2004
§ 130,811,985

123,002,068
1,198,121

2003
$ 131,995,796

124,313,015
1,221,514

121,803,947

123.091.501

9,008,038 8,904,295
3,435,383 3,607,434
250,113 228,755
811,373 748,379
694,856 842,358
128,380 129.000
5,320,105 5,555,926
2,878,900 2,976,898
1,097,553 1,093,281
311,676 313,150
773,508 751,220
8.478.379 8.451.767
13,540,016 13.586.316
788,127 873,905
48,379 20,066
- (3,058)
(344,571) (414,990)
(181.182) (236.986)
(477.374) (634.968)
310,753 238,937
(126,900) (111.630)
183,853 127,307
183,853 127,307
- 42.000
§ 183,853 $ 169,307
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ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

March 26, 2004 with Comparative Information for March 28, 2003

Administrative and office salaries
Data processing salaries
Commission expense

Janitorial expense

Supplies

Insurance

Utilities

Payroll taxes

Municipal and other taxes

Rent

Maintenance and repairs

Travel and entertainment
Professional

Amortization

Union pension plan

Pension plan — other

Data processing supplies and expense
Sales service expense and postage
Contributions

Bad debt expense

Dues and subscriptions
Advertising

Miscellaneous

Total

Consolidating Information

Allied
Associated Insurance
Grocers Agency Elimination
$ 3,291,033 $114,674 $ -
259,576 - -
- 21,281 -
55,263 - -
194,155 1,605 -
1,804,471 16,890 (49,415)
508,303 - -
482,969 10,248 -
280,475 126 -
134,450 9,984 -
22,270 - -
251,925 1,585 -
236,970 5,200 -
5,187 - -
101,209 - -
216,368 4,706 -
165,842 - -
26,639 - -
2,850 - -
52,083 1,362 -
35,370 1,552 -
63,584 1,696 -
132,169 13,724 -
$.8.323,161 $204,633 $.(49415)
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Consolidated
%
2004 Sales
$ 3,405,707 2.60
259,576 20
21,281 .02
55,263 .04
195,760 15
1,771,946 1.36
508,303 39
493217 .38
280,601 21
144,434 11
22,270 .02
253,510 .19
242,170 .19
5,187 -
101,209 .08
221,074 17
165,342 13
26,639 .02
2,850 ~
53,445 .04
36,922 .03
65,280 05
145,893 10
$8.478379 6048

SCHEDULE 3

2003
$ 3,398,831
280,432
24,131
60,581
219,148
1,818,144
525,328
508,247
222,993
148,323
27,870
241,582
307,305
5,187
106,390
220,071
157,146
31,860
3,340
(63,508)
26,507
64,990
116,369

$8.451,767

%
Sales

2.57

1.38



Item 1.

{w0253021.6}

PART HI—EXHIBITS
Index to Exhibits
Charter and Bylaws:

(a) Articles of Incorporation of Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc., as amended
to date.

(b) Bylaws of Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc., as amended to date
Instruments defining the rights of security holders:
(a) See items 2(a) and (b) above.

b) Form of Rescission Letter to purchasers of Company securities
between March 28, 2003 and September 16, 2003.

Material agreements to which Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc. is a party:

(a) Master Loan and Security Agreement with Fleet National Bank,
dated as of May 12, 1998,

@) First Amendment to Master Loan and Security Agreement,
dated as of October 26, 2000.

(i) Second Amendment to Master Loan and Security
Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2002.

(b) Indenture and Loan Agreement with the City of Gardiner, Maine,
dated as of May 7, 1985.

(1) Second Security Agreement with the City of Gardiner,
Maine, dated as of May 7, 1985;

(i1) Second Mortgage with the City of Gardiner, Maine, dated
as of May 7, 1985;

(i)  UDAG Grant Agreement between the City of Gardiner,
Maine and the Secretary of Housing and Urban
Development, dated December 3, 1984.

(©) Commercial Loan Agreements with the following parties:

1) Wheaton & McLaughlin, Inc., d/b/a Princeton Food Mart,
dated as of October 8, 2001;

(11) Falls Retail, Inc., d/b/a Falls Market, dated as of
October 8, 2001;
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(ili)  Downeast Retail Corp., d/b/a Elmer’s Food Mart, dated as
of October 8, 2001;

@iv) Rake, Inc., d/b/a Woodland Food Mart, dated as of
October 8, 2001;

v) Coastal Retail Corp., d/b/a Southwest Food Mart, dated as
of October &, 2001;

(vi) KARP, Inc., dated as of June 16, 2003,
(vil)  The Umbrella Factory, dated as of January 20, 2004;

(viii) Williams Development, Inc., d/b/a The Main Street
Market, dated as of February 21, 2003.

@ Employment Agreement entered into with Michael E. Westort,
dated as of February 18, 2003.

10(a). Consent of Baker Newman and Noyes LLC

11. Opinion of Pierce Atwood regarding legality of securities and other matters.

{wW0253011.5} 56



SIGNATURES:

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Gardiner, State of Maine, on June __3¥> ,

2004.

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC.

N AN

Michael E. Wéstort, its President and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on

the dates indicated.

AN WS 775

Michael Westort, President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas Barber, Director

John Beaupre, Director

Craig Burgess, Director

Wayne randall, Director
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Fr&derick Crowe, Director

Arthur Markos, Director

Barry McCormick, Director
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Charles O’Brien, Director

Vemon Seile, Director

David Sleeper, Director

Paul Trusiani, Director



This offering statement has been signed by the following person in the capacity and on
the date indicated above.

Ronatd-€Ioutier, Chief Financial Officer




SIGNATURES:

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Gardiner, State of Maine, on June 20 ,
2004.

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC.

By:
Michael E. Westort, its President and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Michael Westort, President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas Danbec

Thomas Barber, Director Charles O’Brien, Director

John Beaupre, Director

Vernon Seile, Director

Craig Burgess, Director David Sleeper, Director

Wayne Crandall, Director Paul Trusiani, Director

Frederick Crowe, Director

Arthur Markos, Director

Barry McCormick, Director
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SIGNATURES:

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Gardiner, State of Maine, on June 2D ,
2004.

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC.

By:
Michael E. Westort, its President and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Michael Westort, President and Chief Executive Officer

Charles O’Brien, Director

Vernon Seile, Director

Craig Burgess, Director David Sleeper, Director

Wayne Crandall, Director Paul Trusiani, Director

Frederick Crowe, Director

Arthur Markos, Director

Barry McCommick, Director
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SIGNATURES:

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Gardiner, State of Maine, on June &2 ,
2004,

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC.

By:
Michael E. Westort, its President and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Michael Westort, President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas Barber, Director Charles O’Brien, Director

John Beaupre, Director

Vemon Seile, Director

David Sleeper, Director

Wayne Crandall, Director Paul Trusiani, Director

Frederick Crowe, Director

Arthur Markos, Director

Barry McCormick, Director
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SIGNATURES:

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Gardiner, State of Maine, on June 30 ,
2004,

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC.

By:
Michael E. Westort, its President and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Michael Westort, President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas Barber, Director Charles O’Brien, Director

John Beaupre, Director

Vernon Seile, Director

Craig Burgess, Director David Sleeper, Director

Waynetrandall, Director Paul Trusiani, Director

Frederick Crowe, Director

Arthur Markos, Director

Barry McCormick, Director

57



SIGNATURES:

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Gardiner, State of Maine, on June :ZQ ,
2004.

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC.,

By:
Michael E. Westort, its President and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Michael Westort, President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas Barber, Director Charles O’Brien, Director

John Beaupre, Director

Vernon Seile, Director

Craig Burgess, Director David Sleeper, Director

Wayne Crandall, Director Paul Trusiani, Director

Frederick Crowe, Director

(-0 S —

Arthur Markos, Director

Barry McCormick, Director
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SIGNATURES:

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Gardiner, State of Maine, on June 20 ,
2004.

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC.

By:
Michael E. Westort, its President and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Michael Westort, President and Chief Executive Officer
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Craig Burgess, Director David Sleeper, Director
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SIGNATURES:

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Gardiner, State of Maine, on June 2D ,
2004.

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC.

By:
Michael E. Westort, its President and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Michael Westort, President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas Barber, Director Charles O’Brien, Director

John Beaupre, Director %M/’éﬁé

Vemon Seile, Director

Craig Burgess, Director David Sleeper, Director

Wayne Crandall, Director Paul Trusiani, Director

Frederick Crowe, Director

Arthur Markos, Director

Barry McCormick, Director
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SIGNATURES:

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Gardiner, State of Maine, on June 20
2004,

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC.

By:
Michael E. Westort, its President and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Michael Westort, President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas Barber, Director Charles O’Brien, Director

John Beaupre, Director

Veron Seile, Director
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Craig Burgess, Director David Sleeper, Director
Wayne Crandall, Director Paul Trusiani, Director

Frederick Crowe, Director

Arthur Markos, Director

Barry McCormick, Director
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SIGNATURES:

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Gardiner, State of Maine, on June QQ ,
2004,

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC.

By:
Michael E. Westort, its President and Chief Executive Officer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Michael Westort, President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas Barber, Director Charles O’Brien, Director

John Beaupre, Director

Vemon Seile, Director

Craig Burgess, Director :?er Director
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Wayne Crandall, Director Paul Tr;;ﬁm Director

Frederick Crowe, Director

Arthur Markos, Director

Barry McCormick, Director
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INDENTURE AND ILOAN AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT made this 7th day of May, 1985 by and between the
Inhabitants of the City of Gardiner (herein referred to as
"T,ender"), a Maine municipal corporation located in the County
of Kennebec and State of Maine and Associated Grocers of Maine,
Inc, of South Gardiner, County ¢f Kennebec and State of Maine
{herein referred to as "Borrower");

WHEREAS, Borrower owns a certain 123 acre tract of land and
buildings thereon in the City of Gardiner, County of Kennebec
and State of Maine being more particularly described in a
Second Mortgage of even date herewith (herein referred to as
the "Second Mortgage") from Borrower to Lender. Borrower owns
certain equipment or is purchasing other eguipment being more
.particularly described in a Second Security Interest of even
date herewith (hérein referred to as the "Second Security
Interest"), (said real estate together with all buildings,
fixtures and other improvements now or hereafter erected,
constructed or located thereon and said equipment, being herein
sometimes called the "Premises"); )

WHEREAS, Borrower intends to construct a warehouse, office
and distribution facility on the Premises and to purchase
certain equipment, such construction and purchase of egquipment
being herein referred to as the "Project", in accordance with
the plans and specifications listed on Exhibit "A" attached
hereto (herein referred to as the "Plans"):

WHEREAS, Lender hasg agreed to make and Borrower has agreed
to accept a loan (herein referred to as the "Loan") for the
Project in an amount not exceeding One Million Dollars
($1,000,000), to be evidenced by Borrower's promissory note in
such amount (herein referred to as the "“Second Note™, to be
secured by the Second Mortgage and the Second Security
Interest):

WHEREAS, within 30 days of the execution of this Agreement,
the Borrower will execute and deliver to Lender the Second
Note, the Second Mortgage, the Second Security Interest and
certain other instruments and documents required by the Lender
as a condition precedent to the making of the Loan (the Second
Note, the Security Mortgage, the Second Security Interest, this
Agreement, and all such other instruments and documents being
collectively referred to herein as the Loan "Instruments");

WHEREAS, Lender has approved and issued Industrial
Development Bonds (IDB's) in the sum of §6,000,000, which funds
will be borrowed by Borrower to finance the construction of the
buildings for the Project and to partially finance the purchase
of equipment, which loan is secured by a Mortgage Indenture of



Trust and Agreement, on the Premises dated December 1, 1984,
recorded in the Kennebec County Regist;y of Deeds, Book 2760,
Page 49; (herein referred to as the "First Loan™).

WHEREAS, Lender reguires additional capital to purchase the
equipment required for the Project;

WHEREAS, the Lender has been awarded an Urban Development
Action Grant in the amount of $1,000,000 from the United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development (UDAG Grant Number
B/85/AB/23/0042) with a preliminary approval date as of
November 7, 1984, (herein referred to as the "UDAG Grant");

WHEREAS, the execution of this Agreement is a condition of
the Lender making the Loan of the UDAG Grant to Borrower;

THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and
the respective agreements and undertakings of the parties,
Lender and Borrower agree as follows:

1. Construction. As consideration for periodic advances
of the proceeds of the Note in accordance with terms hereof,
Borrower agrees as follows:

(a) To construct the Project on the premises in complete
accordance with the Plans:

(b) To construct the Project using first-class workmanship
and materials of the quality called for by the Plans,
in accordance with all restrictions, agreements, and
governmental requirements applicable to or affecting
the Project;

(c) To commence construction of the Project forthwith, to
diligently proceed with construction and to complete
the Project on or before February 1, 1986 (such date
being hereinafter referred to as the "Completion
Date") ;

(d) To comply with the terms of. all contracts for
construction of the Project and any surety bonds
issued in connection therewith, and to give Lender
immediate notice of any non-compliance by any party
under said contracts ¢or bonds:

(e) To keep the premises, buildings and improvements, and

© all materials stored on the premises free from
recorded mechanics' liens, other liens and claims of
record except the First Loan whether inferior or
superior to the Second Mortgage and to keep all
buildings, improvements and materials on the Premises
in good repair and insured against loss by fire and
other casualty to any amount and by such companies as
shall be satisfactory to the Lender, and maintain such

insurance for the benefit of and second payable in the
case of loss to Lender, with disbursement or
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disposition of any insurance proceeds to be made by
Lender in accordance with the terms of the Second
Mortgage. Borrower shall provide Lender with a
certificate of such insurance;

To furnish waivers of liens or claims upon the
Premises and the buildings, improvements or materials
thereon and such other surveys, releases and
assurances as Lender from time to time may deem
necessary or may request for its protection, including
surety bonds or other assurances or performances and
payment by Borrower and any contractors,
subcontractors or materialmen.

To pay when due all indebtedness evidenced by the
Second Note or arising in connection with the Loan and
to otherwise comply with all terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement, this Second Note and the
Second Mortgage and all other Loan Instruments.

To maintain books, records and other documents at its
office relating directly to the receipt and
disbursement of Loan funds;

To furnish Lender, upon its request, the following
documents when related to the expenditure of UDAG
funds: executed copies of all construction contracts
and subcontracts, change orders, invoices, bonds,
estimates with respect to said construction; and also
upon its request to give sworn statements setting
forth names of contractors, subcontractors, and all
others furnishing labor, materials and services to
said construction, including amounts due, amounts paid
and total contract prices; and Borrower agrees not to
change or alter any of the same without Lender's prior
written consent.

To furnish to Lender, at Borrower's cost, updated
title opinions for each periodic advance of proceeds
for construction as completed in stages, as Lender may
require during the construction period in order for
Lender to assure itself that title to the mortgaged
Premises remains clear of record and free of any title
defects, encumbrances or liens; it being understood
that if any title defects, encumbrances or liens arise
with respect to said Premises, any such occurrence
shall constitute a breach or default herein by
Borrower.

Construction Schedule. Borrower shall submit to

Lender a construction progress schedule in a form satisfactory
to Lender and thereafter, on demand of Lender, construction
progress reports showing the then present status of
construction. TIf construction progress reports reflect a
substantial deviation from the construction progress schedule
initially submitted to Lender, Borrower shall augment
Borrower's construction reports with detailed explanations of



such deviation and of the specific corrective steps which
Borrower proposes to take in response thereto.

3. Consultants and Inspections. Lender's routine
periodic inspections of the progress of construction of the
Project will be conducted at its own expense. If at any time
and from time to time, Lender determines, in the exercise of
its sole discretion, that additional information is required
for purposes hereof, Lender may nevertheless require that
construction of the Project be the subject of additional
architectural, engineering, construction or accounting
inspections and reports, and in such event, the expenses
thereof shall be paid by Borrower. Lender, its agents,
consultants and employees shall have unrestricted access to the
Project and to the Plans, construction contracts, and
Borrower's books and accounts, so far as they relate to the
UDAG funds expended for the Project, for the purpose of
determining compliance with this Agreement. The function of
Lender's consultants shall be solely to assist Lender, and
Lender, its agents, consultants and employees shall not be
liable for any loss, claim, or damage which may arise as a
result of negligence, defective or inappropriate design,
materials, workmanship, and supervision or from any other loss,
claim or damage arising in connection with the Project.
Borrower agrees to hold Lender, its agents, consultantg and
employees harmless and to indemnify Lender, its agents,
consultants and employees from any such loss, claim or damage.

4. Loan Advances Generally. Lender's obligation to
advance funds hereunder shall be subject to the following
general conditions, and Lender's obligation to advance funds
for construction costs and other costs shall be further subject
to special conditions set forth in Paragraph 5 of this
Agreement.

(a) Except as otherwise specifically provided herein,
advances shall only be made pursuant to Borrower's
signed, written requisition.

(b) No advances may be made until Borrower has furnished
Lender with: (1) an ALTA policy for mortgage
insurance, in the full amount of the UDAG Loan and
(2) a Builder's Risk and Fire Insurance policy duly
endorses to indicated Lender as a second payable
insured mortgagee.

(c) After closing of the Loan, Lender shall not be
required to make advances more frequently than monthly.

(d) Advances shall only be made for the purposes and
categories of costs delineated in the "Project
Budget-Summary of Projected Expenditures," set forth
in Exhibit D to the UDAG Agreement, and, unless
otherwise agreed by Lender, advances for any
particular category of cost shall be limited to the
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amount set forth in said exhibit. Advances shall be
made payable directly to Borrower. In the event of
default hereunder, Lender may, at its sole option,
make direct payments as set forth in Paragraph 7
hereof.

In the event Lender determines, at any time and from
time to time, that the undisbursed balance of the Loan
proceeds is ingsufficient to pay in full for completion
of development of the Project, Lender may withhold any
further disbursements of the Loan proceeds and require
that the Borrower deposit with Lender such sum of
money to be credited to the Loan account, as will in
the sole judgment of the Lender bring the undisbursed
balance of the Loan account to an amount which is
sufficient to complete the development ¢f the Project.
Lender shall have a reasonable time, not exceeding
seven (7) business days after receipt of any
requisition, completely and properly submitted, to
make such inquiry (as Lender in its sole discretion
shall deem appropriate) into compliance with the
requirements set forth in this Paragraph 4 and, if
applicable, the conditions set forth in Paragraph 5 of
this Agreement. Lender shall not be required to
advance funds so requisitioned if it reasonably
concludes that such requirements or conditions have
not been met.

Lender shall have no obligation to make advances
hereunder if Borrower is then in default of this
Agreement, or the Second Note, the Second Mortgage,
the Second Security Agreement.

Unless and until Borrower has posted or deposited with
Lender security in such form and amount as Lender may,
in its sole judgment deem adequate, Lender shall have
no obligations to make advances hereunder if there are
legal actions or other proceedings pending or
threatened which may adversely affect the Project or
if there are notices appearing of record of any
contract, lien or encumbrance affecting all or any
portion of the Premises, the Project or the materials
and equipment to be incorporated therein or thereon.
Lender shall have no obligation to make advances
hereunder if there are any violations of any
agreenments, restrictions or other encumbrances, or of
any building, zoning or environmental laws, or of any
other laws, rules, permits, or regulations relating to
or affecting the Premises, or if the Project has been
materially damaged by fire or other casualty, or if
the Premises or a material portion thereof has been
taken by eminent domain,



5.

Advances for Construction Costs. Requisitions for

advances for the payment of construction costs shall be subject
to the general conditions set forth in Paragraph 4 of this
Agreement, and shall, in addition, be subject to the following

special conditions:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(4)

(e)

(a)

Advances shall only for the purpose of partially
financing the purchase and installation of capital
eguipment for the Project, up to the amounts set forth
in Exhibit D of the UDAG Agreement and the amounts in
Exhibit D to the UDAG grant for non-construction costs.
Except for f£final payment, each requisition for payment
of construction costs shall be approved and signed by
Borrower and shall be accompanied by (i) an
Application and Certificate for Payment (prepared on
AIA Document G702 and G703 or such other form as
Lender may approve certified by an architect,
construction manager or other certifying official
acceptable to Lender and (ii) lien waivers from the
Contractor to the date of requisition, and all
subcontractors and materialmen with respect to amounts
due to the date of the immediately proceding
requisition;

Lender shall be obligated to only make advances after
Borrower has expended not less than $600,000 of
private fund or funds from the First Loan. Thereafter
said advances by Lender shall not exceed the ratio of
$1.00 to every $5.40 of private or First Loan funds
expended by the Borrower.

At the request of Lender, certified copies stating the
total disbursement of UDAG funds and First Loan or
other private funds shall be provided by (l) Borrower
and (2) the Trustee for the First Loan, as defined in
Paragraph 6(b). Such certifications shall be provided
to Lender for the purpose of verifying that Borrower
has maintained the required disbursement ration of
UDAG funds to private funds.

Lender reserves the right which it may or may not
exercise in its sole discretion to independently
verify the accuracy of any matters certified to Lender
by the Borrower or the Trustee pursuant to the terms
of Paragraph 4 or Paragraph 5 of this Agreement,

First Mortgage.

Lender agrees that its Second Mortgage and Second
Security Agreement are to be subordinate to a
Coordinate First Mortgage and First Security Agreement
(i.e. the "Mortgage Indenture of Trust and Agdreement")
granted by the Borrower to the City of Gardiner, the
Trustee and the LOC Bank, as defined in subparagraph
(b) hereinbelow, in the amount of six million dollars
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(a)
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8.

($6,000,000) plus any accrued interest, legal fees and
any other disbursements made for. the Project which are
not paid for by Borrower plus further advances by the
Bond Purchaser, as defined in subparagraph (b)
hereinbelow, which are invested in the Project and are
required for its completion.

For purposes of this Agreement, unless otherwise
noted, the following definitions are applicable:
"Prustee”™ means The First National Bank of Boston,
Boston, Massachusetts.

"LOC Bank" means the State Street Bank and Trust
Company, 225 Franklin Street, Boston, Massachusetts.
"Bond Purchaser™ means the institution or entity that
purchased the bonds on the issue date.

Sale, Refinancing of First Loan.

In the event that the Borrower sells or transfers any
interest in the parcel of land or the buildings
thereon which are part of the Second Mortgage or sells
or transfers any interest in the equipment purchased
with the proceeds of the Loan, the Loan shall
immediately become due and payable. This subparagraph
(a) shall not apply to any exchange or replacement of
the equipment described herein.

Borrower may refinance the First Loan obtained to
finance the Project at any time. 1In the event of said
refinancing, Lender may grant an interest superior to
the Second Mortgage and Second Security Interest of
this Loan only for the amount of the then outstanding
balance of the First Loan, including interest and
accrued interest. Any mortgage or security agreement
for any refinanced amount exceeding the then
outstanding balance of the First Loan shall be
subordinated to the Second Mortgage and Second
Security Interest of this Loan.

Incorporation. The UDAG Grant is hereby incorporated

into this Agreement and all of its terms and conditions are
terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Borrower:

(a)

(b)

In particular, but not by way of limitation the

shall construct a warehouse, office and distribution
facility of approximately 218,000 square feet on the
premises and shall purchase and install capital
equipment in said buildings, at a total cost,
inclusive of new machinery, equipment, and any and all
costs associated with the IDB issue, of at least

shall complete the Project by February 1, 1986;
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(d)
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(g)

(h)
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shall invest not legs than $6,000,000 in private funds
in the Project, including any and all costs incurred
in connection with the IDB issue;

shall adhere to the time frame for performance which
is set forth in Exhibit F of the UDAG Agreement.

shall execute the Second Note which will have a term
of twenty (20) years, commencing upon completion of
construction, (but in no event later than February 1,
1986), with an interest rate as follows: vears 1/3,
0%: 4/20, 8%; a repayment schedule as follows:
guarterly installments in accordance with the
following schedule calculated to amortize the loan
over a twenty-~five (25) year period; payments of
principal and interest deferred in years 1/3; payment
of interest and principal in years 4/20; with a
balloon payment sufficient to pay off the entire
outstanding indebtedness of principal, interest and
acerued interest at the end of year 20; no prepayment
of the Second Note may oecur without written approval
of the Lender;

shall secure the Second Note with a Second Mortgage in
the Premises; the Second Mortgage shall have provision
that a default under the First Mortgage shall be a
default under the Second Mortgage and there shall be
no exculpation clause in favor of the Borrower in the
Second Mortgage;

shall also secure the Second Note with a Second
Security Interest in favor of Borrower upon all
capital equipment purchased with the proceeds thereof,
subject to the coordinate First Security Interest,
which Second Security Interest cannot be subordinated
to any other interest. Borrower shall cause to be
recorded all appropriate Uniform Commercial Code
financing statements and-or Security Agreements
required to secure the Loan,

shall guarantee the repayment of the Loan.

Other Requirements., (See Article IX of Grant

Agreement) .

(a)

(b)

Upon instruction from the Secretary of the United
States Department of Housing and Urban Development,
(the "Secretary") prior to the completion of all
Lender's activitiesg, all Program Income received by
the Borrower shall be deposited by the Lender in
escrow under arrangements approved by the Secretary,
in order to provide Funds to assure the completion of
the Lender's activities.

All Program Income received by the Borrower, prior to
the completion of all Lender's activities shall be
transmitted to the Lender for payment of costs
incurred for Lender's activities,
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(d)

(e)

(£)

(¢)

(h)

All Program Income received by the Borrower after the
completion of all Lender's activities shall, at the
option of the Lender, either be transmitted to the
Lender, or used by the Borrower with Lender approval,
for community and economic development activities
which would be eligible for assistance under Title I
of the Act, unless otherwise provided in the close-out
agreement between Lender and HUD.

Lender and Borrower hereby warrant that Borrower has
obtained, or has reasonable assurance that it will
obtain, all Federal, State and local governmental
approvals and reviews required by law to be obtained
by the Lender or Borrower for the Project.

Borrower hereby acknowledges that the Secretary in
selecting the Lender for the amount of the UDAG Grant,
relied in material part upon the assured completion of
the Project and that the Borrower hereby assures the
Lendexr that the Project will be completed by the
Borrower. vo-

Borrower will use its best effort to create or caused

‘to be created by January 31, 1988 an aggregate of new

103 total permanent jobs; of which 77 will be
permanent jobs for Lower and Moderate-Income Persons;
of which 67 will be for CETA-Eligible Persons: of
which one (1) will be for a minority.

Borrower will supply Lender, on a quarterly basis, a

list of all new jobs created by the Project, including

the name of the new employee, his or her trade,
profession or position, and initial date of

employment. This provision terminates on January 31,

1988.

Contractor will supply Lender on a monthly basis a

list of all new construction jobs created by the

Project, including the name of the new employee, his

or her trade and the initial date of employment. This

provision terminates upon the completion of the
construction of the Project.

Borrower agrees that:

(i) it will keep and maintain books and records and
other documents relating directly to the receipt
and disbursement of Loan funds; and

(1i) any duly acknowledged representative of the
Secretary por Comptroller General of the United
States shall, at all reasonable times, have
access to and the right to inspect, copy, audit
and examine all such books, records and other
documents of the Borrower until the completion of
all close-out procedures (i.e,, the date when all
private and UDAG funds have been drawn down)
respecting the UDAG Grant and the final
settlement and conclusion of all issues arising
out of UDAG Grant.



(k)

(1)

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Borrower agrees that any duly authorized
representative of the Secretary, at all xeasonable
times, shall have access to any portion of the Project
in which the Borrower is involved until the completion
of all close-out procedures respecting the UDAG Grant.
Borrower agrees that the lending of the UDAG Grant
funds to it shall not be nor be deemed to be an
assignment of grant funds and that the Borrower has
neither succeeded to any right, benefits or advantage
of the Lender under the UDAG Grant, nor attained any
rights, privileges, authorities or interests in or
under the UDAG Grant.

Borrower agrees that this Agreement shall not be
amended in any material respect without the prior
written approval of the Secretary.

Borrower agrees that nothing contained in the UDAG
Grant, this Agreement nor any act by the Secretary,
the Lender or the Borrower, shall be deemed or
construed by any of the parties, or by third persons,
to create any relationship of third-party beneficiary,
principal and agent, limited or general partnership,
or joint venture, or of any.association or
relationship inveolving the Secretary.

Borrower acknowledged that Lender shall not be liable
to Borrower, or to any party except HUD, for
completion of, or the failure to complete, any
activities which are part of the Project, except those
specified in Exhibit B of the UDAG Grant.

Borrower and Lender agree that no member, officer, or
employee of the Lender, or its designees, or agents,
no consultant, no member of the governing body of the
Lender and no other public official of the City of
Gardiner or such locality or localities, who exercises
or has exercised any function or responsibilities with
respect of the Project during his or her tenure, or
who is in a position to participate in a
discrimination process or gain inside information with
regard to the Project, shall have any interest, direct
or indirect, in any contract or subc¢ontract, or the
proceeds thereof, for work to be performed in
connection with the Project or in any activity or
benefit therefrom, which is part of the Project at any
time during or after said person's tenure. This
provision shall be in addition to the requirements in
Attachments O or OMB Circular A-102 and A-110.
Borrower agrees to provide a project sign consistent
with any criteria which may be established by the
Secretary.

Borrower agrees that it will carry out all of the
activities set forth in Exhibit C of the UDAG
Agreement.



10. Lender's Responsibilities. Lender agrees that it will
carry out all of the activities set forth in Exhibit B of the

UDAG Agreement.

11. Default. At the sole option of Lender, exercisable by
giving written notification thereof to Borrower, any of the
following shall constitute a default of this Agreement:

(a) Any representation made by Borrower is untrue or any
warranty not fulfilled;

(b) Borrower fails to pay the principal or interest on the
Second Note when due and such failure continues for a
period of thirty (30) days;

(¢) Borrower fails to observe or perform any covenant,
warranty or agreement to be performed by Borrower
pursuant to this Agreement and such failure continues
for a period of thirty (30) days after Lender gives
written notice of such failure to Borrower; or
Borrower is in breach of- any other Loan Instrument and
such breach shall not be remedied within the time
permitted under such Loan Instrument;

(d) Borrower shall be in default in its agreement with
First Loan or under any other agreement with any
party, which default has a materially adverse effect
on the financial condition of Borrower:

(e) Borrower is directly involved in any financial
difficulty evidenced by: (i) an assignment,
composition or similar device for benefit of
creditors, or (ii) inability to pay debts when due, or
(1ii) an attachment or receivership of assets which is
not dissolved within sixty (60) days, or (iv) the
filing by Borrower of a petition under any chapter of
the Federal Bankruptecy Code or the institution of any
proceeding under any law relating to bankruptcy,
bankruptcy reorganization, insolvency or relief of
debtors, or (v) the filing against Borrower or any
partner or any such guarantor of an involuntary
petition under any chapter of the Federal Bankruptcy
Act where the institution of any other proceeding
under any law relating to bankruptcy, bankruptey
reorganization, insolvency or relief of debtors where
such petitioner proceeding is not dismissed within
sixty (60) days from the date on which it is filed or
instituted;

(£) Borrower fails to comply with any terms or conditions
relating to the effectiveness or enforceability of any
bonds for performance of the work or payment of the
costs thereof;

(g) Lender is, for a period of sixty (60) days, entitled
to withhold advances pursuant to Paragraph 5 hereof:

- 11 -



(h)

12.
its sole

(a)

(b)
()

Any event occurs which causes Borrower to lose its
private financing upon which this Loan is contingent.

Rights on Default. Upon any default, Lender may, at
option:

By notice in writing to Borrower, (i) declare the
termination of this Agreement and Lender shall not be
required thereafter to advance any part of the
remainder of said Loan and (ii) declare the Second
Note to be immediately due and payable without
presentation, demand, protest or other notice of
dishonor of any kind, all of which are hereby
expressly waived.

Exercise any other remedies provided by any Loan
Instrument, or at law, or in equity.

At its discretion, take possession of the Premises and
perform any and all work and labor necessary to
complete the improvements substantially according to
the Plans and Specifications (Exhibit A), and employ
watchmen to protect the premises from injury. All
sums so expended by the Lender shall be deemed to have
been paid to the Borrower and secured by the
Mortgage. For this purpose, Borrower hereby
constitutes and appoints Lender its true and lawful
attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution in
the Premises, to complete the Project in the name of
Borrower. Borrower hereby specifically empowers said
attorney as follows: (i) to use any funds of the
Borrower, including any balance which may be held in
escrow and any Loan proceeds which may remain
unadvanced for the purpose of completing the Project
in the manner called for by the Plans and
epecifications; (ii) to make such additions, changes
and corrections in the Plans and specifications as
shall be necessary and desirable to complete the
Project in substantially the same manner contemplated
by the Plans and specifications; (iii) to employ such
contractors, subcontractors, agents, architects and
inspectors as shall be required for said purposes;
(iv) to pay, settle or compromise all existing bills
and claims which may be liens against the Premises, or
as may be necessary or desirable for the completion of
the Project or for the clearance of title; (v) to
execute all applications and certificates in the name
of the Borrower which may be required by any of the
contract documents: (vi) to prosecute and defend all
actions or proceedings in connection with Premises or
construction of the Project and to take such action
and require such performance as it deems necessary
under the accepted guaranty of completion; (vii) to
take over and use all or any part of the labor,
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materials, supplies and equipment contracted for,
owned by or under the control of Borrower, whether or
not previously incorporated in the Project; (viii) to
do any and every act with respect to construction ox
completion of the Project which the Borrower might do
in its own behalf, including without limitation
thereof, the execution, acknowledgement and delivery
of all instruments, documents and papers in the name
of Borrower as may be necessary or desirable in the
sole discretion of Lender. It is further understood
and agreed that this power of attorney, which shall be
deemed to be a power coupled with an interest, shall
not be revoked.

In any event Lender exercises its option to terminate the
Agreement, no creditor of Borrower or any other person, entity
or court shall have any claim upon the unadvanced remainder of
the Loan, and Lender shall, in no case, be a trustee or
fiduciary for anyone with respect- thereto.

13, Assignment of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be
assigned by Borrower equitably or otherwise without written
consent of Lender,.

l4. waivers. WNo course of dealing by Lender, or delay in
accelerating the maturity of the Note following any default, or
in taking or failing to take any other action with respect to
any default shall affect Lender's rights to later take such
action with respect thereto, and no waiver as to any one
default shall affect Lender's rights as to any other default.

15. Notices. Any notice under this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be deemed delivered if mailed, certified
mail, return receipt requested to a party at the address
indicated immediately below or at such other address as may be
specified by notice duly given after the date hereof.

Lender: City of Gardiner
City Manager
City Hall _
Gardiner, Maine 04345

. Borrower: Associated Grocers of Maine,
nec.
P.0O. Box 97
South Gardiner, Maine 04359
Attn: General Manager

16. Interpretation. Reference to the singular or the
plural shall be deemed to inc¢lude the other where the context
requires.




17. Successors and Assigns. All warranties, covenants and
agreements in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and
shall be binding on the heirs, executors, administrators, legal
representatives, successors and assigns of the respective
parties.

18. Governing Law. This Agreement and all Loan
Instruments shall be governed and construed by the laws of the
State of Maine,

19. Contingent. This Agreement is contingent upon the
approval of the Secretary.

In the event any part of this Agreement is held to be
unenforceable or void, such fact shall not affect the validity
or enforceability of the remaining part thereof,

WITNESS the due execution hereof as of the day and year
first above written.

LENDER
City of Gardiner

Cowst 4 bpter— 5

Aranim Z“>%@%&AW%ﬂiazéﬁgbﬂ¢§§M%
BORROWER

Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc.

(st f fbect oy Lotors A

Robert N. l)::a.Nmshi-(, ?RaS(MNf—

Approved ¢ 1985

Secretary of the United Gtates 5 T
Department of Housing and Urban - " -
Development wc B
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Exhibit 6(b) (1)

SECOND SECURITY AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT made this 7th day of May, 1985 by and between
Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc., of Gardiner, County of
Rennebec, and State of Maine, (hereinafter the "Debtor™), and
the City of Gardinerx, a Maine municipality located in Kennebec
County, State of Maine, (hereinafter the "City™).

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged, Debtor hereby grants to City a second purchase
money security interest in the following types and items of
property (all of which are hereinafter collectively called the
"Collateral”): '

A. All of Debtor's equipment, machinery, tools, office
machinery, furniture, and fixtures now owned or
hereafter acquired by the loan provided by the City
and the loan provided by the City pursuant to an
Industrial Revenue Bond issue.

B. Proceeds, if any, of the above collateral. The
foregoing security interest is given to secure payment
of a certain note of Debtor to City of even date
herewith, and all costs and expenses, including
reasonable attorney's fees, incurred by City in
collecting the same (hereinafter collectively called
the "Obligations").

1. Definitions. The capitalized terms used herein are as
defined in an Indenture and Loan Adgreement of even date between
Associated Grocers of Maine and the City of Gardiner.

2. Debtor's Warranties, Representations and Obligations.
Debtor hereby makes the following representations and
warranties, assumes the following obligations and agrees to
perform the following acts, in addition to any other
representations, warrfanties, obligations or duties contained
herein or prescribed by the Maine Uniform Commercial Code, all
of which are incorporated herein by reference:

A. The Collateral has been and/or will be bought,
acquired, manufactured, used and accrued exclusively
for business use.

B. The Debtor's principal place of business will be
located on Brunswick Avenue, in the City of Gardiner,
Maine.

C. Debtor's machinery and equipment will be kept at
Debtor's principal place of business.



Debtor will promptly notify City in writing of any
change in location of Debtor‘'s principal place of
business, or if Debtor desires to operate a business
under a name differing from Debtor's name. Machinery
and equipment shall not be removed from Debtor's
principal place of business or other authorized places
of business without consent of City, except for the
purposes of ordinary business use, by Debtor.

Except for a first security interest in either the
City of Gardiner, Maine, State Street Bank and Trust
Company, Boston, Massachusetts, and the First National
Bank of Boston, Boston, Massachusetts, and except for
the security interest granted hereby, Debtor is, or to
the extent the Collateral is to be acquired after the
date hereof, will be the owner of the Collateral, free
from any adverse liens, security interests or
encumbrances, and Debtor has the right and authority
to grant, bargain, sell, assign and transfer the same
as aforesaid. Debtor agrees that it will warrant and
defend the Collateral against claims and demands of
all persons at any time claiming the same or any
interest therein, and shall keep such Collateral free
from all claims, liens, security interests, and other
encumbrances.

Except for the first security interest in either the
City of Gardiner, Maine, State Street Bank and Trust
Company, Boston, Massachusetts, and the First National
Bank of Boston, Boston, Massachusetts, no financing
statement covering the Collateral is on file at any
public office, and, at the request of City, Debtor
shall join the City in executing one or more financing
statements pursuant to the Uniform Commercial Code and
in form satisfactory to City and shall pay the costs
of filing the same in all public offices wherever
filing is deemed necessary or desirable by City.
Debtor shall promptly pay when due all taxes and
assessments upon the Collateral or for its use and
operation.

Debtor shall bear the risk of loss on Collateral. No
injury or loss to the destruction of the Collateral
shall release Debtor from Debtor's obligations
hereunder. Debtor shall insure the property against
such risk, with such insurers and in such amounts as
City may require. Certificates evidencing such
insurance shall be delivered to City and shall provide
that City shall receive reasonable notice before
cancellation and that losses shall be payable to City
and Debtor as their interest may appear.

If the Collateral or any part of it, is or becomes a
motor vehicle, for which a certificate of title is
issuable under the laws of the State of Maine or any
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other state, Debtor shall cause the statement of the
City's security interest herein to be noted on the
certificate of title for such vehicle.

Debtor will maintain the Collateral in good condition
or repair, will not waste or destroy the Collateral or
any patt thereof. As required by law, Debtor will
keep the Collateral duly licensed and registered.
Debtor will not use the Collateral in violation of any
statute or ordinance. Debtor shall, in the operation
of its business, comply with all necessary and
appropriate local, state and federal ordinances,
statutes and laws and shall, when reguested to do so
by City, provide City with proof of such compliance.

City's Rights and Remedies.

City shall have all rights and remedies granted to a
secured party undexr the Maine Uniform Commercial Code,
as amended, and, in addition thereof, all rights and
remedies granted hereunder.

Upon default by Debtor as hereinafter defined and at
any time thereafter, City may take any one or more of
the following actions subject to the rights of the
first security interests: (i) declare any of the
obligations secured by this Agreement to be
immediately due and payable; (ii) take possession of
the Collateral, without being liable for trespass or
breach of peace, and, enter upon any premises where
the Collateral may be situated, and take possession
and remove all or any part of said Collateral; (iii)
require Debtor to assemble the Collateral and make it
available to City at a place to be designated by City
which is reasonably convenient to both parties, and it
is agreed that Debtor's principal place of business is
such a cohvenient location; (iv) sell all or any part
of the Collateral at public or private sale, provided
that, unless the Collateral is perishable or threatens
to decline speedily in value or is of a type
customarily sold on a recognized market, City will
give Debtor at least ten (l0) days prior written
notice of the time and place of any public sale
thereof or of the time after which any private sale or
any other intended disposition thereof is to be made;
(v) take any steps which City deems necessary or
advisable to collect any Collateral or proceeds, or to
sell and transfer the Collateral or proceeds and to
apply the proceeds to Debtor's indebtedness to City:
Upon repossession, City shall not be liable or
responsible for articles left in or attached to the
Collateral.
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this Agre
events:

A.

The City is hereby irrevocably appointed the Debtor's
attorney-in-fact to do, at its option, any act which
the Debtor might be obligated hereby to do, to
exercise such right as Debtor may exercise, to use
such equipment as Debtor might use, to enter the
Debtor's premises, to give notice of the City's
security interest in, and to collect the Collateral
and proceeds and to exercise and file in the Debtor's
name any f£financing statements and amendments thereto
required to perfect City's security interest-
hereunder, to protect and preserve the Collateral and
the City's rights hereunder. 1In addition, City may,
in said capacity, endorse, collect and receive
delivery for payment of instruments and documents
constituting Collateral and make extension agreements
with respect to or affecting the Collateral, exchange
it for other Collateral, release persons liable
thereon, or take security for the payment thereof, and
compromise disputes in connection therewith and use or
operate the Collateral for the purpose of liquidating
or preserving the Collateral or its value.

If Debtor fails to do so, City may., at its option,
discharge taxes, liens and qther encumbrances at any
time levied or placed on the Collateral and may place
and pay for insurance on the Collateral and may pay
for the repair, maintenance and preservation of the
Collateral. Debtor agrees to reimburse City, on
demand, for such payments made. All such payments
made by City shall be secured by this Agreement and
shall bear interest at the rate set forth in the most
recent note secured hereby from the date of the demand
until the payment.

Events of Default. In addition to other events of
ereinabove set forth, Debtor shall be in defaunlt of
ement upon the occurrence of any of the following

Default in payment to the first security interest with
the City of Gardiner, Maine, the State Street Bank and
Trust Company, Boston, Massachusetts, and the First
National Bank of Boston, Boston, Massachusetts,
Default in a payment or performance of any of the
obligations, or any other liabilities contained,
referred to or secured by this Agreement;

Any warranty, representation or statement made or
furnished to City by or on behalf of Debtor in, or in
connection with this agreement or to induce City to
make a loan to Debtor proving to have been false in
any material respect when made or furnished;

Breach by Debtor of any agreement, obligation,
representation or warranty set forth herein;
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Substantial damage, destruction, sale or encumbrance
to or on the Collateral, or the making or suffering of
any levy, seizure or attachment thereon;

Dissolution, termination of existence, insolvency or

business failure of, appointment of a receiver of or

for any part of the property of, assignment for the
benefit of creditors by or the commencement of any
proceedings under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws by
or against, Debtor;

Default in the performance of the terms of the

mortgage given or exXecuted in connection with the

following obligations:

1. Mortgage Indenture of Trust and Agreement given
by Associated Grocers to the City of Gardiner,
Maine, State Street Bank and Trust Company,
Boston, Massachusetts, and the First National
Bank of Boston, Massachusetts relating to a loan
in the original principal amount of Six Million
Dollars ($6,000,000) plus accrued interest, legal
fees and any other disbursements made for the
Project which are not paid by the Borrower plus
further advances which are invested in the
Project and are required for its completion,

2. Indenture and Loan Agreement delivered to City of
Gardiner by the Debtor of even date.

General Provigions.

This Agreement and the security interest in the
Collateral created hereby shall terminate when the
obligations have been paid in full,

Notice of default and presentment, demand, protest and
notice of dishonor and repossession as to any
instrument secured hereby is waived by Debtor.

No party to this Agreement or any obligation secured
hereby shall be discharged by any extension of time,
additional advances, notes, renewals or extensions of
any note, the taking of further security, releasing
security, extinguishment of security interest as to
all or any part of the Collateral or any other act,
except release or discharge of security interest upon
full payment of the obligations secured by this
Agreement,

No waliver by City of any default shall be effective
unless in writing nor shall it operate as a waiver of
any other default or of the same default on a future
occasion. Any notice required to be given by City
shall be deemed properly given if mailed, postage
prepaid, to Debtor's principal business address as set
forth above. All rights of City hereunder shall inure
to the benefit of its successors and assigns, and all
obligations of Debtor shall bind the successors and
assigns of Debtor.



E. Any provision of this Agreement, the effectiveness or
enforceability of which is prohibited by the laws of
any state whose law governs such effectiveness or
enforceability, shall as to such state be ineffective,
but only to the extent of such prohibition and without
invalidating the remaining provisions of this

Agreement,

The law governing this Agreement shall be

that of the State of Maine,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereunder afflx their seals
as of the day and year first above recited.

@JAW—

CITY OF GARDINER

By:_;fZz;::;¢4§§2Z22é22f:41111~
.o e 7% :/?2/§&44&$§Gt:é;hha,‘%yh/

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE,
INC-

vys frdest VT ﬂm

Its President




Exhibit 6(b) (ii)

SECOND MORTGAGE NOTE

$1,000,000 Gardiner, Maine
May ~7, 1985

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned promises to pay to the
order of the City of Gardiner, a Maine municipality, located in
the County of Kennebec and State of Maine, the principal sum of
One Million ($1,000,000) Dollars, together with interest
computed as hereinafter set forth and upon the terms and
conditions hereinafter set forth in this Second Mortgage Note:

l. Commencing on May 7, 1985, and continuing until and
including October 15, 1988, the interest rate on the
outstanding principal balance shall be zero percent
(0%) per annum; there shall be no payments of the
principal balance during the above-mentioned period.

2. Beginning on November 15, 1988, and continuing until
and including Octobher 15, 2005, the outstanding
principal balance of $1,000,000 shall be paid, with
interest at a fixed rate of eight (8%) per annum in
gsixty-eight (68) equal quarterly installments of
principal & interest of $23,202.74, with one final
installment of all outstanding princ¢cipal and interest
to be paid on November 15, 2005.

The capitalized terms used herein are as defined in an
Indenture and Loan Agreement, of even date between Associated
Grocers of Maine and the City of Gardiner.

With the prior written approval of the Holder hereof, the
undersigned may prepay this Note in whole or in part, together
with accrued interest to the date of payment on the principal
amount being prepaid, without the payment of any premium or
penalty whatsoever.

In the event that the undersigned sells or transfers any
interest in the parcel of land or the buildings thereon which
are part of the Second Mortgage or sells or transfers any
interest in the eguipment purchased with the proceeds of this
Note, other than as permitted herein, this Note shall become
immediately due and payable. In the event that the undersigned
refinances the First Loan obtained through the Bond issue and
the refinanced amount exceeds the then outstanding balance of
the First Loan, (including interest due and accrued interest,)
and a mortgage and security interest superior to this Second
Mortgage is granted for any amount which exceeds the then



outstanding balance of the First Loan, this Note shall
immediately become due and payable.

The undersigned in its sound discretion may sell or
otherwise dispose of any furniture, machinery or equipment or
other personal property which it determines has bgcome
inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, undesirable or
unhecessary, provided:

i. substitute property having substantially equal or
greater value and utility (but not necessarily having
the same function) in the operation of the facility at
which the replaced property was located is installed
anywhere at such facility: such removal and
substitution will not impair the operating utility or
change the nature of such facility operated prior to
such replacement; and such property shall be free of
2ll liens and encumbrances (other than the permitted
encumbrances) and such property shall become a part of
the security interest of holder of this Note; or

ii. 1in the opinion of the undersigned, removal of such
property, together with any substitution, will not
materially impair the efficiency of the undersigned's
operations or adversely affect the structural
integrity of such facility or change the nature of
such facility to the extent that it would not
constitute the type of facility operated prior to such
replacement; and (except as hereinafter provided) any
disposition of proceeds or trade-in credit from
property that was part of the security interest of the
Holder of this Note are to be paid to the Holder of
this Note and applied to the Loan principal. Aany
damage to structures not being removed shall be
repaired at the cost of the undersigned.

Except as may be waived in writing by the Holder of this
Note, the undersigned shall promptly report to the Holder of
this Note such removal, substitution, sale and other
dispogition and shall pay to the Holder of this Note any
amounts required hereunder.

If default be made in the payment of any installment of
interest or principal and interest under this Note, which
default is not cured within thirty (30) days of such default,
or in the performance of any provisions of the Second Mortgage
or Second Security Agreement securing this Note or in the
performance of the Indenture and Loan Agreement of even date or
the UDAG Grant, Grant Number B-85-AB-23-0042 or in the
performance of any other document or agreement relating to the
loan evidenced by this Note or there occurs an insolvency or
business failure of any of the undersigned, or an assignment by
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any of the undersigned for the benefit of creditors or the
commencement by or against any of the undersigned of any
proceeding in or for bankruptcy, receivership, reorganization,
arrangement, debtor relief, insolvency, merger or dissolution,
then, at the option of the Holder hereof, the entire unpaid
balance shall at once become due and payable without demand or
notice. Failure to exercise this option shall not constitute a
waiver of the right to exercise the same in the event of any
subseguent default.

This Note evidences a loan for business and commercial
purposes.

The undersigned hereby waives, demand, notice and protest
and does also agree to pay all costs incurred by the Holder in
the collection of the indebtedness evidenced hereby, including
reasonable attorneys' fees.

This Second Mortgage Note is secured in part by a Second
Mortgage of even date on real estate and buildings situated in
the City of Gardiner, Maine and in part by a Second Security
Agreement of even date herewith,

This Second Mortgage Note is subordinate to a Mortgage
Indenture of Trust Agreement between the City of Gardiner,
Maine, State Street Bank and Trust Company, Boston,
Massachusetts, and The First National Bank of Boston, Boston,
Massachusetts.

WITNESS: ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE,
INC.

A s7ermen £ duBoe) By: £ Robi ot A. Bann/steR

e Ite President



SECOND MORTGAGE DEED

That, Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc. ("Associated
Grocers"), of Kennebec County and State of Maine, for
consideration paid, grants to the City of Gardiner, a Maine
municipal corporation located in Kennebec County and State of
Maine, with MORTGAGE COVENANTS, to secure the payment of a
certain Promissory Note ("Note") of even date, the land and
buildings thereon in Gardiner, Kennebec County and State of
Maine.

A certain lot or parcel of land and buildings thereon
situated in Gardiner, Kennebec County and State of Maine, all
as described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part
herecof.

The capitalized terms used herein are as defined in an
Iindenture and Loan Agreement of even date between Associated
Grocers and the City of Gardiner.

In the event that the undersigned sells or transfers any
interest in the parcel of land or the buildings thereon which
are part of the Second Mortgage or sells or transfers any
interest in the equipment purchased with the proceeds of said
Note, other than as permitted herein, said Note shall become
immediately due and payable. In the event that the undersigned
refinances the First Loan obtained through the Bond issue and
the refinanced amount exceeds the then outstanding balance of
the First Loan, (including interest due and accrued interest,)
and a mortgage and security interest superior to this Second
Mortgage is granted for an amount which exceeds the then
outstanding balance of the First Loan, said Note shall
immediately become due and payable.

The undersigned in its sound discretion may sell or
otherwise dispose of any furniture, machinery or eguipment or
other personal property which it determines has become
inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, undesirable or
unnecessary, provided:

i. substitute property having substantially equal or
greater value and utility (but not necesgsarily having
the same function) in the operation of the facility at
which the replaced property was located is installed
anywhere at such facility: such removal and
substitution will not impair the operating utility or
change the nature of such facility operated prior to
such replacement; and such property shall be free of
all liens and encumbrances (other than the permitted
encumbrances) and such property shall become a part of
the security interest of the City of Gardiner; or



ii. in the opinion of the undersigned, removal of such
property, together with any substitution, will not
materially impair the efficiency of the undersigned's
operations or adversely affect the structural
integrity of such facility or change the nature of
such facility to the extent that it would not
constitute the type of facility operated prior to such
replacement; and (except as hereinafter provided) any
disposition of proceeds or trade-in credit from '
property that was part of the security interest of the
Holder of this Note are to be paid to the City of
Gardiner and applied to the Loan principal. Any
damage to structures not being removed shall be
repaired at the cost of the undersigned.

Except as may be waived in writing by the City of Gardiner,
the undersigned shall promptly report to the City of Gardiner
such removal, substituticn, sale and other disposition and
shall pay to the City of Gardiner- any amounts required
hereunder.

The City of Gardiner agrees to allow Associated Grocers to
sell up to ten (10) acres of land covered by this deed without
obtaining a written waiver as provided in this Second Mortgage
Deed. The acreage selected for sale may be located anywhere on
the land which is the subject of thig Second Mortgage Deed with
the restriction that any land upon which the Associated
Grocaers' building is constructed may not be sold under this
raragraph.

It is the intention of the parties hereof that thig
mortgage be subordinate to the coordinate First Mortgage of the
City of Gardiner, Maine, State Street Bank and Trust Company,
Boston, Massachusetts; and The First National Bank of Boston,
Boston, Massachusetts, in the principal amount of $6,000,000
plus accrued interest, legal fees, any other disbursements made
for the Project, undertaken by Associated Grocers on the land
and buildings which are the subject of this Second Mortgage,
which are not paid for by Associated Grocers plus further
advances by which are invested in the project and required for
its completion. 1In the event that Associated Grocers is in
default of the coordinate First Mortgage, the City of Gardiner
shall deem it to be in default of this Second Mortgage.

Subject to the notice provisions of the Indenture and Loan
Agreement, dated January 28, 1985 between Associated Grocers of
Maine, Inc. and the City of Gardiner, in the event that
A§sociated Grocers is in default of the Loan Agreement with the
City of Gardiner of even date or the terms of the UDAG Grant,
Ggant No. B-85-AB-23~0042, awarded to the City of Gardiner, the
City of Gardiner shall deem it to be in default of this Second
Mortgage.



This mortgage is upon the statutory condition, for any
breach of which the mortgage shall have the remedies provided
by law and without limiting the foregoing, the power known as
the Statutory Power of Sale provided in the Maine Revised
Statutes, Title 33, Section 501-A, as amended.

WITNESS his hand and seal this 7th day of May, 1985.

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE,
INC.

=z C L lestnr

Its President ‘

Qob%@'(‘ N. Sanns UA

STATE OF MAINE T
KENNEBEC, SS. _ Wi, 1985 -
Then personally appeared before me the above named Tf 4

YN Ba nvstR, Patoulvd~and acknowledged the foregoing T
instrument to be his free act and deed and the free act and Tl
deed of Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc.

Before me, §§§::" ;?le-—'"\; - (,

Notary Public A\
Attorney-at~-Law

Print Name: STERHEN . Josol)
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U.S. DEPARTMENT QF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20410

OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR
COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

0EC 1 3 1984

Mr. Kenneth J. Kokernak
City Managey

City Hall

Gardiner, MA 04345

Dear Mr. Kakernak:

SUBJECT: Amendment to UDAG Grant Agreement
City of Gardiner, Massachusetts
Grant Number B-85~AB-23-0042
Project Name: Associated Grocers

Exhibit 6(b) (iii)

Enclosed 1s a fully executed duplicate original of the Grant Agrecment

that has been amended by interlineation.

Two (2) executed duplicate originals of the Grant Agreement, asg amended,

have been forwarded to the appropriate HUD Field Office. The Office of Action
Grants has recained one (1) executed duplicate original of the ameanded

document.,
Sincerely,
/
. ﬂl
Jefkrgy A.
Actfin puty Assistant Secretary
or'¥rogram Management

Enclosure



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ROUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
ASSTSTANT SECRETARY FOR GOWNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
0ffice of Urban Development Action Grante
U D A G GRANT AGREEMENT

Urban Development Action Grant
Onder Section 119
of the
Houging and Community Development Act of 1974
(Public Law 93-183, as Amended)

€2
Bame of Recipisnt: UDAG Grout Nunber:
City of Gardiner, Maine B-85-AB~-23-0042
(Asgociated Grocera)
&ddress of Recipient: Preliminery Approval Date:
¥r. Kenneth J. Kokernsk
€ity Manager . Kovember 7, 1984
City Hall
Gardiner, Maine 04345
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. $1,007,000
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PREAMBLE

THIS CRANT AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between THE
SECRETARY QF MOUSING AND UREAN DEVELOPMENT, acting by and through the
Assistant Secretary for Community Planning and Develcpment, as repregentative
of the United States of America, and the RECIPIENT.

RECITALS.

18E RECIPIENT bas applied to the Secretary for grant assistance
under the UDAG Program to undertake activities which are consistent with the
frovisions of Saction 119 of the Act and the UDAG Requlations; and

UHE SECRETARY, in reliance upon the representations set forth in
the application, has approved the award of grant funds to the Recipient, to
be expended by the Recipient in confommity with the requirements and provisions
of this Crant Agreement; ’

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises and covenants contained in
this CGrant Agreement., the Secretary and the Recipient agree as follows:

Revisad 6/81 - ‘ 1
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Recipient: City of Gardiner, Maine Grant Number: 8-§5-AB=23-0042

EXHIBIT F
PROJECT PERFOBMANCE SCHEDULE
1

(a) The Evidentiary Materlials described in Exhidbit E to this Grant
Agreement must be aubmitted to the Secretary by Reciplent not later Ehan
January 31, 1985.

(b) Upon notification to Recipient of the approval by the Secretary of the
Evidentiary Materiels required by subparagraph (a) above, Recipienr ghall be
authorized to draw down Grant Funds in accordance with Paragraph IIT1 of Exhibit E
to this Grant Agreement for Rligible Costa consistent with Letter of Credit
procedures and the provisions of this Grant Agreement. In addition, Recipient
phall ba muthorized to draw dewn Grant Funds for reimbursement of eligible

admipistrative cagtsg.

11

-

The Raciplent and Non-Recipient Activities shall be commenced and

completed in accordance with the following schadule:

Aarivity Commencement Date Completion Date
Site Acquisitioun Dagembsr 31, 1984 Jangary 31, 1985
Private Construction February 1, 13985 February 1, 1986
Capital Equipaent May 1, 1985 February 1,'1986
Joba ‘ July 1, 1985 January 31, 1988

EXHIBIT F Page 1 of 1




ARTICLE I
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.01 Contents of Aureement

This agreement shall consist of thiz Grant Agreement and the Applicaticn,
as may, fram time to time, be amended.

Section 1.02 Exhibits Incorporated

ALl exhibits which are referred to in this Grant Agreement and are
attached hereto ave incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

Section 1.03 Genheral Definitions

Unless specifically provided othaerwise or the context 6therwise requires,
when used in thia Grant Agreement: :

(1) "Act" means the Eousing and Camunity Development Act of 1974,
Rub. L. No. 93-383, as amended.

(2) “Application® means the Arplication For Federal Assistance, and -
such otber sulmittals, ae are epecified in Exhibit A of this Grant Agreement,

(3) "Iefault" means any default set forth in subeection {a) of Section
7.01 of this Grant Agreement.

‘ (4) "Eligible Costs® means costs for the activities specified in

Exhibits E and C of this Grant Agreement for which grant funide arve budgeted

as specified in Exhibit D of this Grant Agreepent, provided that such coets

(1) are not incurred in connection with any activity which, under 24 C.F.R.

Eart 570, as may be from time to time amended, are imeligible under the

UTAG Program, and (1i) conform to the requirements of Attachment B to Federal
t Circular M4-4 (Cost Principles Applicable to Grants and Contracts

with State and Local Covertment), as may be from time ‘to time amended. For

purpoeas of determining the conformity of costs to said Attachment B, all coets

set forth ih Section C thereof except for *prearvancement costs® and "proposgal

costa®. (which are eligible only to the extent authorized in Section 570.454 of

?4. CiF.R. Part 570) may be considered eligihle without prior approval of the

vemmn ! .

{5) "invirommental Conditicns™ means the conditions imposed by law,
particularly 24 C.F.R. Bart 58, and the provisions of this Grant Agveement which
proliibit or limit the comitment and use of grant funde until certain procedural
requirements have been conpleted. ,

(6) "Environmental Requirements™ means the requirements described
in 24 C.FWR. Part 58.

(7) "mviromental Studies” means all eligible activities necessary to
produce an "envirormental document”, as that term is defined at Section 1508,10
of 40 C.F.R. Part 1508, or to comply with the requirements of 24 C.F.R. Part 58.

(8) "Grant Funds" means those fuds to be provided by KUD to Recipient
furavant to the terms of this Grant Agreement, as specified in Exhibit A of this
Crant Agreement.

(9) "HUD" means the United States Department of Hous and Urban,

(10) "Ietter of Credit™ means the letter of credit to be imsued or
amended by the Department of the Treasury pursuant to Section 3.0l of this .
Crant Agreement, .
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(1) “Mon-Recipient Activities® means those activities of the Project

* * to be carried out by Participating Rarties, other than the Recipient or an agent

or agency cf the Recipient, which activities are described in Exhibit C of this
Crant Agreement.

(12) ‘Rarticipating Farty" means any person, £im, corporation or
entity identified as such in Bxhibit A of this Grant Agreement. Identificatiocn
as a "participating Party" signifies that the Secretary, in selecting the Recipient
for the award of this grant, relied in material part upon a representation that
the party so identified will complete a specified portion of the Project or a
specific activity necessary for the cawpletion of the Project. 4

(13) “Program Incame” means the UDAC percentage of: (i) any incame earned
by Recipient, or an agemt or sgerncy of Recipient, from the disposition of real or
pereonal property acquired in whole or in part with grant funds; (1i) the repayment
proceeds (including principal and interest) of any loan made in whole or in part
- with grant funds; . (iii) any other revenues defined as program incame in 24 C.FWR.
Part 570, Subpart J, and (iv) any income from an activity where it is specifically
declaved in Exhibit A of this Grant Agreement that the incame from such activitky
shall be deemed to be Program Incame. ‘The "UDAG percentage™ means an amount canputed
by epplying the percentage of participation of grant funds in the total cost of
acquisition of property, in the total amownt of a logn, or in the total cost of
- &h activity, to the income fram the dispoaition of such property, the total repayment
proceeds of such loan, or the incame from such gctivity.

(14) “Fockets of Poverty Project” means a Project approved based on an
application sulmitted and approved pursuant to Section 119(b)(2) of the Act.

(15) "Project" means the activities described in the Application and
in Exhibits B, C and D of this Grant Agreement which are to be carried out to meet
the objectives of the UDAG Program.

{16) *Recipient® means the local governmental entity receivih;
grant funds pursuant to this Grant Agreement, as more particularly identified
on the cover page of this Grant Mjreement. : _

{17) "Recipient Activities® means those activities\of the Project to
be carried cut by the Recipient, or an egent or agency of thelRecipient, which
activities are described in Exhibit B of this Grant Agreement.,

{18) "Secretary" means the Secretary of bousing amd Urban
o any other official of EUD to whom the Secxetary has delegated authority to
act with respect to matters covered by this Grant Agreement.

. (19) "LOAG Program” means the Urban Development Action Grant Program
egtablmhedby D pursuant to Section 119 of the Act.

(20) "WRAG Regulations" means the regulations set forth in 24 C.F.R.
Fart 570, Subpart G, as the same may, fyom time to time, be amended.
ARTICLE 11
ANMOIINT' AND AUTHORIZED USES OF CRANT FINDS

Section 2.01 Crant Assistance Provided

In consideration of the varicus ohligaticns undertaken by the Fecipient
pursuant to this Grant Agreement, and in coneideration of the obligationg to
be undertaken by Participating Parties, as represented by the Recipient in the
Arplication, tle Secretary sgrees, subject to the terms arnd conditions set farth
hervein, to provide the Recipient with grant funde in the amount specified in
Ixhibit A of this Grant Agreement.
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v Section 2.02 Authorized Uses of Grant Punds

1he grant funds provided to the Recipient pursuant to this Grant Agreement
ghall be used only for the epecific purposes described in Exhibits B ard C of
this Grant Agreement and in the amounts budgeted in Exhibit D of this Grant
Mgreement, subject to the project amendments provisions of the UDAG Regulations.

Section 2,03 Adjustments to Crant Funda

The Secretary reserves the right to reduce the grant amount (i) to canform to
any revision to which the Recipient and the Secretary may agree with respect
to Exhibits B, C or L of this Grant Agreement, (ii) if the actual costs for

. activities are lower than those set forth in Exhibits B, C or D of this Crant
Agreement, of (iii) if the investment by Participating Parties is less than
the armpunts specified in Exhibits B, C, D or E of this Grant Agreemernt.

Secticn 2.04 Recipient's Use of Program Income

(a) In order to provide funds to assure conpletion of the Recipient
Fetivities, the Sectetary shall have the right to veguire all Program Income
received by the Recipient, or by any Participating Party, prior to the campletion
of all Recipient Activitiee, to be deposited in escrow under arrangements approved
by the Secretary. The Sécretary may exercise 8aid right either by specifying such
requirement in Exhibit A of this Grant Agreement or by separate written instructions
to the kecipient delivered at any time prior to the completion of all Recipient
Motivities and the draw of grant funds to pay costa incurred for such activities.

(b) Unless otherwise specifically stated in Exhibit A of this Crant
Mreenent, all Program Incame which is received by the Recipient or any
Farticipating Party, prior to campletion of all Recipient Activities shall be
used prior to, and in place of, any draw under the Letter of Credit to the
extent adequate to pay costs so incurred.

(¢) Unless otherwise specifically stated in Exhibit A of this Crant
Agreement or in the close—out agreement between the Recipient and KUD, all Program
Incame received by the Regipient, or any Participating Party, after the campletion
of all Recipient Activities shall be used hy the Recipient, or the Rarticipating
Farty sultrject to the approval of the Recipient, for cormmity or econamic development
activities eligible for assistance under Title I of the Act.

(d) For Rockets of ‘Poverty Projects, all Program Inccme received
Ly the Recipient, or any Participating Party, after the campletion of all
Recipient Activities shall be used only for activities which directly benefit
low= and moderate-incame residents of the pocket. o . '

ARTICLE III
CISEURSEFENT OF GRAMT FUNIDS
Section 3.01 Ietter of Qredit Progedures

(a) Franptly after the Secretary has received from the kecipient not
legs than three (3) fully executed copies of this Grant Agreement and has approved
evidentiary materials required by BExhibit E of this Grant Agreement that would allow
a drawdown of grant funds pursuant to the texrms of Exhibit F of this Grant Agreenent,
the Secretary shall cause a letter of Credit to be issued to the Recipient by the
Department of the ireasury, or shall cause the Letter of Credit previously issued
to the Recipient by the Department of the Tyeasury with respect to the Cammnity
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Development Block Grant Program under Title I of the Act to be increased,
. in accordance with procedures established by the Department of the Treasury,
in an amount not to exceed the amwunt of grant funds referenced in Section 2.01

"' and specified in Exhibit A of this Grant Agreement.

(h) The authorization to use the Letter of Credit and to pey costs .
out of grant funds shall be governed by the provisions of this Gre;mt Agreement
and shall be subdect to all conditions precedent to the Recipient's draw of grant
funds which are specified in this Grant Agreement. The Recipient shall not draw
upont the Letter of Credit until the Secretary has authorized the Recipient to
draw pursuant to Section 3.03 of this Grant Agreement.

(c) The Recipient is authorized to draw grant funds against the
Letter of Credit only in accordance with the provisions of this Grant Agreement
and the procedures established by the Secretary and the Department of the
Treasury. No payment by the Department of the Treasury of an improper or
tnauthorized draw to the Recipient shall constitute a waiver of the right
of the Secretary to challenge the validity of such draw, to enforce all
rights and remedies set forth in this Grant Agreement, or take corrective
or remedial administrative action pursuant te the UDAG Requlations, which
action may include, without limitation, suspension or termination of the
‘Recipient's funding under this Grant Agreement. - s . .

(d) The dispomition of any grant funds that vemain available under
the Letter of Credit following completion of the Project, or the termination
of this Crant Agreement by the Secretary, ot ita termination for dhy cause,
shall be in accordance with close—out procedures then in effect or establixheq
by the Secretary, and the Recipient shall not haye any rights &o such grant

Section 3.02 Incurring Costg for Project Activities

(a) The use of grant funds is conditioned upon the Recipient
incurring costs to be paid in accordance with this Grant Agreement or as
otherwise approved by the Secretary in writing, The incurring of costs to
be paid out of grant funds shall be governed by the following: '

. (1) Except for the cost of application preparation for small
cities as specified in the UDAG regulations, no costs incurred prior to
the preliminary approval date may be paid out of grant funds.

(2) After the preliminary approval date, eligible administrative
costa, including but not limited to costs of Environmental Studies, and costs
incurred by Participating Parties, other than the Recipient, its agent or
agency, for activity not to be paid for in whole or in part with grant
funds, may be incurred before or after the effective date of this Grant
Ayreament, as defined in Section 11.14 below, and the satiafaction of
environmental conditiong. '

(3) Except as permitted by 24 C.F.R. part 58, no other coste
to be paid out of grant funds may be fncurred by the Recipier’ﬂ: or any Partici-
pating Party until all Environmental Conditions of 24 C.F.R. Part 58 have been
tf):l;;‘; gag:.ified anga the Secretary has issued the envirommental releases required

(4) After the Recipient has satisfied all of the Envirommental
Conditions and the Secretary has issved the required environmental releases,
;he:wiupggn :ny nginta:e afcerittixe 1?i'eliminary Approval Date for this Project, the
a Participa Party ma
out of grant funds, - 7P TAFY may dnour =ligihle coats t2 be paid
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with grant funds, even though such costs will not be redrbursad t
funds,mﬂesssu':hoostscouldbeinmadpursumtmmum(a)ofﬂuﬂ
Section 3.02 if such costs were to ba paid cut of grant funds.

@ Hinrwtheuawwehyﬂemgaryofﬁmmmmml
feleases required by 24 C.F.R, Part 58, the Recipient may not use any funds,
inchﬁinglacalftmds,totakaanyactﬂmwith:nsp&:tmﬂmpxojectm
such acticn might have an adversa envirammental effect, would limit choices
arong carpeting altamnatives, or might alter the enviromental premises on
which the pending clearance is based in such a fashion that the validity of
the conclusions t0 be reached woild be affectad.

Sectian 3.03 2Authorization tha for the Reci t0
Draw Grant j

(a) No costs may be paid out of grant funds prior to the issuance
by the Secvetary of the enviranmantal releases yequired by 24 C.F.R. part 58,
a written approval by the Secretary of required evidentiary materials as specified
in Exhibits E and F of this Grant Agreement, ‘and Written authorigzation frum the
Secretary to draw grant funds under the Letter of Credit. ‘

{b) All certificationa and othar materials required by this Grant
Agreenant to be submitted to the Secretary as conditions precedent to the
Fecipient’s authority to pay ooats cut of grant funds ghall ba submittad by
the Racipient prisy to any draw of qyant funds wnder the Letter of Cradit.

{c) Unless Exhibit E or F of this Grant Agreeament authorizes the
phasing or staging of the Reciplent's draw of grant funds, then vpcon a finding
by the Secretary that the Recipiant has swbmitted, in a timely mannar and in
acceptable form and contant, all of the evidentiary matarials especified in
Exhibit E of this Grant Agresment and upcn approval by the Secretary of said
evidentiary materials; and if no defanlt has ooccurred, ag defined in
subsection (a) of Sectioh 7.0l of this Grant Agreament, the Secretary sghall
promptly issue to the Recipient a written autharization to draw grant funds under
the letter of Credit far the purposes authorizad by this Grant hgreement.

&
8
g

(@) If Exhibit E or F of thig Grant Agreamant authorizes the
phazing or staging of tha Recipient's draw of grant funds, then wpon a finding

mbitEofm&an?Ammwbemmwmmwm
Secretary for any particular phase or gtage of the draw of grant fimds; and uxn
approval by tho Secretary of said evidantiary materials; and if no default has
occurred, as defined in subsection (a) of Saction 7.0l of thim Grant Agqreeament,
the Secretary shall promptly issue to tha Reciplent a written authorization to .
g;wﬂnrit.zaﬁmdasaﬁdh‘:dmﬂmgi tinmspect:.ng Withwanyr .phaseta ’/
auf tHBorF. i the or
stage of the draw of grant funds. : L

o Ae) Prinn‘-toﬁ‘lﬂmcipimt'a payment of any costs with grant funds
lrdpmr'tothehacipient'sdraﬂin;oﬁunygranti\mdswﬂe:thel.ette.rcfu'adit,
mmpm.mum-mmmwmmwyﬁmwmmmﬁmg
Er';adxofﬁgedpimt?ygﬂgaﬁga’tf o - oot

8 to v

of Section 5,05 of £ ig 'mporta‘ ault, pursuant to suhsection (a)

i
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ARTICLE IV
COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL RULES AND UDAG REGULATIONS ‘
Section 4.0l Delegation and Acceptance of Responsibilities Undar

its executicn of this Grant Agreetent, &Bmeipimt_rgpresmts and
wmﬁgtitmﬂnlegulcamitymmm&nmwlﬂesfmmlm
withauapplicablare@:almlenuﬂag:essmiwﬁartakesbomarﬂmrgmt
'mmmmwmmmmmwmmmum@mmy
be establighed pursuant theraeto.

Sectien 4,02 liance with UDAG tions

The Recipient shall conply with the UDAG regulationa, including the
ce:ﬁficaﬁmsspec;fieaemm.

ARTICLE V
BEPRESENTRTTONS, WARRANTTES, AND SPECIFIC QHIIGRITONS

Section 5,01 Recipient's Representationg and Warranties

The Recipient has, by and through consultations amng all appropriate
mepbers of the Regiplent's goveiming body and its officers, examined into each
of the following and by its exscution of this Grant Agreament tha Recipient does,
upon information and beliaf, rervesent and warrant to the Secretary that:

(1) The Recipient. is duly organized and validly existing under the
laws of the jurisdiction of which the Recipient is a part, and bas all requisite
power and authority to entar into this Grant Agveement. 4

(2) A vesolution, motiaon, order or ordinance has been duly adopted,

4 Bwapt.anneﬁ-forminmqufﬁuaGrmthgreaﬁm. there
proceeding, or investigation now pending, nor any basis therefor,
MWhelievedwa:déthythenecw,M (1)'q\mtiuwtheva1wq'
of this Grant Agrearent, o any action taken or to he taken under it, or | :
(11) is likely to result in any material adversa change in the autharities,
. assets, liabilitieq, or coditions (financisl cr otherwise) of

k
B

any
(other than an amendment which has bean f£ilsd with and approved by the Secxetary)
mordertogmcasuch:mmutmm, statements, andcﬁn;mmmmf.:g:pmae

. respect. Recipiant
is mvare of no event ar other fact which should have been, and has not bean, veported
in the Application as material information, | " ‘ -

. . (6) The Recipient has cbtained, or has reascnabla assurancas that
it will abtain, all Federal, State and local. govermment approvals and reviewa
raquirgdbylawto_bed:taimdbyﬂwmcipimtforﬁmmject:ardan
Participating Parties have cbtained, ar the Recipient has reasonsble assurances
that such Participating Partiss will cbtain, all such approvals and reviews
Mﬂredbylwbobecbtahadhyths?arﬂcipaﬁngkzﬂesforﬂm?mjm.
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. Insofar as the capacity of the Recipient to carry out any

“ obligation undet(-.,z:his Grant Agreement is concerned, (i) the Recipient 1: rot in

material violation of its Charter, ors:nay mrtgrgg:, o:rﬁentulzzi mi; the
trumen vdgent, decree order, tute, regu

i::cutimt.;ng perfm;mm of this Grant Agreement will not result in any such

violation. : .

: Except for aporoved eligible administrative and personnel
costs, no mnbez(-?)officer, or employee of the Recipient, or its designees, or
agents, no consaltant, no member of the governing body of the Reciplent og trﬂ:
locality in which the program is situated, and no other public official o
Recipient or such locality or localities, who exercises or has exercioed h:ny
functions or respomsibilities with respect to the Project during his or her -
tenure, or who is in a position to participate in a decisiomoaking proaasi .
ar gain insider information with regard to the project, shall have any interest,
direct or indirect, in anmy contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof,
for work to be performed in connection with the Project or in any activity,
cr benefit therefram, which is part of this Project at any time during or
after such person's tenure. This provision shall be in addition to the require-
ments in Attaclhments O of OMB Circular A~102 and A-110. ,

(However, upon written vequest of the Recipient, the Secretary
may agree in writing to waive a conflict otherwise prohibited by thia
provizion whenever thete has been full public disclosure of the conflict
of interest, and the Secretary determines that undue haz_'dship will result
either to the Recipient qr the person affected by applying the prohibition
and that the granting of a waiver is in the public interest. Wo such request
for a waiver shall be made by Recipient which would, in any way, permit a
violation of State or local law or any charter provision of the Reclpient.)

Section 5,02 Cbligation to Complete Recipient Activities as Scheduled

{a) The Recipient chall use its beat efforts to assure the completion
of the Recipient Activities described in Exhibit B of this Grant Agreement within
the time pericds specified in Exhibit F of this Grant Agreement. :

(h) The Recipient agrees that the foregoing undertaking and
assurance meana that Recipient ahall, to the maximum extent permitted by law,
use and apply all of its govermmental and proprietary powers for such completion,
including but not limited to those powers governing taxes, other revenues, credit,
eninent damain and appropriations, if necessary, for the purpose of providing any
ghortfall between funds available under this grant and funds necesgary to

complete all of the Racipient Activities described in Exhibit B of this Grant
Agreement. : -

Section 5.03 Obligation to Achieve Projected Jobs

(a) In selecting the Recipient -for thie grant, the Secretary
conaidered certain representations by the Recipient to the Secretary that this .
¢rant is expected to create a specific mumber of permanent new job opportunities,
incloding a specific mmber of new permanent job opportunitiee for minorities,
CETA-eligible pergons, and persons who, at the %tine of their employment, will
be perscns of low- or moderate-~incame within the meaning of Section 570.3 of
24 C.P.R. Part 570, as may be from time to time amended. ‘ ’

{b) The Recipient acknowledges its representations in the Application
pertaining to the creation of jobs and cbligates itself to use its best efforts
to create, or cause to h¢ created, the mmbers and kinds of joba within a
specified time poricd as specified in Exhibit A of this Grant Agreement as
being expected to be created through this grant. - = - R

(c) For Pockets of Poverty Projects, Reciplent shall ensure that at

least 75 percent of all pexmanent jobe initially resnlting fram the Project

are provided to low- and moderate~income persons and that at least 51 percent

of all permanent jobs initially resulting from the Project are provided to low-

and moderate~income residents from the pocket, Recipient shall continuocusly use

kest efforts to ensure that at least 75 percent of all permanent jobs resulting

sfml p.tbe mefhare prw;eﬁied to low-la:;d moderate=income persons and that at least -
. sroen petmal jobe result from i

and - Teidents from e Pocngkec. the Project are provided to low~

{d) The Recipient obligates itself to use all powers available to

8
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' icipating Parties
. i t to enforce theurﬂertakirqsorassurmcesgf?art' = 3
:::s::?ng the creation of joos which are specified in Exhibit A of this Grant
Agreement. oo

Section 5,04 Qbligation to Cure Title bDefects S

i or
a) "he Recipient shall use its best efforts to pramptly cure,
wmwbégwﬁ,wgefmmmetiuewwﬁuprﬁrﬁymng
. the completion of Reciplent Activities, where such defect my’edt
materialaaverseeffectmmemeoi such ma}'mfwmmj

‘ that
b} The Recipient agrees that the foregolng obligation means
the Recipién'z ghall, to the maximum extent permitted by law, use and apply all .
of its governmental and proprietary powers, including but not limited to thosei
powers coverning taxes, other revenmues, credit, eminent damain and appropr a-i-
tions, if neceseary, for the purpose of assuring the avallability of all rea
property, free and clear of adverse and inbibiting title defects, which is
" necessary to camplete Recipient Activities. .

Section 5.05 WNotification and Action Upon Default

: (a) ‘The Recipient shall promptly give written notice to the
Secretary upon the discovery by the Recipient of any defavlt involving any
Participating Party, as defined in Section 7.01 of this Grant Agreement.

(b) Premptly upon the discovery of any default involving any Participating
party, the Recipient shall vigorously pursue, to the fullest extent possible, all
renedies available to Recipient to vemowve or cure such default, or to seek redress
or relief from its effects, including reimbursement for any grant funds e:_tpended
on the Project, and to prevent or mitigate any adverse effects on the Project.
Recipient shall keep the Secretary fully informed as to the status of such
actions. . .

ARTICLE VI
INSPECTION AND REVIEW

Section 6.01 to Maintain, and Rights to 1 and »
Bocks, m"%—m"—m&_"—" "ﬂ‘_, 2inepect and oy

(2) The Recipient shall keep and maintain such books, records and
other documents as shall be required under rules and vegqulations now or hereafter
applicable to grants made under the UDAG Program, end as may be reasonably necessaty
to reflect and discloee fully the amount and dispoaition of the grant funds, the
total cast of the activities paid for, in whole or in part, with grant funds, and
the amount and neture of all investments related to such activities which are
supplied or to be supplied by ather scurces. Coe :

(b) All such.books, records and other documents shall be avaflable at
the offices of the Recipient (except that books, records and other documents
of a Participating Party which are subject to this Section 6.0) may be maintained .
Bt the offices of such Participating Party) for- inspection; copying, audit and
examination at all reascnable times by any duly authorized representative of the
Secretary or the Camptroller General .of the United States. ! _ ‘

Section 6,02 Site Visits

' any duly authorized representative of the Secretary ,qhéll.,' at all
reasonable times, have access to all portions of the Project..’ ... . -

Section 6.03 'mration of Inspection Rights .

o The rights of access and inspection provided in this Article VI shall -
continue until the campletion of all close-out procedures respecting this grant,

g:n:ntil the f£inal settlement and conclusion of all issues arising out of this
| ‘ ,

Section §.04 Repotta

. The Recipient shall pramptly furnish to the Secretary all Yeports
- required to be filed in acoordance with any directives of thergecretary or any
statute, rule or vegqulation of Wum. Recipient shall provide to the HUD Area

and. Central Offices aniannual report on the use Prog noame
sg::h funds are generated by the Project. o °f ran 1 .as 1ong as
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ARTICLE VII
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

Section 7.01 Defaults

A default shall consist of any use of grant funds for any purpose
other than as authorized in Exhibits B, C and D of this Grant Agqreement; or any
treach of any covenant, agreement, provision, or warranty of (i) the Recipient
made in this Grant Agreement; (ii) the Recipient made in any agreement entered
into batween the Reciplent and any Participating Party relating to the Project:
(1i1) any Participating Party made in any agreement gpecified in E:xhibit‘s'of
this Grant Agreement, or; (iv) the performance schedule specified in BExhibit F
of this Grant Agreement. '

Section 7.02  Remedieg Upon Defauit

(a) Ugon occurrence of any default as described in Section 7.01,
the Secretary may suspend the Recipient's authority to draw any Grant Funds
under the Letter of Credit at any time by notice to the Recipient. If a default
is not cired within thirty (30} consecutive days fram notice of such defauvlt by
the Secretary to the Recipient, the Secretary may continue such suspension or by
delivery of notice terminate this Grant Agreement. In the event of a termination,
the Recipient's authority to draw grant funds under the Letter of Credit ghall
have terminated at the date of the notice of termination and the Recipient shall
have no right, title or interest in or to any grant funds remaining under the
Letter of Credit. '

(b) In addition to any other rights or remedies, if a default
consists of the Recipient's failure to submit the evidentiary materials described
in Exhibit E Of this Grant Agreement by the date gpecified in Exhibit F of this
Grant Agreement, the Secrotary chall have the right to temminate this Grant
Agreement and the award of grant funds to which this Grant Agreement relates by
delivery of written notice to the Recipient. Upon such termination, all cbliga—
tiong the Secretary pursuant to this Grant Agreement and such award shall
cease and the Recipient shall neither have nor retain any rights whatsoever with
respect to the grant funds provided under this Grant Agreement.

(e) If a default occurs, the Secretary may at any time or from time
to time proceed to protect and enforce all rights available to the Secretary
under this Grant Agreement by sult in equity, action at law, or by any other’
appropriate proceedings, whether for specific performance of any covenant or
agreement contained in this Grant Agreement, or damages, or other relief, or

- proceed to take any action authorized or permitted under applicable law or
requlations, including the recapture of any expended grant funds fram any
gaynents received by Recipient as a result of the default of any Participating

{d) The rights and remedies available to the Secretary in the
event of a suspension or termination of this Grant Agreement ghall survive such

sugpension or termination. '
ARTICLE VIII
CERTTFICATIONS BY RECTRTENT
Section 8.01 Certifications Upon Draw of._a% Funds

Execution by the Recipient of each request for a draw of grant
funds under the Letter of Credit shall constitute a cerrification tg:t:

(1) All of the representations and warranties of the Recipient as
set forth in Section 5.0l of this Grant ont i
set forth dn on St ‘ Agreement continue to be valid, true,

(2) The Recipient is in compliance with ail of the Recipient!
obligations specified in this Grant eenent which s or in
are applicable at the time of the drggrof grant funés,’.:ﬁ-'( thetr tems o intent,
: 10 S
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(3) Al)l conditions precedent to the Recipient's authority o draw
the grant funds shall have been satisfied, in accordance with Section 3.03 of
this Crant Agreement.

(4) The grant funds to be drawn will be used for Eligible Costs
actually incurved in accordance with the provisians of Exhibits B, C and D to
this Crant Agreement.

(5) All Program Incame which has been received by the Recipient or
by a Rarticipating Party has been depesited or used in accordance with the
provisions of Section 2.04 of this Grant Agreement.

Section 8,02 Certification After Cunpleticn of all Recipient
Activities

. within thirty (30) days after the campletion of all Recipient
Activities, the Recipient shall submit to the Secretary a written certification,
executed by the chief executive officer of the Recipient, stating that all
Recipient Activities, have been campleted consistent with the terms of thie
Grant igreement, and specifying the date of completion and the ctat for each
Fecipient Activity. '

Sectjon 8.03 Certification After Conpleticn of All Nem-Recipient
Activitieg :

Within thirty (30) days after the campletion of all Men—Recipient
Activities, the Recipient shall sulmit to the Secretary a written certification,
executed by the chief executive officer of the Recipient, ctating that all Non-
Fecipient Activities, have been campleted consistent with the terms of this Crant
Agreament, and specifying the date of completion and the cost for each Noen-Recipient
Activity. 7he certification shall have attached to. it a statement from each
rarticipating Farty that the information in the certification with respect to
the tion-kecipient Activities carried cut by that Participating Party ie camplete

ang’ correct,
ARUICLE IX
SHIRD BARTY CQNTRACY munmmms
Section 9,01 Ecscrow of Program Income '

1he Recipient shall include in all contracts with Participating Parties
involving activities to be paid for with grant funds, a provision that, upon
instruction by the Secretary, all Program Inceme received by the Rarticipating
karty, prior to the completion of all Recipient Activities, shall be deposited
in escrow undet arrangements approved by the Secretary, it order to provide
furde to assure the ompletion of the Recipient Activities.

Sectioh 9.02 Program Income Applied to Costs

‘ Unless Exhibit A of this Crant Agreement authorizes or vequires
otrerwise, the Recipient shall include in all ocontracts with Participating
Rarties involving activities to be paid for with grant funds, .a provision that
all Program Incame received by the Participating Party, prior to the campletion
of all Recipient Activities, shall be transmitted to the Recipient for payment
of cogts incurred for Recipient Activities. ' .

Section 9.0; Program Income for Title I Activities

. Unless Exhibit A to thie Crant Agreement authorizes or requires
ctherwize, the Recipient shall include in all contracts with Participating
larties involving activitiss to be paid for with grant funds, a provision that
all kogram Income received by the Participating Party after the campletion of
all kecipient Activities shall, at the option of the Reeiplent, either be
transmitted to the Recipient, or used by the Participating Party with Recipient.
: ap,_aroval, for conmunity and econamic development activities which would be
eligible for assistance under Title I of the Act, unless otherwise provided in
the close-cut &greement between Kecipient and HUD.
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Section 9.04 Assurance of Governmental hpprovals

» . ¥ I ) Iy 3 ] ting
nhe Recipient shall include in all contracts W}t.h Participa
varties a warranty that the Recipient and each participating Party has ollatauled,
or has reasonable assurance that it will obtain, all Federal, State and local
governmental approvals and reviews required by law to be obtained by the Recipient
or Participating Party for the Project. Any such approvals or reviews which
have not been cbtained shall be specified in the contract,

Section 9.05 Completion of Project

1he Recipient shall cause to ke included in all contracts with
barticipsting Parties @& representation on the part of each Participatipg Party
that the Farticipating Herty acknowledges that the Secretary, in selecting the
Fecipient for the award of this grant, relied in material part upon the assured
completion of the Proiject and that the Participating Porty assures the Recipient
that such activities will be completed by the Participating Party.

Sectian 9.06 Assurances of Projected Jobs

© () ‘ihe kacipient shall either include in all appropt:{.atg contracts
with barticipsting larties, or shall secure in the most legally binding and
entorceable form for such assurance available under the laws of Recipient's
State, written assurances from each Participating Party that such kRarticipsting
rarty will use its best efforts to create or cause to be created, within a tine
specified in Exhibit A of this Grant Agreement, &8 specified nurber of new
permanent. job opportunities, including a specified number of new permanent job
oprortunities tor minorities, CklA-eligible perscns, and persons who, at the
time of their employment, will be persons of low-and nwderate-income.

(b) For Pockets of Powerty Erojects, Recipient shall alsc include
assurances necessary to canply with Sectian 5.03{c) of this Grant Agreement.
all assurances shall (i) state that in crder to assist and enable the Recipient
to report to the Secretary, as the Secretary may require, the assuring Partici-
pating Party agrees to report to the Recipient, as the Recipient may from time
to time reguire, on the numbers and kindé of such jobs created or caused to be
created and filled, and (ii) contain such other provisions as may be required
Ly the Fecipient to enable the Recipient to camply with any veporting reguire-
mente of the Secretary and to cause the assurances to be legally binding and
enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by the applicable law.

Section 9.07 Maintaining Records and Richt to Inspect

e Recipient shall include in all contracts with Participating
barties receiving grant funds provisions requiring that (i) each such Partici-
pating lFarty keep and maintain books, records and other documents relating
directly to the receipt and disbursement of such grant funds; and (11i) any
duly authorized representative of the Secretary or Camptroller Ceneral of the
Lhited Htates shall, at all reaconable times, have access to and the right to
inspect, copy, audit, and examine all such hooks, records and other docunents
of such Farticipating kagty until the completion of all close-out procedures
respectiny this grant and the final settlement and conclusion of all issves
arising cut of this grant.

Section 9.08 Access to Project

ite Recipient shall include in all contracts with Participating
Farties a provision that each Participating Party agrees that any duly authorized
representative of the Secretary shall, at all reasonable times, have access to
any pertion of the Project in which such Participating Party is involved -until
the campletion of all close-cut procedures respecting this grant.

Section 9.09 lho Assignfent or Succession

The Recipient shall include in 81l ¢ontracts with Participating
Parties receiving grant furds an acknowledgement and agreement by the Parti~
cipating Party that no transfer ¢f grant funds by the Recipient to the Parti-
cipating Party shall be or be deemed an assigrment of grant funds, and that such
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Participating Party shall neither succeed to any righv_:ia. benefits or advantages
of the Recipient under this Grant Agreement, nor attain any rights, privileges,
authorities or interests in or under this Grant Agreement.

Section 9.10 Secretary Approval of Amendments

The Recipient shall include, or cause to be included, in all contracts
which are required to be submitted to and approved by the Secretary in accordance
with Exhibit E of this Grant Agreement a provision that during the term of this
Grant Agreement such contract shall not be amended in any material respect,
after such approval and acceptance, without the prior written approval of the
Secretary. "Material® shall be defined as anything which cancels or rveduces
any developmental, construction, job creating, or financial cbligation of any
Participating Party by more than ten (10%) percent, changes the sites or
character of any development activity, or increases any time for performance
hy a party by more than thixty (30) days.

Section 8.11 Disclaimer of Relationships

The Recipient shall include in all contracts with Participating
Parties, and in all contracts with any party inwolving the use of grant funds,
an acknowledyement that nothing contained in this Grant Agveement, or in the
contract between the parties, nor any act of the Secretary, the Recipient, or
any of the parties, shall be deemed or construed by any of the parties, or by
the third persons, to create any relationship of third-party berneficiary,
principal and agent, limited or gemeral partnership, or joint venture, ¢r of
any association or relationship involving the Secretary.

Section 9.12 Limitation of Recipient Liability for Project Activities

Unless otherwise specified in Exhibit A of thig Grant Agreement, the
Recipient shall include in all contracts with Participating Parties, and in all
contracts with any party involving the use of grant funds, an acknowledgement
that the Recipient shall not be liable to any Participating Party, or te any party
except HUD, for completion of, or the failure to camplete, any activities which
are a part of the Project, except those gpecified in Exhibit B of this Grant
A.greement.

Section 9.13 Conflict of Interest

) The Recipient shall include in all contracts with Participatimy
Parties, and in all contracts with any party involving the use of grant funds,

a conflict of intereat provision consistent with Section 5.01{8) of this Grant
Agreement.

Section 9.14 Project Signs

The Recipient shall include in all contracts with Participating
Parties, and in all contracts with any party involving the use of grant funds,
a project sign provigion consistent with any criteria which may be established
by the Secretary.

ARTICLE X}
EVIDENTIARY MATERIALS

Section 10.01 Commitments of Participating Parties = General

(a) 1In selecting the Recipient for the award of this grant, the

Secretary has relied, in material part, upon the representations of the Recipient
and Participating Parties that the Recipient and the Participating Partiez
(i) will carry out certain activities connocted with the Project: (ii) will
complete those activities; (iii) have, or will have, the financial capability
to agsure the carrying out of the activities to their completion; and
{iv) will invest, or cause to be invested, a specific value amount in the
l;:t::éict: fﬂ;e secraen t::ir:y tu.:;l ?mmm;ied upon the Recipient and Participating

cties' repre ona s articipating Parties will ior to an
usé of yrant funds for the Project, enter ﬁtongegally bindiné g;reements o
evidencing the connitments which were so relied upon by the Secretary.
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(b) Evidentiary materials to be submitted to and approved by the
Secretary as specified in Exhibit E of this Grant Agreement shall include:
(i) a cowplete index describing the material submitted; (ii) the legally
hinding and enforceable comitment of the Part{c;pating Party, in unequwoca:!.
terms, to undertake and complete specified activities connected with the Project,
and to expend on the Project a specified minimm amount of funds or other form
of investment; and (iii) clear and convincing prc_aof that the Participating Party
hac on hand, or will have available to it, any finances or other things qf value
necessary to carry out the prumises of completing the activities and making
the specified investment.

() Evidentiary msterials which have been submitted to and approved
by the Secretary shall not be amended in any material respect without prior
written appraval of the Secretary-

Section 10.02 Form of Documentary Evidence - General

All documentery evidence of commitments sukmitted :o'ttlre Secretary
for approval shall be in the form of either (i) a duplicate original, or
(ii) a photographic copy of the fully executed original, of the documents.

Section 10.03 Opinions of Recipient's Counsel

(a} Whenmever, in Exhibit E to this Grant Agreement or otherwise,
the opinion of an attorney is required as part of any evidentiary material to
be submitted to the Secretary, the opinion shall be in writing and shall be
that of counsel for the Recipient, unless otherwise specified.

(b) In the formulation or rendering of an opinion, Recipient's
counsel may rely upon the certification of other persons, or the written )
statements or opinions of other counsel; provided, a copy of each such certi~
fication, statement, or opinion is attached to the opinion of Recipient's
wnsell

(¢) If, in the formulation and vendering of an opinion, the
Recipient's coungel predicates the opinion upon “information and belief,”
then in all such cases the opinion of Recipient's counsel shall contain,
or have attached thereto, a statement or description of all of the informa~
tion upon which the belief of counsel is predicated.

Section 10.04 Evidence of Contracts ~ Form

() Evidence of ocontractual cormitments submitted to the Secretary
shall be in the form specified in Section 10.02 above; shall include all of
the documents evidenciny the contractual camitment; and shall have attached
the opinion of Recipient's counsel made in accordance with Section 10.03

{b) The opinion of Recipient's counsel shall certify that the
documents comply with Section 10,02 above, that Recipient's ccunsel has examined
into the authority of all parties to the documents, and of all persons executing
the documents on behalf of the parties, and that said parties and persons were
authorized to enter into and execute the dociments. ’

(c) The opinion of Recipient's counsel shall state that the documents
constitute a valid and legally enforceable contract under the laws of the
Recipient's State and that the documents conform to the provisions of this
Grant Agreement, except as to any particulars specified in the opinion.

Section 10.05 Evidence of Loan Commitments = Form

{a) Evidence of loan camnitments from private lending institutions
shall be in the form specified at Section 10.02 above; shall include all of
the documents evidencing the loan comnitment, an acceptance by the borvower,
the purposes of the loan, the authorized use of loan funds, and all otheyr
terms and conditions of the loan commitment, the acceptance, and the loan; and

shall have attached the opinion of Recipient's counsel, made in accordance with
Section 10.03.
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(b) A loan comitment may specify contingencies or conditions which
must be satisfied before the closing of the loan, or the disbursement of loan
funds, but the cammitment shall be an irrevocable cammitment, enforceable by
the borrower upon satisfaction of all contingencies or conditions.

(c) ate cpinion of Recipient's counsel shall ¢ertity that the
documents cauply with Section 10.02; that Recipient's councel has examined
into the authority of all parties to the loan cormitment and the acceptance,
and of all persons executing the lcan commitment and acceptance on behalf of
the parties; and that said parties and persone were authorized to neke the
loan conmitnent and acceptance.

(d} %he cpinion of Recipient's counsel shall state that, subject
only o such contingencies and conditions as are expressed in the documents,
the lending institution is irrevocably committed to loan, and the borrower to
accept upoh the temms and corditions specified, the principal amount specified
in the loan conmitment; and that the loan commitment, and the acceptance, and
all of the terms and conditions of the loan commitment, and the loan, are
lawful and enforceable under the laws of the Recipient's State; and that the
documents conform to the provisions of this Crant Agreement, except in any
particulars specified in the opinicn.

‘(e) 1If, under the terms of the loan cormitment, the making of the
loan is eontingent upcn the happening of any conditicn precedent, then the
approval of the commitment by the Secretary as the evidence reguired under
this Crant Agreement may be conditioned by the Secretary upon the sulmittal
and acceptance of further evidence that such contingencies have been satisfied,
or that the contingencies have been otherwise removed, or that the loan has
closed.

(£) where evidence of a loan camitment is required to be sulmitted
to the Secretary under this Grant Agreement, evidence of the actual clesing of
the loan shall ke acceptable, in lieu of the foregoing, provided such evidence
eanplies with Section 10.06.

Section 10.C¢ Lvidence of locans = Form

(a) Evidence of a loan having been made or closed shall ke in the
foru specified at Section 10,02; shall be on the letterhead of the lending
institution; shall state the principel amount of the loan, its purposes (interim
or permanent), and the suthorized uses of loan funds; shall describe or identify
the security for the loan; shall state the term of the loan; shall identify all
parties to the loan; shall be exscuted by an authorized officer of the lending
institution; and shall have attached an opinion of Recipient's counsel made in
accordance with Section 10.03, certifying that the documents conply with
Section 10.02, and that the officer of the lending institution was aunthorised
to execute the documents. .

(b) Evidence of a loan having been made or closed may also be submitted
in the form of copies of recorded notes, deeds, bonds, indentures and other
documents which comply with Section 10.02 and which contain sufficient evidence,
including evidence of recordatim, to enable the Secretary to detemmine the
matters gpecified above at subsection (a) of this Section 10,06 and that the
loan has been made or closed. .

Section 10.07 Evidence of Liquid Assets - Form

henever a Participating Party is required to provide evidence of
liquid sssets for an activity in an anbunt and manner satisfactory and acceptable
t¢ & lending institutian, such evidence shall be in the form specified at
Section 1L.Q2; Bhall be on the letterhead of the lending institution; shall
identify the Farticipating Farty; and shall state that the Participating Farty
hag on hand or immediately available to the Marticipating Farty, liquid
asgets of @ valee and in an apount satistactory @i eccaptable to the lending
institution, and that the availability and use of the liguid assets for the
activity to be carried out by the Participating Party in connection with the -
Project i assured to the satisfaction of the lending institution. 1he document
shall be executed by an authorized officer of the lending institution; ang
shall have attached an opinicn of Reeipient's oounsel, made in accordance with
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'Section 10,03, that the documents comply with Section 10.02 and that the officer
ot the lerrling institution was authorized to execute the same. ‘

Section 10.08 Evidence of Financeg Satistactory to Counsel -~ torm

{a) whenever evidence is required in the form of a statement anci
opinion of Kecipient's counsel that a Farticipating Party will provide a
specific amount of finances for purposes of carrying cut the commitment of
that Participating Party in connection with the Project, such evidence shall
be in the form of an opinien of Recipient's counsel made in accordance with
Section 10.03.

(b) The opinion of Recipient's counsel shall certify that counsel
has examined into the availability to the Participating Party of liquid assets
and/ar of debt financings shall state the amount and the source of liquid assets
on hand or immediately availakble to the Participating Party for use in the Project;
zno shall state the amount and the source of debt financing which is available,
or irrevocakly committed, tv the Participating rarty for use in the Project.
the evidence of these funds shall be consistent with the provisions of Sections
leOSO 101:06 ard lOIW am to the extent F)Ssible-

(c) 1he opinion of kecipient's counsel shall be that the Parti~
cipating rarty has on hand, or immediately available, or irrevocably committed
to the harticipating Farty, for use in carrying cut the commitments of the
participating larty to the Project, liquid assets and/or debt financing in a
sum eyual to the specified amount of fimances required in this Grant Agreement.

(d) Sukmissions pursuant to this Section shall be subject to HUD
Fproval as o foxm and content.

Section 10.09 Anti-Speculation Provisions - Sale of Real Property

{a) wherever, in Exhibit E of this Grant Agreement, a dotument is
required to contain a provision for the prevention or discouragement of speculation
in the purchase and sale of property by a beneficiary of grant funds, thenm,
unlese otherwise gpecifiied, such provision shall comply with this Sectien.

(b) The document shall prohibit the beneficiary of grant funds from
selling or otherwise disposing of the property within a period specified in
Exhibit }' of this Crant Agrecment after the date of the purchase, for an amount
in excess of the purchase price paid, plus the actual costs of any improvements
to the property by the beneficiary., The prohibition against sale shall
have the same force and effect as a lis pendens, and shall gpecify that in the
event of any attempted sale, in violation of the provisicn, the Recipient shall
be entitled to the ex parte issuance of an injunction restraining such sale.
~he doament shall be executed and authenticated in such manner and form as
nay e required under State law to authorize its recordation at the place of
recordation of decds, a5 if & 1lis pendens; and the docurent shall be so recorded.

{¢) 1be docurent may, in conjwnction with the foregeing, or in liev
thereof, describe a proceduve whereundier, in the event of any sale of the
property within tiie period specified in Exhibit L of this Grant Agreement, the
amount of grant funds which benefited the beneficiary shall be repaid by the
beneficiary to the kecipient. Such procedure may include a pro-rata réeduction
of the amount to be repaid, based upon the time elapsing between the date of
the initial purchase ot the property and its disposition by the beneticiary.
whe document nust either specify the amount of grant funds which tenefited the
beneficiary, or set forth a formula or agreed method for determining such
amount. The document shall be executed and authenticated in such mannet and
form as may be required to authorize its recordation, as if a lis pendens; ard
the document shall be so recurded. I

Section 10.10 Evidence of Title to Real Property - Form

whenever, in Exhibit E of this Crant. Agreement, a Farticipating
Party or the Recipient is required to acguire fee simple or leasehold title to
real property, and proof of such acquisition is requirea, evidence snall e in
.the form of an opinion of Recipient's counsel, ‘made in accordance witn Section
10,03, ’rhe opinion shall certify that on a specified date, either an original
ALTA policy of land or mortgage title insurance,. or other records identified in

‘1':2;--
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'the cpinicn, were examined by Recipient's coumsel; and that sald policy or other
records idertified tha Participating Party, or a wholly-owned subsidiary of tha
Participating Party, or the Recipient or its agent or agency, a8 required, as the
owner or lessee of record, in feé simple ot leasehdld,of said property, Tne
cpinion shall furthaer state that on the date specified by Recipient's counsel, the
mﬂfeeaﬂplaorlm&dduuewsaidmalmmrtywas‘mted,mthe .
Participating Party, or such subsidiary thereof, or in the Recipiant or its agent
or agency as required, In lieu thereof, evidepice may be in the fonm of docunents
which comply with Secticn 10,02 and which contdin sufficient evidence, including
avidance of recordation, to enable the Secretary to datexrmine, to the satisfaction
of the Secretary, that the Participating Party or the Reciplent did aoquire the
title, as required. :

ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1l.01 Notices

(3) All amendments, notices, requests, objections, waivers,
rejections, agreements, approvals, dmclogms and consents of any kind nade
pursuant to this Grant Agreement shall be in writing.

(b) Any such communication shall be deemed effective for all pur~ .
poses as of the date such communication is mailed, postage prepaid, by registered
or certified mail, return receipt requested, to be delivered only to the office
ot the addressee, axkiressed as follows:

(1) Communicatiofs to the Secretary shall be mailed simultaneously
to: (A) The Director, Office of Urban Develogment Action Grants, U.S. Department
of housing and Urban Development, 451 7th‘Street, S.W,, Room 7258, Washington,
D.C. 20410, and (B) The Area Office Manager of the HUD Area Office authorized
to receive the Application of the Recipient for the grant hereunder; and
(C) such other persons or at such other addresses as may be furnished by the
Secretary to the Recipient.

(2) Communications to the Fecipient shall be addressed to the
lecipient, at the address set forth in Exhibit A of this Grant Agreement, or
such other address as may be furnished by the Recipient to the Secretary.

Section 11.02 Assignment

No right, benefit, or advantage inuring to the Recipient under this
Grant Agreefient and no burden imposed on the Recipient hereunder may be assiuned
without the prior written approval of the S8ecretary. &n authorization by the
Secretary for the transfer of grant funds by Recipient to a Participating Party
shall rot be deemed an authorization for an assignment, .and such Participating
Lh*:x:ty shall not succeed to any righte, benefits or advantages of the Recipient
reurkier .

Section 11.03 Successors bBound

1his Crant Agreement shall bind, and the rights, benefits and advan—
tages shall inure to, the Recipient's successors. .

Section 11.04 Remedies ot Inmpaired

No delay or cmission of the Secretary in exercising any right or remedy
available under this Crant Agreement shall impasr any such right or remedy or
constitute a waiver of any Default, or an aoquiescence therein.

Bection 11.05 OCumlative Remedies

All rights and remedies of the Segretary under.this Grant Agreement
shall be cunulative.

Section 11,06 Severakility

) 1he invalidity of any article, sectien, subsection, clause or pro-
vision of this Grant Agreement shall not aftect the validity of the remaining
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articles, sections, subsections, clauses or provisions hereof.
Section 11.07 Entire Agreement

This Crant Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the
Secretary and the Recipient and supersedes all prior coral and written agreements
between the parties hereto with respect to the subject grant. Notwithstanding
the provisions of Section 1.01 of this Grant Agrecment, in the event of ony
inconsistency between the provisions of this Grant Agreement and anything
contained in the Applicaticn, then the provisions of this Grant Agreement shall
prevail. ‘ :

Section 11.08 Execution in Counterpatts

1his Grant Agreement may be executed in amy number of counterparts,
All such counterparts shall be deemed to be originals and together shall ocone~
stitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 11.09 Table of Contents: Titles and Headings

Any table of contents, the title of the Articles, and the headings of
the sections and eubsections set forth herein are not a part of this Crant
Agreenent and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or constructicn of any
of its provisions. .

Section 11.10 Amendment of this Crant Agreement

This Crant Agreememt, or any part hereof, may be amended from time
to time hereafter anly in writing executed by the Secretary and the Recipient.

Section 11.1)1 pisclaimer of Relationshipe

The Recipient acknowledges that the cbligation of the Secretary is
limited to providing grant funds in the manner and on the terms set forth in
this Crant Agreement. Nothing in this Crant Agreement, nor any act of either
the Secretary or of the Recipient, shall be deemed or construed by either of
them, or by third persons, to create any relationship of third~party beneficiary,
principal and agent, limited or general partnership, or joint venture, or of
any associatjon or prelationship whatsoever involving the Secretary.

Section 11,12 Governing Law

This Grant Agreement ac it may affect the rights, remedies, duties,
ard obligations of the Secretary shall be govermed by and construed in accovdance
with Federal law. Insofar as Federal law does not apply, the provisions of
and

this Grant Agreement shall be governmed by construed irn accordance with the
laws of the Recipient's State.

Section 11.13 Waiver by Secretary

i The Secretary reserves and shall have the exclusive right to waive, at
the sole discretion of the Secretary, and to the extent permitted by law, any
requireirent or provision under this Grant Agreement. No act by or oh behalf of
the Secretary shall be, or be deemed or construed to be, any waiver of any such
requirement or provision, unless the same be in writing, signed by the Secretary,
and exmressly stated to constitute such waiver.

Section 11.14 Effective Cate

(a) This Crant Agreement shall, when executed apd dated by the
Secretary, constitute an cffer by the Secretary to the Recipient to make the
within grant and to enter into this Grant Agreecment. When delivered to the
kecipient so executed and dated, the same shall constitute a tender of said
offar; Wrich Bhall be- prouptly-actepted, if-at-aily-by the Reciplent—and-which- .- -
shall not be altered without the Secretary's approval. lhe Secretary may
revoke the tender and vescind the otfer at any time prior to its acceptance by
the Recipient, by written notice of the Secretary to the Racipient, given as
specified at Section 11.0]1 of this Grant Agreement,

Revized 6/81 18




(b) This Grant Agreement shall be deemed to have been accepted, and
- shal) becane effective, as of the date this Grant Agreement is executed and
dated by the Recipient.

Section 11.15 Termination of Grant Agreement

Unless otherwise terminated by the Secretary pursuant to Article VII
of this Grant Agreement, or by the mutual consent of Recipient and the Secretary,
this Grant Agreement shall terminate upon the campletion of all ¢lose—out
procedures respecting this grant and the final settlement and conclusion between
Recipient and the Secretary of all issues arising out of thia grant, unless
otherwise provided in the close—out agreement between Recipient and the Secretary.
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One (1) €fully executed copy of this Grant Agreement must be mailed

SIGNATURE PACE
THIS ORANT AGREEMENT, aunmbered B~85-AB~23-0042 is hereby
executed and delivered by the Parties hereto on the dates set

forth below their respective slgusturea, aa follows:

THE SECRETARY OF HOUSING AND UEBAN DEVELOPMENT

gEc 3 1334

Date!

Fi
uty Assistant Secretary
gras Management
Office 6f Community Planning

aud Development

THE CITY OF GAERDINER, MAINE

Datet st - ¢
By: r y
Kenneth J., Kokernak
Title: City Manager
IMPORTANT .

to the 0ffice of Urban Development Action Granta, and two (2) fully
exacuted copleq of this Grant Agreement must be mailed to the HUD
Field Office Manager, in accordsure with Section 11.01, on the same
date executed by Recipient.
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Racipient: c1:§ of Gardiner, Maine Grant Number: Be85=-AR~23-0042

EXHIBIT A
SUPPLEMENTARY PROVISIONS

Ridar to Section 1.03(2). 1In addition to Reciplent's Applicaniun.for
Federal Assistance (SF 424), the “Application” shall include:
Latters and Other Materials dated:

(1) S8eptember 20, 1984, Sacand Submiassion by City of Gardiner.

(2) October &, 1984, frow Preti, Flaherty & Beliveau to Jane Hilde, UDAG,
regaxrding IRB Counsel opinion.

(3) October 9, 1984, from John K. Craford, Senior Vice President, Moseley,
Hallgarten, Estebrook & Weeden, Ine., to Barry Goldman, Great Northern
Fingncial Coxporation, regarding bond purchase commitoent.

(4) October 10, 1984, from Teco Brawn, Director, Matne Department of
Environmental Protsction, to Jane Hildt, regarding aite permit.

(5) October 10, 1984, from Leplie K. Stevans, Pipance Authority of Maine, to
Jane Hilet (aic), regarding IRB cap.

{AG), to Jane Hildt, regarding acceptance of bond finsneing terms, AG's

|
(6) Octobar 12, 1984 (four lstters), from David A. Flynn, Associated Crocers
“but for™, AG's jJob commitments, aund consultaat' feeg. \

{7) Octobar 12, 1984, from Kennath J. Kokernak, Ciry Manager, City of
Gardiner, to David Sowell, UDAG, regarding land sales price snd parmits.

(8) October 12, 1984, from Leslie B. Stevens to Jane Hildt, regarding IRB
cap-

(9) Octaber 16, 1984, from David L. Priedman, Cicy of Gardiner, co June
Hildt, with three ancloguzes. ’

)

Plus ‘any additional materigla suhmitead since the data the Application,
was filed upon which the Secratary relted in making thie award.

Rider to Section 1,03(12). The term "Participating Party" consistas of
the following persona, firms, corporationa and entities:

“Developer” means Associatad Grocexs oflnaina, Inc., a Maine non—profit

cooparative (Subchapter T) corparaticn, whosa mailing address
. is P.0. Box 97, Bouth Caxvdiner, Maine 04359, .

“Bond Purchaser® means Moseley, Hallgarten, Ratabrook & Weeden, Inc.i an
: invagtment banking company, located at 60 State Street,
Boston, Massachugetts 02101, and/or the inatitution or
) entity that purchases the bondes on the issue date.
“lssuer"™  means the Recipient accting in its capacity to issue
Todustrisl Revenua Bonds. .
"LOC Bank" means the Letter of Credit Bank, State Street Bank and
" - Trust Company,.225 Franklin St., Boston, Massachusetts 02101,
Truatas zeane a financial inseitution authoriged to act as Truatee
o in Maine or Massachugsetts (Casco Bank in Maine, The First
T National Bank of Boston in Massachusetts). C

Tw
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of Interstate 95, as more particularly deseribed in the Application.
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’ ’
lecip&gnt: City of Gardiner, Maine Grant Number: B-B5=-AK=~23~0042

Continvation Shest~-=-Exhibit A

Rider to Saction 1.03(13). The phrasa "the UDAG percentage of" contained

oo the first line of paragraph (13) and the last sentence thereof are daleted

in their entirety.

Rider ro Section 1.,03. (21) "Project Site” means the aite of

approxicataly 120 acres located on the east side of Route 101, 1/4 mile north

Rider to Seation 2.01. The amount of this UDAG grant is:

ONE MILLION SEVEN THOUSAND DOLLARS (§1,007,000).

Rider to Sections 2.04, 9.0), 9.02 and 9.03. Any repayment or ather

payments received pursuant to Paragraph III of Exhibit E to this Grant
Agreement and taceived prior to completion of the UDAG funded Recipient
éctivities shall de held in escrow pursuaut to Sectiam 2.04(a) of this Grant
Agreament until completion of the UDAG fundad Recipient Activities. All
epcrowed fubdg shall bear 1nt;roat vith the atcounts 1n;ured.hy a0 ageney of
the U.S8. Govetnﬁnnt. Upon completion of the UDAG fun&ed Recipient Activities,
Any funde held in aaid escrow shall be apeﬁ: for activities eligible under
Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Aet of 1974, as amended, and
shall be aspent in asccordance with Part 579 of Title 24 Coda ¢f Federal
Bagulations. Any repayuents received after completion of the UDAG funded
Reciplent Activities shall be deemed miscellaneous revenuess and shall be spent
for setivitieg eligible under Title I of the Housing and Community Davelopment

Act of 1974. as nmended. nnd ehall not be governed by Pa:c 570, T

Page' 2 of 3
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Becipient: City of Gardiner, Maine Grant Number; B=85-AB~23=0042

Continuaticn Sheet-——Exhibic A

Rider to Section 5.01{B). Paragraph (8) shall be deletad in its entiraty

and the £ollowxng'£hall be inserted in place thereof:

"(8) Recipient shall comply with the conflict of interest provialon set

forth in 24 CFR Section 570.611 (48 Federal Register 186, pp. 43571-72,
) L
9/23/83)."

Rider to Sections 5.03 snd 9.06, The jobs referenced at Sectien 5.03 and
the aasurances rquircd at Section 9.06 shall aggregate:

Tatal New Peruanant Jobs: 103

Total Nev Permanest Joba for Low- and Moderate-Tacowe Perscme: 77

Total New Permanant Jobs for CETA-Eligible Persons: 67

Total Naw Pertmaneat Jobs for Minoritles: 1

Job Requirementg shall be completed within 48 mbaths fram the
Date of Preliminary Appraval.

Rider to Section 9.13 Conflict of Interegt. Section 9.13 shall be deleted
in 1tz entirety and tha following ahall be Insarted in placs thereof:
“The chtpieuc.chall include fn all contracts with Pagticipating Parties

end in all contracts with any party involving the uge of Grant Funds, a

_conflict of interast provision consistent with 24 CFR Section 570.611 (48

FPedaral Regiater 186, pp. 43571-72, 9/23/83).°

Rider to Seetion 11.01.

The addrass of the Recipient for the purpose of

communications relating to this Grant Agraeéwent ia:

Mr. Kenneth J. Kokernak .
City Manager
City Hall

o b g 2 T e

EXHIBIT A Page 3 of 3
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Becipient: City of Gardiner, Maine CGrant Number: B-B5=AB=23-0042
EXMIBIT B

DRSCRIPTION OF RECIPIENT ACTIVITIES

Rider to Saeiion 1.03¢(17). The "Reciplent Activiciaz™ shall consist of:

Recipient shall:

(a) sell the Project Site ta Devaloper for not more than $30,000;

(b) lend not wore than $1,000,000 of Grant Funds to Developer for tha puxpe
of assisting in the acquisition and iastallation of capital equipment in the
industrial facility to be constructed by Developer oo the Project Site; and,

(c) spend not more than §7,000 of Crant Funds for admisistrative expanses.

(4) Iesue Industrial Revenue Bonds of not lesa than 6 million dollar /4
for the purpose of partially financing the Project. ) ’/57

7
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Becipient: City of Gardiper, Maine Graut Number;: B-~85-AB=23-0042

EXHIBIT C
DESCRIPTION OF NON=-RECIPIENT ACTIVITIES

Rider to Sectfan 1.03(11). The "Non-Recipiant Activities” shall consigt .of:

1
{a) Developer ghall;

(1) purchase the Project Site;

(2) construct an appraximate 218,000 squate foot warehouse, ﬂ%/
"

"and distribution facility; and

(3) purchase and install capiral equipment for the purpose of expanding
thedir current busiuees (the “Project”).
{b) The tatal cost of the Projact shall be not less than $7,000,000.
11

v

‘Whnd Purchager shall purchsae not less than

of partially financing the Project.

"~ " $6,000,000 of Industrial Ravenus Bonds issued by the lssuer for the ?urpoafsgﬁf;;/'

111

LOC Bank shall isasue an irrevoecable Letter of Credit to the Trustee for
an amount equal to the Industrial Revenue Bond Issue of $6 000,000.

- EXHIBIT C

Paga 1 of 1




_“Recipient: Ciry of Gardiner, Maime

Grant Number:

B-85-AR-23-0042

EXHIB1T D
Project Budget - Summary of Projected Expenditures
—__ USE OF FUNDS SOURCES OF FUNDS
|Tine Ltem Activipy UDAG Frivate Other TOTAL
Funds Funds funds COSTE
s, Site Acquisition $ 10,000 s 30,000
b, Site Improvenents 507,000 507,000
e. Naw Comatruction 3,918,310 3,918,310
4. Contingency . 202,590 202,590
L4
¢. Architect and Enginsering 200,000 200,00
f. Survey, Taxé¢s, Bond & Legal 219,270 219,2%C
Fees, Accounting & Ingurance
g+ Interinm Intevegt and 505,000 505,00(
Financing Feeg .
he Perwits and Fees . 14,500 14, 50¢
1. Othar Professional Fees 206,700 206,700
3
k. Capital Equipmant $1,000,000 196,630 1,196,631
1, Equipmant oot counted in
leverage ratio
&o. Working Capital (motr
counted 4in leverage zatio)
us PFrofit & Overhead (not
counted in levérage zatio)
0. TOTAL PROJECT COST §1,000,000 |36,000,000 $7,000,00!
p+ FEeciplent adminiserative casts 1,000
reimburged from UDAG fuunds
q+ Less: items mot counted in
lavarage ratio (lines l.=n.) - =0~
r. Total private investzent to
ba rteported on QPR's (“ceuntsble $6,000,000
private")
s. Plus: Digcounted value of
'UDAG loan repaymant o 1+ 578,918 -
"6« Plua: Discounted value of N
other public loan repaymente + -0~
ue. Plus: Prasent value of
loans paymenta + -0-
v. Totale ueed in computing
leverage ratio 51,007,000 - [$6,578,918
Digcount Rata: 11X

BEXHIBIT D

Raviged 3/2¢

Page 1 of 1
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Recipient: City of Gardiner, Maine Grant Number: B~85=AB~23-0042

EXUBIT E
REQUIRED EVIDENTIARY MATERIALS

The evideatiary materiale to be submitted by the Recipient for the
appraval of the Secretary ahall include the applicable provisions of Article
IX of this Grant Agraement and shall comsist of the fnllouing{

1

{a) All governmental approvala and permits neceasary for the commence-
ment of the Recipiant and Noo~Recipient Activities shall have been obtained.

(b) Evidence of this commitwent aghall be a written gartification from
Recipient, signed by the chief éxecutive officer, in accordance with
Section 10.02 of thie Grant Agreement, that all such governmental approvals
and permits have baen obtained.

11

(a) Title to all land necesaary for the ProjeCt! except lgnd to be

acquired with Grant Funds, ghall be held by Recipilent or the appropriate

Participating Party.

(b) Evidence of this commitment ghall be in accordemce with Section

10,10 of this Grant Agreswent.

111

{a) Rzéipien: and Developer ghall entsar into an agreemen:.yhlah shall

contain provigiona consistent with the followiug:

(1) Beciplent shall agree to carry-out all Recipient Activities set
forth in Exhibit B te this Grant Agreemant. ‘

(2) Developer shall sgree to céarry-out all Nom-Recipient Activities

ascribed to Developer in Exhibit C to this Grant Agreemant. The agreement

ghall eet forth the scope of tha work, its location, and the obligation of
Developer to inveat not lees thaa $6,000,000 of private funds in the Project.

(3) Recipient shall be obligated to zaks a losn to Developar of uot
more than $1,000,000 of Grant Funds (the "UDAG Loan"), which shall be uged for the

purpose of partially financiog the purchase and installation of capital equipment

on the Project Hite. The terms and couditians of the UDAG Loan ghall be coasistent

wvith the follawiung:

EXHIBIT E Page 1 of 5
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.. ade for the Project which are not paid for by the developer plus-further advance
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Recipient: City of Gardiner, Maine Crant Number: B-85-AB-23~0042

Gontinuation Shaer~~=Exhibit E

{aa) UDAG Interim Loaa:

(1) Principal: The prinetpal amount of the Interim Laen
shall be no moxe than $1,000,000.

(34) Interest: The interest rata ghsll be zero percent (0X)
’

per ausum.

(141) Dishurasement/Ratio: Loan disbursemants shall be based on

vouchers submitted by Devaloper, verified hy Recipient, and cercified by the
architect, conatruction manager, or other certifying officlal as ghall be -
acceptable to Reciplent. All submisaions hy contractors of monthly requisitions

sball be on AIA Formg 702 and 703 or their equivalent,
No disbursement of the UDAG Loan shall be made until:

a) Developer has furnished Racipiant with the
following:

1) an ALTA policy for Qor:gage title inaurance,
in the full awount of the UDAG Laoan, insuring that Recipilent will be the
holder of a second lien on tha hereafter described erecurity, free of encumbrances
and other excaptions to title other than those approved i{n advance by Recipient,

and not subordinated to any interest axcept the coordinate first mortgage among the
Iseuer, the Trustee, and the 10C Bank fn an amount not to exceed $6,000,000 of
principal plusi gny acerued interest, legal fess, and any other disbursementa

by the Bond Purchaser which are invasted in tha Project and are required for its
cogpletion; and '

2) a Builder's Risk and Fire Insurapee policy

or policies duly endorsed to indicate Recipient as an ingured mortgagea; and

b) All of the evidenriary materials required by
thia Exhidit E have been submitted to and approved by the Secretary and the

Sacretary hag suthorized Recipient to drav down guch funde from it Letter of
Credit.

..Jo lean funds shall ba-disbuzeed until Developer hen firgt expended oot
1lass than $600,000 of private funda for the Project, after which the UDAC funds way

be dravn down for Projeet activitiea in a 53

. cy
more than, §1,00 of UDAG funds te SS. £ co

9, countabla private funds of not

a private funds; thus, for every

pended on the Project (after any raquired equity contributien) not

EXHIBIT E Page 2 of 5




1
Reciplent: City of Gardiner, Maine Grant Number: B=85-AR-~23-0042

Continuation Sheer—~-Exhibit Zgaé?/ ,
s
mpre than 51.00 will be UDAG funda and not lese than $§?ff wil countahle

private funds.

(bth) UDAG Permanent Loan:

(1) ZTemm: Term of the UDAG Permanent loan shall be 20 years

r commencing upon completion of counstruction, but in no event later tham

February 1, 1986,

(14) Principal: The prinefpal of the UDAG Permgnent Loan
shall be the amount disburged under the UDAGC Interim Loan plus any interest

accrued during the term of the UDAG Interim Loan.

(i114) Iunterest: The intercst rate ghall be zero percent (0X)

per gunum in years oue through three (1~3) and eight parceat (8%) per annum

thereafter. '

x 238888828829
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+(4v) Repayment: In yeara one through three (1-3), priacipal

ey
-~

shall be deferred and beginning at year four (4), repayment of principsl and

b
Wi

interast ghall be wade in quarterly Anstallments in accordance with a 25-yaar
anortigzation achedule during the Term of the UDAG Permanent Loan, and a ballean
payuent sufficient to pay off the entire outstanding indebtedness ef principal,
iuterest and asccrued interest ehall be made at maturity of tha UDAG Permanent Loan.

\
BEQUIRED ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO UDAG INTERTM AND PERMANENT LOANS.

{cc) Becyrity: The UDAG loan shall be eecured by a deed of
"trust or mortgage in favor of Recipient upon all land, buildings, fixtures,

equipnent and other agseta of the Daveloper comprising the Project. The

security pogition of the Recipient may be subordinated to the coordinate first
. securlcy interest among the Issuer, the Trustee, and the LOC Bank in an amount

ROt to exceed $6,000,000 of principal plus any acerued futereat legal feea, and ;
any other disbursements made for the Project which are not patd for by. the | /’

Developer plus further advances by the Bond Purchaser which ace fnvested in thé
.--Froject and are required for i1ts complerion.

The daed of trugt or mortgage shall glao contain standard provisions to

protect the intereat of the second mortgagea, including, for exampla, a
provislon that a dafault under the firgt mortgage which could permit a
foreclogure by tha first wortgagee shall constitute a default under the second

mortgage and the unpatd principal balance and interest of the UDAG Loan ghall

become immediately due and payable.

RYEIENRBENNTNES S

EXHIBIT E Page 3 of §
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Recipient: City of Cardiner, Maine Grant Number: B=85-AB=23-0042

Continuation Sheer==-Exhibit K

The deed of truet or mortgage shall naot contuin an exculpation clause in
favor of Desvaloper. -

To the extent pérmitted by law, all of the personal property described in
the morcgage shall be dcemed to be fixtures and part of the real property. As
to any part of such personal property not decme& ot permi:tedhby law to be
fiitutea, the notfgage shall constitute a security agreement under the Uniform

Commercial Code.

In addition, the UDAG Loan shall de gecured by a second lien in favar of
the Recipient “PQ“\..QU- capital cquipment purchased wit:h. the proceeds thutvof,
subjeet to the coordinate first lien. This then cunnot be subordinated to any
other interest. Developer shall cause to be recordea all appropriate Uniform
Commercial Code financing statements and/or security agreements requircd to
secure the UDAG loan, The financing geatements and/ot security agrocments shgll
not contain exculpation clauses in favor of Devalop&r.

{d4d) cCuarasntee: The repaymént of the UDAG Loan snd the completion
of the Non-Recipient Activities pertaining to Developer shall be unconditionally
and irrevocably guarau:ged by Develaper.

(ce) Pregazgent: No prepayment iay occur without prior written
approval of the Recipient. ’

(4) All applicable torms and conditions of this Grant Agreement,
including Axticle IX provisions and job assurances specified in Sections 5.03 and
9.06 shall be set forth in the agreement.

(5) The agreement shall specify a timeframe for performance
congletent with Exhibit F ¢ta thie Crant Agréenen:.

{(6) During the term of this Grant Agreemant, Developer shall agree
to provide necessary data and information as to private invegtment and Jabs
relating to this Grant Agreeritit. ‘

(b) Evidence of this commitment shall be in accotdsnce with Section

10.04 of this Grant Agreement together with coples of the forms of all UDAG

Loan documents to be used at cloaing.

EXHIBIT E Page 4 of 5
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Recipient; Cicty of Gardiner, Maine Orant Number: B-85=-AB=23-0042

Continuation Sheet-—=Exhibit E

v
?/ﬁ/
(a) " 1e BY”" §fA1 dssue and sell and Bond Purchaser shall purchase at leas

36,000,000 4n Induatrial Revenue Bounds for the Project.

(b) Evidence of thia commitment shall he ip the form of & certification
from the trustee aund/or depoaitory of the proceeds of the ben:i sale ;tating
that aaid :rust:e? and/or depoaitory has on hand and immediately available to
Developer, as aforesaid, the net bond proceeds for fimancing the construction

and developmant of the Project and fa acesordance with Section 10.02 of thig

Grant Agreement.

EXHIBIT E
Yage 5 of 5




Exhibit 6{a) (i)

COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made effective as of
Ocpp€R K, 2001, and is by and between Wheaton & McLaughlin, Inc., d/b/a Princeton
Food Mart, in P .40.£704 Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Borrower"), and ASSOCIATED
GROCERS OF MAINE, INC., a Maine Corporation doing business in Gardiner, Kennebec
County and State of Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Lender").

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained herein and benefits to be
derived herefrom, and for good and valuable consideration, Borrower and Lender hereby agree
to the following terms and conditions:

1. PURPOSE OF LOAN. The purpose of the loan between Borrower and Lender is
to finance the acquisition of inventory of Borrower's?gdgéﬂ)g Maine retail grocery store (the
"Store") pursuant to the terms of the Inventory Purchase Agreement, hereafter defined.

2. THE NOTE. Borrower's indebtedness to Lender shall be evidenced by a
$48,000.00 Commercial Promissory Note by Borrower to Lender made effective as of even date
(the "Note"). The Note is to be for seven years without interest, as more particularly described in
the Note.

3. PURCHASE OF INVENTORY. As a specific condition of Lender's loan to
Borrower, Borrower agrees to purchase at least fifty-five percent (55%) of its inventory
requirements at the Store from Lender for a term of seven (7) years, according to the terms and
conditions of the Inventory Purchase Agreement (the “Inventory Purchase Agreement”) between
the parties, dated as of even date, and executed in connection herewith.

4. DEFAULT. The occurrence of any one or more of the following shall be an event
of default hereunder. The occurrence of any event of default shall constitute without notice or
demand a default under the Note, the Inventory Purchase Agreement, and all other agreements
between Borrower and Lender:

(@)  Failure by Borrower to perform any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement,
or any default under any other agreement between Borrower and Lender executed in connection
herewith (including, without limitation, the Note or the Inventory Purchase Agreement);

(b)  Any representation or warranty made by Borrower to Lender proves to be false or
misleading in any material respect;

(c)  Any report, certificate or financial statement or other instrument furnished in
connection with this Loan Agreement which proves to be false or misleading in any material
respect.



5. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Borrower shall furnish to Lender within ninety
(90) days of its fiscal year end, audited financial statements, or if audited financial statements are
not available, financial statements in review quality, prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, by a firm of certified public accountants acceptable to Lender.

6. FOREGIVENESS OF DEBT AND IMPUTED INTEREST. In each month
during the term of the Inventory Purchase Agreement that Borrower is in full compliance with,
and has performed all of its obligations under, the terms of the Inventory Purchase Agreement,
Lender will forgive one eighty-fourth (1/84) of the total principal due under the Note. Principal
forgiveness will be based only on full months’ performance, and will not be prorated for partial
months. Any imputed interest on the Note will also be forgiven in the same manner and under
the same terms as the forgiven principal.

If Borrower fails to comply with or perform all of its obligations under the Inventory
Purchase Agreement, or if Borrower terminates the Inventory Purchase Agreement pursuant to
Section 3 thereof, no principal or imputed interest will be forgiven, and all amounts remaining
due under the Note will then be immediately due and payable in full as of the date of any such

breach or termination by Borrower.

7. TERMINATION OF ADVERTISING CREDIT. Borrower and Lender
acknowledge that all agreements, obligations and rights of either of them with respect to the
granting by Lender to Borrower of any so-called advertising credit are hereby terminated.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this & 7

day of 3R, 2001,

BORROWER:

Wheaton & McLaughlin, Inc. d/b/a
Princeton Food Mart

Ao s By: /l"‘/ W

Witness Tts V-Phtsedek

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE,
INC.

Cetity Catledon By

Witness Its: Pepsizent / CLO
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Exhibit 6(c){(ii)

COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made effective as of
OQ{;()W , 2001, and is by and between Falls Retail, Inc., d/b/a Falls Market, in

EraSoR7H, Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Borrower"), and ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF

MAINE, INC., a Maine Corporation doing business in Gardiner, Kennebec County and State of
Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Lender").

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained herein and benefits to be
derived herefrom, and for good and valuable consideration, Borrower and Lender hereby agree
to the following terms and conditions:

1. PURPOSE OF LOAN. The purpose of the loan between Borrower and Lender is
to finance the acquisition of inventory of Borrower's ZS4/p474 Maine retail grocery store (the
"Store") pursuant to the terms of the Inventory Purchase Agreement, hereafter defined.

2. THE NOFE. Borrower's indebtedness to Lender shall be evidenced by a
$48,000.00 Commercial Promissory Note by Borrower to Lender made effective as of even date
(the "Note"). The Note is to be for seven years without interest, as more particularly described in
the Note.

3. PURCHASE OF INVENTORY. As a specific condition of Lender's loan to
Borrower, Borrower agrees to purchase at least fifty-five percent (55%) of its inventory
requirements at the Store from Lender for a term of seven (7) years, according to the terms and
conditions of the Inventory Purchase Agreement (the “Inventory Purchase Agreement”) between
the parties, dated as of even date, and executed in connection herewith.

4, DEFAULT. The occurrence of any one or more of the following shall be an event
of default hereunder. The occurrence of any event of default shall constitute without notice or
demand a default under the Note, the Inventory Purchase Agreement, and all other agreements
between Borrower and Lender:

(a)  Failure by Borrower to perform any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement,
or any default under any other agreement between Borrower and Lender executed in connection
herewith (including, without limitation, the Note or the Inventory Purchase Agreement);

(b)  Any representation or warranty made by Borrower to Lender proves to be false or
misleading in any material respect;

(¢)  Any report, certificate or financial statement or other instrument furnished in
connection with this Loan Agreement which proves to be false or misleading in any material
respect.



T

5. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Borrower shall furnish to Lender within ninety
(90) days of its fiscal year end, audited financial statements, or if audited financial statements are
not available, financial statements in review quality, prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, by a firm of certified public accountants acceptable to Lender.

6. FOREGIVENESS OF DEBT AND IMPUTED INTEREST. In each month
during the term of the Inventory Purchase Agreement that Borrower is in full compliance with,
and has performed all of its obligations under, the terms of the Inventory Purchase Agreement,
Lender will forgive one eighty-fourth (1/84) of the total principal due under the Note. Principal
forgiveness will be based only on full months’ performance, and will not be prorated for partial
months. Any imputed interest on the Note will also be forgiven in the same manner and under
the same terms as the forgiven principal.

If Borrower fails to comply with or perform all of its obligations under the Inventory
Purchase Agreement, or if Borrower terminates the Inventory Purchase Agreement pursuant to
Section 3 thereof, no principal or imputed interest will be forgiven, and all amounts remaining
due under the Note will then be immediately due and payable in full as of the date of any such
breach or termination by Borrower.

7. TERMINATION OF ADVERTISING CREDIT. Borrower and Lender
acknowledge that all agreements, obligations and rights of either of them with respect to the
granting by Lender to Borrower of any so-called advertising credit are hereby terminated.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this ¥ * vH
day of OugdB#A_, 2001.

BORROWER:
Falls Retail, Inc. d/b/a
Falls Market

Witness Its l/ ﬂw

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE,

Cothy Callsban_ By: %J j/ﬁ /&/yﬁ

Witness Its: CessIioZIT /O E O
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Exhibit 6(c)(iii)

COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made effective as of
ar;v@éﬂ & 2001, and is by and between Downeast Retail Corp., d/b/a Elmer's Food
Mart, in(Cok)mp/4_, Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Borrower"), and ASSOCIATED
GROCERS OF MAINE, INC., a Maine Corporation doing business in Gardiner, Kennebec
County and State of Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Lender").

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained herein and benefits to be
derived herefrom, and for good and valuable consideration, Borrower and Lender hereby agree
to the following terms and conditions:

1. PURPOSE OF LOAN. The purpose of the loan between Borrower and Lender is
to finance the acquisition of inventory of Borrower's&g_mﬂ, Maine retail grocery store (the
"Store") pursuant to the terms of the Inventory Purchase Agreement, hereafter defined.

2. THE NOTE. Borrower's indebtedness to Lender shall be evidenced by a
$48,000.00 Commercial Promissory Note by Borrower to Lender made effective as of even date
(the "Note"). The Note is to be for seven years without interest, as more particularly described in
the Note.

3. PURCHASE OF INVENTORY. As a specific condition of Lender's loan to
Borrower, Borrower agrees to purchase at least fifty-five percent (55%) of its inventory
requirements at the Store from Lender for a term of seven (7) years, according to the terms and
conditions of the Inventory Purchase Agreement (the “Inventory Purchase Agreement”) between
the parties, dated as of even date, and executed in connection herewith.

4. DEFAULT. The occurrence of any one or more of the following shall be an event
of default hereunder. The occurrence of any event of default shall constitute without notice or
demand a default under the Note, the Inventory Purchase Agreement, and all other agreements
between Borrower and Lender:

(a) Failure by Borrower to perform any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement,
or any default under any other agreement between Borrower and Lender executed in connection
herewith (including, without limitation, the Note or the Inventory Purchase Agreement);

(b)  Any representation or warranty made by Borrower to Lender proves to be false or
misleading in any material respect;

()  Any report, certificate or financial statement or other instrument furnished in
connection with this Loan Agreement which proves to be false or misleading in any material
respect.



5. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Borrower shall furnish to Lender within ninety
(90) days of its fiscal year end, audited financial statements, or if audited financial statements are
not available, financial statements in review quality, prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, by a firm of certified public accountants acceptable to Lender.

6. FOREGIVENESS OF DEBT AND IMPUTED INTEREST. In each month
during the term of the Inventory Purchase Agreement that Borrower is in full compliance with,
and has performed all of its obligations under, the terms of the Inventory Purchase Agreement,
Lender will forgive one eighty-fourth (1/84) of the total principal due under the Note. Principal
forgiveness will be based only on full months’ performance, and will not be prorated for partial
months. Any imputed interest on the Note will also be forgiven in the same manner and under
the same terms as the forgiven principal.

If Borrower fails to comply with or perform all of its obligations under the Inventory
Purchase Agreement, or if Borrower terminates the Inventory Purchase Agreement pursuant to
Section 3 thereof, no principal or imputed interest will be forgiven, and all amounts remaining
due under the Note will then be immediately due and payable in full as of the date of any such
breach or termination by Borrower.

7. TERMINATION OF ADVERTISING CREDIT. Borrower and Lender

acknowledge that all agreements, obligations and rights of either of them with respect to the
granting by Lender to Borrower of any so-called advertising credit are hereby terminated.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this _§ il

day of erp2£A_, 2001,

BORROWER:

Downeast Retail Corp. d/b/a
Elmer's Food Mart

At s Wémz%%f

Witness Its V- ﬂ/z tacdekt
ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE,

0 atl WM“’ By:%MZ Uw

Witness Its: Cegshoant [CEO




Exhibit 6(c) (iv)

COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made effective as of
Oprr0-8£R & 2001, and is by and between Rake, Inc., d/b/a Woodland Food Mart, in

lJooosa40 , Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Borrower"), and ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF

MAINE, INC., a Maine Corporation doing business in Gardiner, Kennebec County and State of
Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Lender").

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained herein and benefits to be
derived herefrom, and for good and valuable consideration, Borrower and Lender hereby agree
to the following terms and conditions:

1. PURPOSE OF LOAN. The purpose of the loan between Borrower and Lender is
to finance the acquisition of inventory of Borrower's ZJmaigug, Maine retail grocery store (the
"Store") pursuant to the terms of the Inventory Purchase Agreement, hereafter defined.

2. THE NOTE. Borrower's indebtedness to Lender shall be evidenced by a
$48,000.00 Commercial Promissory Note by Borrower to Lender made effective as of even date
(the "Note"). The Note is to be for seven years without interest, as more particularly described in
the Note.

3. PURCHASE OF INVENTORY. As a specific condition of Lender's loan to
Borrower, Borrower agrees to purchase at least fifty-five percent (55%) of its inventory
requirements at the Store from Lender for a term of seven (7) years, according to the terms and
conditions of the Inventory Purchase Agreement (the “Inventory Purchase Agreement”) between
the parties, dated as of even date, and executed in connection herewith.

4. DEFAULT. The occurrence of any one or more of the following shall be an event
of default hereunder. The occurrence of any event of default shall constitute without notice or
demand a default under the Note, the Inventory Purchase Agreement, and all other agreements
between Borrower and Lender:

(a)  Failure by Borrower to perform any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement,
or any default under any other agreement between Borrower and Lender executed in connection
herewith (including, without limitation, the Note or the Inventory Purchase Agreement);

(b)  Any representation or warranty made by Borrower to Lender proves to be false or
misleading in any material respect;

(¢)  Any repor, certificate or financial statement or other instrument furnished in
connection with this Loan Agreement which proves to be false or misleading in any material
respect.
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5. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Borrower shall furnish to Lender within ninety
(90) days of its fiscal year end, audited financial statements, or if audited financial statements are
not available, financial statements in review quality, prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, by a firm of certified public accountants acceptable to Lender.

6. FOREGIVENESS OF DEBT AND IMPUTED INTEREST. In each month
during the term of the Inventory Purchase Agreement that Borrower is in full compliance with,
and has performed all of its obligations under, the terms of the Inventory Purchase Agreement,
Lender will forgive one eighty-fourth (1/84) of the total principal due under the Note. Principal
forgiveness will be based only on full months’ performance, and will not be prorated for partial
months. Any imputed interest on the Note will also be forgiven in the same manner and under
the same terms as the forgiven principal.

If Borrower fails to comply with or perform all of its obligations under the Inventory
Purchase Agreement, or if Borrower terminates the Inventory Purchase Agreement pursuant to
Section 3 thereof, no principal or imputed interest will be forgiven, and all amounts remaining
due under the Note will then be immediately due and payable in full as of the date of any such
breach or termination by Borrower.

7. TERMINATION OF ADVERTISING CREDIT. Borrower and Lender
acknowledge that all agreements, obligations and rights of either of them with respect to the
granting by Lender to Borrower of any so-called advertising credit are hereby terminated.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this g ﬁ
day of Qogordef_, 2001.

BORROWER:

Rake, Inc. d/b/a
Woodland Food Mart

boibdoes  ny %MAA{

Witness 5 /- Dvacdent

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE,
INC.

Cotty Celldban

Witness

" Qogs T JoA£ O



Exhibit 6(c) (v)

COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made effective as of
& 2001, and is by and between Coastal Retail Corp., d/b/a Southwest Food
Mart, inS 84 ¢x 7 Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Borrower"), and ASSOCIATED
GROCERS OF MAINE, INC., a Maine Corporation doing business in Gardiner, Kennebec
County and State of Maine (hereinaﬁer referred to as "Lender").

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained herein and benefits to be
derived herefrom, and for good and valuable consideration, Borrower and Lender hereby agree
to the following terms and conditions:

1. PURPOSE OF LOAN. The purpose of the loan between Borrower and Lender is
to finance the acquisition of inventory of Borrower' $%2 Maine retail grocery store (the
"Store") pursuant to the terms of the Inventory Purchase Agreement, hereafter defined.

2. THE NOTE. Borrower's indebtedness to Lender shall be evidenced by a
$48,000.00 Commercial Promissory Note by Borrower to Lender made effective as of even date
(the "Note"). The Note is to be for seven years without interest, as more particularly described in
the Note.

3. PURCHASE OF INVENTORY. As a specific condition of Lender's loan to
Borrower, Borrower agrees to purchase at least fifty-five percent (55%) of its inventory
requirements at the Store from Lender for a term of seven (7) years, according to the terms and
conditions of the Inventory Purchase Agreement (the “Inventory Purchase Agreement”) between
the parties, dated as of even date, and executed in connection herewith.

4. DEFAULT. The occurrence of any one or more of the following shall be an event
of default hereunder. The occurrence of any event of default shall constitute without notice or
demand a default under the Note, the Inventory Purchase Agreement, and all other agreements
between Borrower and Lender:

(a) Failure by Borrower to perform any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement,
or any default under any other agreement between Borrower and Lender executed in connection
herewith (including, without limitation, the Note or the Inventory Purchase Agreement);

(b)  Any representation or warranty made by Borrower to Lender proves to be false or
misleading in any material respect;

(c) Any report, certificate or financial statement or other instrument furnished in
connection with this Loan Agreement which proves to be false or misleading in any material
respect.



5. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Borrower shall furnish to Lender within ninety
(90) days of its fiscal year end, audited financial statements, or if audited financial statements are
not available, financial statements in review quality, prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, by a firm of certified public accountants acceptable to Lender.

6. FOREGIVENESS OF DEBT AND IMPUTED INTEREST. In each month
during the term of the Inventory Purchase Agreement that Borrower is in full compliance with, -
and has performed all of its obligations under, the terms of the Inventory Purchase Agreement,
Lender will forgive one eighty-fourth (1/84) of the total principal due under the Note. Principal
forgiveness will be based only on full months’ performance, and will not be prorated for partial
months. Any imputed interest on the Note will also be forgiven in the same manner and under
the same terms as the forgiven principal.

If Borrower fails to comply with or perform all of its obligations under the Inventory
Purchase Agreement, or if Borrower terminates the Inventory Purchase Agreement pursuant to
Section 3 thereof, no principal or imputed interest will be forgiven, and all amounts remaining
due under the Note will then be immediately due and payable in full as of the date of any such
breach or termination by Borrower.

7. TERMINATION OF ADVERTISING CREDIT. Borrower and Lender
acknowledge that all agreements, obligations and rights of either of them with respect to the
granting by Lender to Borrower of any so-called advertising credit are hereby terminated.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this L s

day of_OurpeA , 2001.

BORROWER:

Coastal Retail Corp. d/b/a
Southwest Food Mart

Beocl Soves /MW

Witness Its \/- Dheardent

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE,
INC.

(i) Catlebien AN W=

Witness Its: TasSLAnT /O£ O




Exhibit 6(c) (vi)

COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made effective as of
J unt b , 2003, and is by and between KARP, Inc., a Maine corporation having its
principal place of business in Wells, Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Borrower"), and
ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC., a Maine Corporation doing business in Gardiner,
Kennebec County and State of Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Lender").

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained herein and benefits to be
derived herefrom, and for good and valuable consideration, Borrower and Lender hereby agree
to the following terms and conditions:

1. PURPOSE OF LOAN. The purpose of the loan between Borrower and Lender is
to finance the acquisition of inventory of Borrower's Wells, Maine retail grocery store (the
"Store") pursuant to the terms of the Inventory Purchase Agreement, hereafter defined.

2. THE NOTE. Borrower's indebtedness to Lender shall be evidenced by a
$250,000.00 Commercial Promissory Note by Borrower to Lender made effective as of even
date (the "Note").

3. PURCHASE OF INVENTORY. As a specific condition of Lender's loan to
Borrower, Borrower agrees to purchase at least fifty-five percent (55%) of its inventory
~ requirements at the Store from Lender for a term to expire on the later of (a) November _, 2008,
or (b) for so long as any of the Obligations, as hereafter defined, remain outstanding, according
to the terms and conditions of the Inventory Purchase Agreement (the “Inventory Purchase
Agreement”) between the parties, dated as of even date, and executed in connection herewith.

4. DEFAULT. The occurrence of any one or more of the following shall be an event
of default hereunder. The occurrence of any event of default shall constitute without notice or
demand a default under the Note, the Inventory Purchase Agreement, and all other agreements
between Borrower and Lender:

(a) Failure by Borrower to perform within any applicable grace or cure period, any of
the terms or conditions of this Agreement, or any default under any other agreement between
Borrower and Lender executed in connection herewith (including, without limitation, the Note or
the Inventory Purchase Agreement);

(b)  Any representation or warranty made by Borrower to Lender proves to be false or
misleading in any material respect;

(c) Any report, certificate or financial statement or other instrument furnished in
connection with this Loan Agreement which proves to be false or misleading in any material
respect.



(d)  Any default under any guaranty of the Borrower’s obligations under any
agreement between the Borrower and Lender (collectively, the “Obligations”), given by any
person to Lender.

5. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Borrower shall furnish to Lender within ninety (90) days
of its fiscal year end, audited financial statements, or if audited financial statements are not
available, financial statements in review quality, prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, by a firm of certified public accountants acceptable to Lender.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this
day of _Ju e Iy 2001

BORROWER:

KARP, INC.

Beruile v

Witness

¥

Watress

S:\A\Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc\Princeton Stores\KARP, Inc\$250,000 Loan 6.2003\COMMERCIAL LOAN AGREEMENT - FINAL.doc
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Exhibit 6(c) (vii)’

LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS LOAN AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of January 20, 2004, and is
by and between The Umbrella Factory (hereinafter referred to as "Borrower"), and
ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC,, a Maine Corporation doing business in Gardiner,
Kennebec County and State of Maine (hereinafter referred to as "Lender").

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained herein and benefits to be
derived herefrom, and for good and valuable consideration, Borrower and Lender hereby agree
to the following terms and conditions:

1. LOANS; PURPOSE OF LOANS. Lender has this day made a certain loan (the
“Loan”) to Borrower, in the amount of $129,410.95. The purpose of the Loan is to finance the
purchase of inventory for the Store.

2. THE NOTE. Borrower's indebtedness to Lender shall be evidenced by a
Promissory Note by Borrower to Lender made effective as of January 20, 2004, in the principal
amount of $129,410.95 (the "Note"). The Note is to be for five years with interest, as more
particularly described in the Note. The Note shall be secured by a security interest in all of
Borrower's inventory, pursuant to a Security Agreement dated of near or even date herewith (the
"Security Agreement"). The Note shall also be secured by the guaranty of David R. Allenson
and Gail Allenson, dated of near or even date herewith (as amended from time to time, the
“Guaranty”), and by any other security set forth in the Note or the Guaranty.

3. PURCHASE OF INVENTORY. As a specific condition of Lender's loan to
Borrower, Borrower agrees to purchase at least sixty-five percent (65%) of its inventory
requirements at the Store from Lender according to the terms and conditions of the Inventory
Purchase Agreement executed in connection herewith.

4 DEFAULT. The occurrence of any one or more of the following shall be an event
of default hereunder. The occurrence of any event of default shall constitute without notice or
demand a default under the Note and all other agreements between Borrower and Lender:

(a)  Failure by Borrower or any guarantor to perform any of the conditions of this
Agreement, or any default under any other agreement between Borrower and Lender executed in
connection herewith (including, without limitation, the Note, the Security Agreement, the
Inventory Purchase Agreement, or any other agreement between Borrower and Lender),

(b) Any representation of warranty made herein which proves to be false or
misleading in any material respect;

(c)  Any report, certificate or financial statement or other instrument furnished in
connection with this Loan Agreement which proves to be false or misleading in any material

respect; or

(d) Any default under the Guaranty;



5. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Borrower shall furnish to Lender within forty-
five (45) days of its fiscal year end, financial statements prepared in audit quality, or if audited
financial statements are not available, in review quality, prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principals, by a firm of certified public accountants acceptable to Lender.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this 207
day of January, 2004.

THE UMBRELLA FACTORY
[,Q’///VM/M; &W% ' Byg/&mne [ Q%vu/\
Witness Its:
peesu e-T

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE,

INC
L aly Callidan. o oD NE L )T

Witness Its: Fresivsyy / Y

S:\A\Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc\Allenson\LOAN AGREEMENT.doc
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Exhibit 6(c) (viii)

LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS LOAN AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of February 21, 2003, and is
by and between Williams Development, Inc., d/b/a The Main Street Market, in Belfast, Maine
(hereinafter referred to as "Borrower"), and ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC., a
Maine Corporation doing business in Gardiner, Kennebec County and State of Maine
(hereinafter referred to as "Lender").

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained herein and benefits to be
derived herefrom, and for good and valuable consideration, Borrower and Lender hereby agree
to the following terms and conditions:

1. LOANS; PURPOSE OF LOANS. Lender has this day made a certain loan (the
“Loan”) to Borrower, in the amount of One Hundred Thirty Four Thousand Nine Hundred
Ninety Seven Dollars and 36/100 (134,997.36). The purpose of the Loan is Inventory
Purchase.

2. THE NOTE. Borrower's indebtedness to Lender shall be evidenced by a
Promissory Note by Borrower to Lender made effective as of February 21, 2003, in the
principal amount of One Hundred Thirty Four Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Seven
Dollars and 36/100 (134,997.36) (the "Note"). The Note is to be for five years with interest, as
more particularly described in the Note. The Note shall be secured by a security interest in all of
Borrower's inventory and 2™ position on equipment (after Camden National Bank), pursuant
to a Security Agreement dated of near or even date herewith (the "Security Agreement"). The
Note shall also be secured by the guaranty of Kenneth L. and Jennifer R. Harris Williams, dated
of near or even date herewith (as amended from time to time, the “Guaranty”), and by any other
security set forth in the Note or the Guaranty. The Guaranty is secured by a mortgage on the
Guarantors’ primary residence, located in Belfast, Maine, to be recorded in the Waldo County
Registry of Deeds.

3. PURCHASE OF INVENTORY. As a specific condition of Lender's loan to
Borrower, Borrower agrees to purchase at least fifty-five percent (55%) of its inventory
requirements at the Store from Lender according to the terms and conditions of the Inventory
Purchase Agreement executed in connection herewith.

4. DEFAULT. The occurrence of any one or more of the following shall be an event
of default hereunder. The occurrence of any event of default shall constitute without notice or
demand a default under the Note and all other agreements between Borrower and Lender:

(a) Failure by Borrower or any guarantor to perform any of the conditions of this
Agreement, or any default under any other agreement between Borrower and Lender executed in
connection herewith (including, without limitation, the Pledge Agreement or any security
agreement);

(b) Any representation of warranty made herein which proves to be false or
misleading in any material respect;



(©) Any report, certificate or financial statement or other instrument furnished in
connection with this Loan Agreement which proves to be false or misleading in any material
respect; or

(d) Any default under the Guaranty;

S. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Borrower shall furnish to Lender within forty-
five (45) days of its fiscal year end, financial statements prepared in audit quality, or if audited
financial statements are not available, in review quality, prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principals, by a firm of certified public accountants acceptable to Lender.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this 21st
day of February, 2003.

Wllhams Development Inc.

0 2w ﬁ/m

ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE,
INC.

Cotdy Catbb /3 )7 4)r

Witness ' Cuse s Jazo

S:\A\Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc\Williams Development, Inc\Documents\LOAN AGREEMENI1.doc



Exhibit 6(d)

E Q NT AGREEMENT

Agreement dated as of the /& g;y of February, 2003 by and between
ASSOCIATED GROCERS OF MAINE, INC., a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Maine, with a principal office in Gardiner, Maine, (the
“Company”), and MICHAEL E. WESTORT, an individual residing in Portland. Maine
(the “Employee”).

WHEREAS, the Company desires to hire the Employee to perform the duties of
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company upon the terms and conditions set
forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Employee desires to be retained by the Company as its President
and Chief Executive Officer upon the terms and conditions set forth herein,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and the mutual
covenants and promises set forth below, and for other good and valuable consideration
acknowledged to have been received, the parties agree as follows:

1. Employment and Term. (a) For and in consideration of the payments
hereinafter set forth, the Employee hereby agrees (i) for 2 period of three (3) years from
the “Effective Date,” as that term is defined below (the “Employment Term"), to devote
full-time to his employment hereunder and to serve as President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. The Company agrees to employ the Employee in such capacity,
and for such term, and upon the additional terms and provisions of this Agreement, In
such capacity, the Employee shall report to the Board of Directors of the Company and
shall perform those functions assigned to him by the By-laws of the Company, by the
Board of Directors of the Company, and those that are normally associated with the day-
to-day responsibilities of a President and Chief Executive Officer of a wholesale grocery
distributor, This will include but not be limited to, providing the leadership necessary to
develop and effectively and efficiently execute the Company’s sales and growth strategy,
to develop and institutionalize necessary organizational structures to support the
execution of the Company’s strategy, and create, implement and manage required
management financial information systems to support the enterprise and to attract, retain
and motivate a quality workforce capable of successfully delivering on the Company’s
strategy.

(b) The Effective Date shall be March 30, 2002, or such other date upon which
the Company and the Employee may agree in writing.

(c) Upon the written agreement of the Employee and the Company, the term of
employment shall be renewed for one or more successive three year terms (each, a
"Renewal Term") after the Employment Tertn or any applicable Renewal Term, on the



same terms and conditions as set forth in this Agreement, or upon such other terms and
conditions as the Employee and the Company may agree upon in writing,. In the event
that no written agreement is entered into for the renewal of the Employment Term or any
Renewal Term prior to the sixtieth (60™) day preceding the expiration of the Employment
Term or any Renewal Term, as applicable, then, at the option of the Company, which
option may be exercised once by written notice to the Employee given not later than
thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of such Employment Term or Renewal Term, the
term of this Agreement shall be extended following the end of such Employment Term
or Renewal Term for the number of days (not to exceed sixty (60) days) designated by
the Company in such written notice, unless this Agreement shall have been earlier
terminated in accordance with the provisions of Section 4.

2. Payment of Consideration.

(a) Base Salary. In consideration of the performance by the Employee of the
undertakings set forth above, the Company shall pay the Employee, commencing as of
the Effective Date, the gross sum of $133.250.00 per year for the first year of the
Employment Term, payable in accordance with payment practices then in force for other
management employees of the Company (the “Base Salary”), and subject to all usual and
customary payroll tax, income tax, and similar withholdings. The Board shall review the
base salary at the end of each fiscal year, and any increase in compensation shall be
retroactive to said year-end, The Board shall complete the review within ninety (90)
days of the fiscal year end and amend contract to reflect change, if any is made.

(b) Annual Bonus. At the end of the company’s fiscal year, Employee shall be
paid a cash bonus, calculated as follows: five percent (5%) of the net income of the
Company, before income taxes, for the Company’s fiscal year then ending, as determined
in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, consistently applied.
Such bonus shall be paid not later than ninety-days following the end of said period. The
Company may deduct from such bonus payment all required and customary withholdings
for income and payroll taxes.

(c) Emplovee Benefits. In addition to, and not in lieu of any other compensation
due to the Employee hereunder the Company will, during the Employment Term, provide
to the Employee the same benefits that are currently provided to him, including without
limitation; (i) the same health and medical insurance benefits that are currently offered to
other non-union employees of the Company; (it) the Employee shall be entitled to four
weeks of paid vacation on an annual basis; and (jii) the Company will pay up to 100%
per year for the premiums for the disability policy that the Employee has in effect as of
the Effective Date, or any policy that the Employee may obtain during the term hereof,
provided, however, that any such policy benefits shall be consistent with other policies
maintained by the Company for its non-union salaried employees; (iv) the Employee
shall be entitled to the use of a Company automobile, in accordance with usage and
practice in effect on the date of this Agreement; and (v) at the request and direction of the
Employee, the Company will deduct from and pay a portion of Employee's Base Salary



for payment of the Employee’s contributions to a retirement account or plan which may
be established by Employer from time to time.

(d) Expenses. During the term herein, the Company shall, upon presentation of
appropriate vouchers and in accordance with the policies of the Company, reimburse the
Employee for all reasonable and necessary business expenses incurred by him on behalf
of the Company in performance of his duties hereunder.

3. Confidential Information/Non Competition. (a) The Employee hereby
agrees that unless compelled by judicial process, the Employee will not communicate or
divulge to, or use for the benefit of himself, or any other person, firm, association, or
corporation, other than the Company, any confidential information or trade secrets
concerning any customers, accounts, vendors, suppliers, inventions, discoveries,
improvements, processes, formulae, apparatus, equipment, methods, research, data, users,
subscribers, franchisees or purchasers of the products or services of the Company or other
confidential matters possessed, owned, or used by the Company, the discovery,
development or knowledge of which became known to or was acquired by the Employee
at any time by reason of his participation in the business and affairs of or as a result of his
former association as an officer, member or director of the Company or which may be
hereafter revealed to him by the Company in a confidential manner for a business
purpose or in a business relationship (collectively, “Confidential Information™).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if compelled by judicial process to disclose any
Confidential Information, the Employee shall promptly advise the Company and at the
Company’s direction, and at the sole cost and expense of the Company. take all
reasonable steps requested by the Company in order to obtain a protective order.

(b) Throughout Employee’s service hereafter and for a period of one (1) year
from the date that this Agreement is terminated (hereafter referred to as the “Non-
Competition Period™) Employee agrees to restrict his right and ability to compete with
the Company as set forth in more detail below. During the Non-Competition Period, the
Employee will not directly or indirectly:

(i) Become an employee, officer or director of a corporation, or an employee or
member of a partnership, limited liability company, limited liability partnership or
joint venture, or an employee or owner of an individual proprietorship or trust, or
any other type or form of business entity thatis a “Competing Business,” as that
term is defined below; or

(ii) Own, directly or indirectly, or suffer, or to the best of his ability, permit his
spouse, or any of his children, while they are minor and under parental control, to
own, directly or indirectly, more than two percent (2%) of any one class of stock
of a corporation, or interest in a partnership or other business entity that is a
“Competing Business,” as that term is defined below; or



(iii) Provide advisory or consulting services, with or without compensation, to
others who are in or propose to enter into a “Competing Business,” as that term is
defined below,

(iv) A “Competing Business” is one that is in or proposes to enter the business of
selling or distributing at wholesale, within the state of Maine, New Hampshire,
Massachusetts, and/or Vermont any product or products of a type(s) which is/are
similar to any product or products which is or are at any time, distributed or sold
at wholesale by the Company, without regard to whether such business uses any
name, tradename, trademark, servicemark, or style similar to those used by the

Company.

(¢) Anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the
Noncompetition Period shall terminate, and Employee shall no longer be bound by the
terms of Section 3(b) upon occurrence of either of the following events or circumstances;
(i) notification by the Company pursuant to Section 1(¢) that the term of this Agreement
will not be renewed as provided in section 1(c), provided, however, that if upon such
expiration of the term of this Agreement, Employee is in default of this Agreement, or
cause to terminate Employee then exists pursuant to Section 4(a)(ii), then Employee shall
not be excused from compliance with Section 3(b) upon such expiration; or (ii) the
termination of employment of Employee pursuant to Section 4(a)(i) or 4(a)(iv).

4. Termination. (a) The Company shall be entitled to terminate the
employment of the Employee hereunder prior to the expiration of the term hereof, in the
following circumstances:

(1) If the Employee shall become disabled during the Employment Term, and
such disability shall continue for a period of six (6) consecutive months. The
Employee shall be considered to be disabled in the event the Employee is unable
to perform, with or without reasonable accommodation, the essential functions of
his employment with the Company at any time during the Employment Term;

(ii) For “Due Cause,” as defined herein, For purposes of this Agreement, the
term “Due Cause” shall mean any of the following: (A) breach of any of the
Employee’s material obligations hereunder, including, without limitation, a
material failure to perform his duties as set forth in Section 1 above, provided that
the Company has given the Employee written notice specifically setting forth the
precise nature of the alleged material breach and at least thirty (30) days to correct
such failure; (B) intentional noncompliance with a legitimate, lawful, and material
directive of a majority of the Board of Directors as recorded in the Company
minutes; (C) misappropriation by the Employee of funds of, or perpetration by the
Employee of a fraud upon, the Company; (D) conviction of the Employee of a
felony punishable by imprisonment at any time during the Employment Term; (E)
intentional damage to property of the Company; or (F) intentional disclosure of
Confidential Information of, or relating to, the Company,



(iii) Death of the Employee,

(iv) For any reason that the Company deems appropriate, without cause, provided
that the provisions of section 4(b) below are met.

(b) Inthe event that the Company terminates the employment of the Employee
pursuant to Section 4(a)(i), (iii) or (iv) above, the Company shall pay the Employee (or
his estate), for a period of eighteen (18) months the amount of Employee’s Base Salary,
as defined in Section 2(a) above, in effect at the time of such termination of employment,
subject to all usual and customary payroll tax, income tax, and similar withholdings, but
not subject to review, increase or decrease, as provided in said Section. In the event that
the Company terminates the employment of the Employee pursuant to section 4(a)(ii),
there shall be no payments made by the Company to the Employee.

(c) In the event that during the term of this Agreement, (i) the Company sells all,
or substantially all, of its assets to another entity, or merges or consolidates with another
entity and the Company is not the surviving entity, or if the Company merges or
consolidates with another entity and the majority of the Board of Directors of the
surviving entity consists of individuals who were not members of the Board of Directors
of the Company immediately prior to such merger or consolidation (any such event being
hereinafier referred to as a “‘Change of Control”, and the surviving entity in such a
Charge of Control being referred to as the “Successor”), and (ii) the employment of the
Employee with the Company or the Successor, is terminated after such Change of
Control, without due cause as defined hereunder, or Employee is offered employment
with the Successor, and accepts such Employment, and the aggregate compensation of
Employee, including the value of benefits provided to Employee by Successor is reduced
below the sum of Employee's base salary, plus bonus, plus the value of the benefits
provided hereunder to Employee (such aggregate sum being referred to as the “Employee
Compensation”), then the Company will pay to the Employee, for a period of up to thirty-
8ix (36) months following such termination of Employee, or the effective date of the
reduction in aggregate compensation, on a monthly basis, the positive difference between
(i) Employee Compensation, if higher, and (ii) the aggregate value, on a monthly basis, of
Employee's annual compensation from Successor, plus the value of all Employee's
benefits from Successor.

(d) Payments to be made under this paragraph 4 are subject to the following
additional terms:

(i) Employee shal] be entitled to no more than thirty-six months of
payments under this Agreement,

(it) If Employee fails or refuses to accept an offer of employment by
the Successor, and such offer of employment is (a) for the same or
substantially the same position as Employee holds with Company as of the
time of the Change in Control, or is for a position substantially similar in
duties and responsibilities to such position, or is for any position in



management which is suitable for the Employee, given Employee’s
experience and capabilities in the industry in which Employer operates, or
is for any position as an officer of the Successor, and (b) for employment
which permits Employee to maintain his principal office or place of
business within the New England States, then the payment to Employee
hereunder shall be limited to the difference, on a monthly basis, between
the Employee Compensation and what Employee would have earned,
including benefits, had he accepted such position offered by Successor.

(iii) In the event that Successor offers employment to Employee
which requires Employee to maintain his principal office or place of
business at a distance from Employee’s current residence in Portland,
Maine, which is in excess of One Hundred (100) miles, and if Employee
accepts such offer of employment, then if and to the extent that Successor
fails to offer to pay substantially all of Employee’s Relocation Costs (as
defined below), then Employer shall pay such Relocation Costs. For the
purpose of this Section, Relocation Costs shall mean Employee’s actual.
reasonable, and necessary costs and expenses incurred or expected to be
incurred in transporting hiraself, his spouse, his dependents, and his and
their possessions to the location of his new employment .

(iv)  If (a) the Employee is terminated by Successor following a Change
of Control other than for Due Cause under the definition contained in
Section 4(a)(i1) above, if such definition were applicable to Successor, or
by reason of Employee's death or disability pursuant to Sections 4(a)(}) or
(1ii) above, or (b) following a Change of Control, the Successor does not
offer to Employee the same or a substantially similar position, or a
position substantially similar in duties and responsibilities to the position
Employee currently occupies with the Company, or a position in
management or as an officer of the Successor as set forth above in
paragraph 4(d)(ii) and the Employee ceases to be employed by Successor,
then the Company shall pay to the Employee, on a monthly basis, the
Employee Compensation for a period of thirty-six (36) months from the
date of such Change of Control, but the Company shall be entitied to
reduce the amount so to be paid by the amount of any income earned by
the Employee by the rendition of services by the Employee to any
subsequent employer or as a self employed individual during said thirty-
six month period.

5. Remedies for Breach. Any breach, violation or evasion of the non-
compete and non-disclosure terms of this Agreement by the Employee may cause
immediate and irreparable injury to the Company and, thus the Company is hereby
authorized to seck recourse for such breach, violation or evasion by the Employee by
application for injunction and/or specific performance, as well as all other remedies at
law or in equity to which it otherwise may be entitled.



6. Indemnification by the Company. The Company agrees that it will

indemnify Employee, to the full extent permitted by law, from and against all lo_s§. cost,
damage, liability or expense, including Employee’s attorney’s fees and costs, arising
from any and all claims, demands and expenses arising out of any action, suit or
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, to which the
Employee is or is threatened to be made a party by reason of his serving as the President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and provided further, that no
indemnification will be provided as to any matter as to which the Employee shall have
been finally determined by an arbitrator, court or other appropriate body:

(a) Not to have acted honestly or in the reasonable belief that his action was in
or not opposed to the best interests of the Company or its shareholders ;

(b) With respect to any criminal action or proceeding, to have had reasonable
cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful;

(c¢)  To have acted in violation of the Company’s governing documents or the
direction of the Board of Directors of the Company.

7. Arbitration. The Company and Employee agree to make a good faith
effort to resolve any dispute that may arise under this Agreement through informal
negotiation. In the event of any controversy, dispute, or disagreement arising out of, or in
connection with, this Agreement, which cannot be resolved through such informal means,
the matter may be submitted by either party to final and binding arbitration by an
arbitrator mutually agreed to by the parties or, failing such agreement, under the rules and
procedures of the American Arbitration Association. The parties agree that such
arbitration shall be the sole and exclusive means by which such disputes are to be finally
resolved. In the event that arbitration is utilized, the prevailing party shall recover its
reasonable costs and attorney’s fees. Any dispute in regard to payment of attorney’s fees
and costs shall be subject to final determination by the arbitrator(s) appointed pursuant to
this section. The decision or award, in writing, of the arbitrator on the merits of any
dispute properly adjudicated within its authority as specified in this Agreement shall be
final and binding upon the parties.

8. Notices. Any notice, demand or request required or permitted to be given
under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered on the date of personal delivery or on the date of mailing if mailed by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, and shall be
deemed to have been recetved on the date of personal deliver or on the date set forth on
the return receipt, to the following addresses, or to such other address as any party may
request by notifying in writing all of the other parties to this Agreement;



If to the Company:  Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc.
P.O. Box 1000
Brunswick Avenue
Gardiner, Maine 04345-1000
Attention: Chairman of Board of Directors

With a copy to: George J. Marcus, Esq.
Marcus, Clegg & Mistretta, P.A.
100 Middle Street, East Tower
Portland, Maine 04101

If to the Employee;  Michael E. Westort

65 Caron Street
Portland, Maine 04103

With a copy to: Richard G. Moon, Esq.
Moon, Moss, McGill & Shapiro, P.A.
10 Free Street
Portland, Maine 04101

9, Waiver. Modification or Cancellation. Any waiver, alteration or
modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement or cancellation or replacement of
this Agreement shall not be valid unless in writing and signed by all of the parties hereto.

10, Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Maine.

11.  Assignment, This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party absent
the prior written consent of the other, except that the Company may assign this
Agreement in connection with a merger of the Company with another entity or a sale of
all or substantially all of the Company's assets.

12,  Severability. Inthe event that any part of this Agreement shall be held to
be unenforceable or invalid, the remaining parts hereof shall nevertheless continue to be
valid and enforceable as though the invalid portions were not a part hereof’
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Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc.

(207) 582-6500 PO Box 1000 » Gardiner, Maine 04345 1800 852-6550

MEMORANDTM

TO:  Wayne Crandali
"DATE; Ocober 22, 2008
SUBY:  President/CEQ Raise

At the Board Meeting held on Tuesday, October 21, 2003, the Board spproved a
.2% pay increase for Michael Westort retroactive 1o the start of'the FY 04 fiscal year, and
to extend the employment by one year.

Please sign below to authorize the increass and retroactive pay for the HR files.

Please calf me if you have questions.



Exhibit 10(a)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S CONSENT

We consent to the use in the Offering Circular for the issuance of $5,000,000 Variable Rate Subordinated
Debt Securities (Excess) pursuant to Regulation A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, of
Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc. of our report, dated May 7, 2004, on the consolidated financial statements
of Associated Grocers of Maine, Inc. and subsidiaries as of and for the years ended March 26, 2004 and
March 28, 2003 appearing in the Offering Circular.
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Portland, Maine Limited Liability Company
June 30, 2004



